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LR §3-0551/1
S November 1993

The President
The White House
Washington, D.C. 20500

Dear Mr. President:

as directed by Presidential Decision Directive/nNsC-8,
“Declassificacion of POW/MIA Records."” I am reporting on the
completion of CIA's "review, declassificaticn and release of
all relevant documents, files percaining tec American POWs and
MIAs missing in Southeast Asia in accordance with Executive

Ordexr 12812° by the deadline of 11 Navember 1993.

Since the issuance of Executive Order 12812 in July 1992,
all Agency documencts and files resporisive tc the Order have
been continually forwarded via the Department of Defense
Central Documencation Office to the repasitory for POW/MIA
data at tne Library of Congress. Our review included a
thorough, exhaustive search of operatiopal files, finished
intelligence reports, memoranda, background studies, and open
source files. To date, 1.78§ dccumencs have been forwarded to
the Library of Congress, while only 57¢ documents have been
denied. All denied material was withheld based on the need to
protect scurces and methods. ongoing clandestine operations,
negotiaticns on foreign policy issues such as the normali-
zation of relacions, or privacy issuee related to returnees
and the families of POWs and MIAs. ’

I am confident that we nave made every effort to be
ferthecoming in the declassification of POW/MIA material.
We will continve to be responsive to this issue through
Qur active participation on the POW/MIA Incelligence Review

Panel and in handling future FOIA requests.
Respectfully yours,

R. “ames Woolsey /
pireccor of Central Intelligence

Eah, 24 N
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" MEMORANDUM FOR THE CHIEF OF NAVAL OPERATIONS

Sub:]ect U.S. Prisoners of War in Laos

1. . Reference 1s made to your memorandum, Op-00 00L73-
73, dated 18 May 1973, which discussed the U.S. PW/MIA
situation in Laos and recommended that a CIA briefing on

the sub;)ect be provided the JCS.

2.. The following are the facts as they relate
to CIA involvement 1n the current Laotian MIA sibuation. .

) a. CIA continues to conduct an active program to.
acquire intelligence relative to the. status of U.S. MIA
personnel.’ That ‘Agency accords PW/MIA matters one of the -
highest priorities in its overail intelligence collection

effort in SEAsia. - .
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. (. REPROOUCED AT THE NATIONAL ARCHIVES "

. , The CIA maintalns close working level
' contacts with the Joint Casualty Resolution Centexr. (JCRC).
in much the same manner as it did with ‘the JCRC's predecessor,
"the MACV Joint Personnel Recovery Center (JPRC). However, in
order not ta jeopardize the status of the JCRC.and its: .
humanitarian mission, any proposed covert effort :should be .
tied to existing intelllgence ‘collection activities.

"3, " Since the PW/MIA infelligence collection effort in
Laos 18 limited ta that described above, it is not. believed
that a"briefing of the. Joint Chiefs of Staff by the CIA is -

warranted 2t this time..

' X§gd)T H. AOORER

T. H. MOORER
Chairman
Joint Chiefs of Staff
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REGISTER OF PERSONNEL HANDLING CLASSIFIED DOCUMENT

“‘
N, |cowTroL numsen ;.|

REPRCOUCED AT THE NATIONAL ARCHIVES

DATK RECKIVED
3

[RETURN 70 OFFICK, CHAIRMAN, JCB CLABBIFICATION
ROOM 1EesP, THE PENTAGON’
DOCUMENT NUMBER COPY NUMBER DATE OF DOGUMERY .
DISM-895-73 31May73
suBJECT

U.S. Prisoners of War in Laos

. THE ABOVE-DESBCRIBED DOCUMENT HAS BKEN RECKIVED (N THIS OFFICE. CINGULATION OF

{OOCUMENT WILL BE LIMITED TO INDIVIDUALS INDICATED SELOW. THE DOCUMENT WILL BE RETURNED
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICKE FOR RECORD PRIOA TO DISPATCH TO ANOTHER OFFICE, UR OTHER DISFOBITIO

THIS FORM WILL NOT DE REMOVED FROM SUBJECT DOCUMENT.

Yo |- NAM E TNIT LA REMARKS
/ CHAIRMAN, JCS 00 1l June 1973

EXECUTIVE

1. CNO indicated that CIA is pursuing a |}

THE ASBISTANT TO
THE CHAIRMAN

e

lpriority effort to determine what had hap
to US POWs in Laos and suggested .'a brief:

e
2
/

AIR FORCE MBR

CHAIRMANS STAFF GROUP

2l

2. The attached report by DIA states tha

HAYY MBR

CHAIRMANS STAFF GROUP

01C

no special program is being undertaken am
that a CIA briefing is not in order. .

MARINE MBR

CHAIRMANS STAFf GROUP

3. A proposed memorandum to CNO to this
affect has been prepared for your signatu

CHAIRMANG STAFF GROUP

4. Recommend signature.

Very respectfully, .

%

TRUE

ARMY MBR nx
LEGAL ADVISOR AND
LEGISLATIVE ASST oF
ASSISTANT FOR
PUBLIC AFFAIRS 0G
BPECIAL
|  AssisranT o1H
ADMINISTRATIVE
. ABSISTANT 9
2 Apssin aloe s S;

- -

AlR FORCE AIDE

MARINE AIDE" - -
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F e Referaﬁce is made to:

. a. A memorandum from the Chief of Naval Operations, OP-00 00017
73 dated 18 May 1973, which discussed the existing.political impass
in Laotian negotiations relevant to a resolution of the status of.'U.

Taly MIA personnel, bava *
pata, It stated that )

the Chief of Naval Operations was informed that the Central Intelli—
¢ |9ence Agency (CIA) is pursuing a "highest priority effort" di.rected‘
., {specifically determining what has happened to U.S. MIAs in. Laos.
%1~ | It further recommended that the Joint Chiefs of Staff receive: nw,
P brieﬂng from the Cmron its effort in this-area. - A r;':&ﬁ

1& .-- .‘
sd= 1 - b, ODJS Routing Sllp No. 2030, dated 21 May 1973, which dzrectc
ACeF that DIA collaborate wrth J—3 in preparing a reply to your query.ﬂh
7 ic
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s The £ollowing facts nre pertinent to CIA 1nvolvement-£" ’
LR current Laotian MIA situntion W s " = < i '-”ﬂku i
ol w::.‘- 2o 5 z 45 ‘v‘f i:‘

255 a. DIA and J-3 (DOCSA) dlscuasions with CIA points of conta R

L SSd ecords. of DOCSA monitoring-of. Laos activities indicate tha

& ﬁa‘a‘had, and currently. ‘conducts, an active program:to acquix
ten;lqence relative-to: the gtatus of U.S. MIA- personnel..- This]
program is among the highest priority PW/HIA 1ntelligenca object ggz
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REPRODUCED AT THE NATIONAL ARCHIVES

within the overall intelligence collection effort in SEAsi.al.
It is carried out by the assets, and within the organizational
structure, of the CIA station in Laos.

mecrto > ’

d. Since the PW/MIA intelligence collection effort in Laos

yismdimited to that described above, it is not believed that a

000263

* their fate.

. briefing of the Joint Chiefs of Staff is warranted.

3. DIA is collaborating closely where appropriate with CIA.
in regard to the current situation in Laos. A summary of the .
present PW/MIA situation in Laos as held in DIA files is as

follows:

a. At present there are approximately 350 U.S. military and
civilians listed as missing in action in Laos. Of this total, -
approximately 215 were lost.under such circumstances that the .-
Patriotic Laotian Front (PLF) probably has information regarding

o g - . . . -
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b. Previous PLF mention of U.S. PWs detained in Laos
included a statement on 3 October 1967 by the Pathet Lao Radio
that, between 17 May and 16 September 1967, the Pathet Lao had

* "captured about a dozen U.S. pilots.” Furthermore, on 2 February

1971 PLF spokesman Soth Phetrasy commented that "quelgues dixaines
("some tens") of prisoners were being held by the Pathet Lao.,

C. The Pathet Lao has made repeated claims of downing many
U.S. aircraft. A 16 May 1973 broadcast reported that, from
17 May 1964 to 16 May 1973, 2,496 U.S. aircraft had been shot
down over Laos. This would imply an enemy ability to account
for some U.S. personnel involved.

M £ THoD

e. All of the nine former U.S. PWs, whose names appeared
on the "PLF List" of 1 February 1973, were in fact captured by
NVA units operating in Laos along the Ho Chi Minh Trail and
were moved to North Vietnam. Thus, the PLF has provided no -~
accounting for U.S. personnel in its custody.

£. -The cease-fire agreement, signed in vientiane on
21 February 1973, provided for the exchange of prisoners.
Article 5 of the Protocol states that all captured personnel,
regardless of nationality, will be released and provides for an
accounting of those personnel missing in action. The release of
all PWs is scheduled to take effect within 60 days subsequent
to the establishment of a Provisional National Union Government.
According to the terms of the agreement, the Provisional Governme)
was to have been implemented within 30 days of the signing of

the cease-fire.

g~ On the basis of the above discussion as it-relates to

. the current CIA program of gathering intelligence_on U.S. PWs/
MIAs, this Agency recommends that a CIA briefing not be scheduled
for the Joint Chiefs of staff at this time, ‘

5. All participating agencies concur in this recommendation.

JOHN R. DEANE, Jr.
Lloutenant Ceneralg USA
Acting Director, .—

. Enclosure
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QFFICE OF TIE GHILF OF NAVAL OFMCRATIONS
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20150
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Op-00 Memo 0O(
18 May 1973

MEMORANDUM FOR THE CHAIRMAM, JOIRT CHIEFS OF STAFT
Subj: US Prisoners of War In Laos

i. . The continuing failure of the two Lao parties to agr
on a Provisional Government of National Union, as providad f:
in thé& Laos Agreement, has obstructed further progress towar«
achievement of some U3G post-ceasafire cbjectives in Laos.
though the ceasefire_has been effective in reducing the leve!
of armzd hostilities, the inability of the PRoyal Lao Governam:
(RLS) and the Lao Patriotic .Front. (LPF) to fashion an accomm¢
~dation on the political level has effectively_ arrested any
movement toward an enviromment in which the status of Americ:
missing in action in Laos can be resolved. Additionally, on-
golng bllateral, semi~official contacts betvieen USG officials
in Laos and senior representatives of the LPF have not rthaJ
any cause to believe that this particular channel will provic
helpful information in this matter; the LPF has steadfastly
disclaimed all knowledge of any American POWs othexr than thos

few already released.

2 . In this unsatisfactory climate it appears clear
that a successful, 7 U5 unilateral effort is essential i
we are to properly résolve the status of these missing Americ
fighting men; we owe them no less. I am informed that the
Central Intelligence Agency is pursuing a "highest priority c
fort" directed at specifically determining what has hzppened
US MiAs in Laos.

~ "
3. In view of the direct and personal interest the Sex

vices have in this matter, I recommend that the JCS receive a
briefing from the CIA on their effort in this axea so that we
may be confident this important humanitarian issue is Lecexv;

appropriate attention.

Copy to:
£Sh E. R{. ZULWALT,. JR, ’
CSAF Adoifafl, U.S. lavy

crMe
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FromHalll Attachment T

The following Stete Department Telegram
R 1514172 May 72

FM AMEMBASSY Vientisne
CICNPAC DOR POLARD

SUBJECT: STATUS OF PWs LAOS
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Date: - 18 August 1970

NORTH VIETNAM
- BRIEFING NOTES o . .

ON ”
BRIEFING BOARD NO. 8-70-1 o

INSTALLATION: BA VI Possible PW Camp, N-13

1

2s

3 LOCATION : 21-06-05N 105-25-05E

A, This lnstallation is located on the north side of Route

#213, 3.8 NM northeast of the peak of Mt. BA VI and 24.5 NM
west-riorthwest of Hanoi. 'The Xom Ap Lo PW Camp, N-51 (BE 0616-
01631), is located 5.3 NM to the northwest and the Son Tay PW
Camp, N-69 (BE 0616-04929) is located 5.3 NM to the northeast.

5. " Area "A", the possible PW compound, occuples an
area approximately . The compound
is reportedly surrounded by a barbed-wire fence, however, low
precludes confirmation. Area "RY,
to the south of the compound and
, 1s a possible messing facility believed to be
associated with the PW compound. Area "C", on the south side

of Route 213, is a possible Veterinary/Dairy Farm. S
6. iz zn obligue view of the fazcility
taken on 19 July 1970, 24 Gays aiter the briefing boeard

. The general appearance of the buildings and
grounda and the change 1n position of the threé vehicles
(annotation 15) in the 7 indicate this installation
is currently active.

7- This installation agrees most favorably in

location and description with a U.S. PW compound reportedly
observed during the period February 1966 to March 1968. Source
of the report stated that the installation was the "MOZEN" (MO
CHEN) coffee plantation until 1958 when it was converted to a
detention facility for captured French mercenaries. In 1962,

the French mercenaries were allegedly repatriated and/or released
to work on North Vietriggéle farms. In mid-1965, the installation
was reportedly activated as a PW camp for captured U.S. pilcts.
Other sources have reported the observation of a U.S. PW camp

EEA? b, Aﬁi 11
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'1nr5this"general vieinity during the period January 1966 to

January 1969. Zflthough it 1s believed that this installation
may have been a U.S. PW camp during that period, its current

status 'and occupancy cannot be verified. N IR

* ey
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Date: 23 February 1967
b NORTH VIETNAM :
’ BRIEFING NOTES o g W
ON ,
BRIEFING BOARD NO. 3-67-7 5

INSTALLATION: Ap Lo Possible PW Detention Installation N-51
LOCATION : €1 09 O7TN 125 22 28E

GENERAL : The installation is located approximately 7

statute miles south of the Jjunction of the RED and BLACK . .

Rivers; 2.75 statute miles southwest of the dam located at 21‘ "
19N 105 23E and .5 statute miles north of the AP LO Villege.

The installation consists of two walled compounds and what
appears . to be a group of support-type buildings. The most
northerly compound is about - & with a guard tower at
the northwest and southeast corners and a guard shack outside
the southwest corner. The entrance is centered in the west
wall. Outside. of the compound, and built into the southeast
corner of the wall, there is a small, walled area,

- which contains a building, DR . Inside the
compound there are 2 walls which connect to the east and west
outer walls and divide the compound into 3 areas. ®Each area
contains 3 buildings. Unconnected, blast-type walls separate
one building from ancther. ’

The " other walled compound, just southwest of the above, is

about - . It has a guard tower at the northwest and
southeast €0rners and one entrance centered in the east wall.
. A segregated area, 0 s located in the northeast

corner of this compound contains. one building about W
The rest of the compound is open and contains 4 buildings, 2
D ATH

Seven.buildings which appear to be support-type, are located
75 to 100 yards south of the most northerly compound and east
of the smaller walled compound. A trench system surrounds all

gflihis area except onéﬁpﬂ!!dlng which appears to be a mess
all.

mFFory 3
: 181
{Reverse Biank)
* R oA
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Date: - 24 Japuary 1968 -

NORTH VIETNAM ..

BRIEFING NOTES ' L
‘ ON
BRIEFING BOARD NO. 1-68-23 : R S,
1. .:;JINSEALLATION: ﬁog Ap Lo Ammunition Storage and PW Camp,
2. . . o Pprn : -
3. LOCATION ~: 2109 08N 105 20 31E ,

' ‘b, - Th:ls. brie:hng board updates and supplements previausly
- 1ssued Briei'ing Board No.. 3-67-7. .

5. This 1nsta11ation is confirmed as a detention area
holding U S.. ‘PHs. C o .

6., T mend7 Con o
November 1965 and : . 29 August 1967, reveals previously,..
unconnected .blast-type walls running north/south through Area :
T “have-now been connected to the east/west walls thereby
cqnpletely 1solating ea.ch building in the compound o

’ &

185 o
“‘:—w 4 - (Reverce Riank) : o A' ._”
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)ate: 23 March 1970
~ NORTH VIETNAM )
BRIEFING NOTES e
ON o
BRIEFING BOARD NO. 3-70-3 . ___
1. ~  INSTALLATION: Xom Ap Lo PW Camp, N-51
2. T ° 08 T ' o
3. °~  LOCATION : 21 09 08N 105 20 31E
4. °  This briefing board updates and supplements previously
jssued Briefing Boards(BB) No. 3-67-7 and 1-68-23. s

. In January 1967, this installation was initially
identified as a possible PW camp from fragmentary information
that a detentlon facility for captured U,S. personnel was
located approximately 65 kilometers west of Hanoi. At that
time, this installation was being maintained in the Basic
Encyclopedia (BE) as an inactive ammunition storage facility.
With the confirmation of this installation as a PW camp for
U.S. PWs, in April 1967, the facility was reactivated in the BE
as Xom Ap Lo Ammunition Storage and PW Camp, N-51

M 4o? ) ) resulted in the
conclusion that the facility was no longer used for ammunition
storage ané that caztegory was deleted from the BE and the name
of the imnstallation wes changed, as shown 1m paragreih 1. ciove.
6. _ ° The installation was confirmed as an operational PW camp
in"1965. Later reports indicated that it may have been
abandoried in early 1967. Recent information indicates the camp
‘was reactivated in late 1968. Photography tends to substantiate
these reported changes in the status of this facility:

a. Highly reliable reports received in early 1967
confirmed this facility was being utilized as an active U.S. W
camp as early as the fall of 1965. ALY of November 1965
(BB No. 3-67-7) reveals the installation operational with trails
and grounds around the buildings cleared of vegetation.

b. In mid-1967, ™ whs reported that 211 U.S. PWs at Xom
Ap Lo allegedly were moved into Hanoi. Irn addition, the U.S.
PWs released in August 1989 repcrted rumors that an unidentified

B . o . ) 169

000095 -

000015
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PW cémp, about 40 miles west of Hanoi, was closed in February
1967. Although not confirmed, the unidentified PW camp they
referred-to may have been Xom Ap Lo. Photography of gugust
1967 (BB No. 1-68-23) reveals a substantial decrease in.agt%vity
at Xom Ap Lo with trails and grounds around buildings evergrown
with vegetation. i R
 ¢. In late 1969, reliable sources reported U.S. PWs were
being detained in an unidentified camp in the vicinity of Xom
Ap Lo. _ wance - of 1969, used for this briefing board, . .
reveals the installation again operational with tralils and L e
‘grounds cleared of vegetation and new construction evident ' ,
since August 1967. :
7. (S) In view of the above, this installation is now RQeing -
carried as & currently active camp for U,S. PWs. s

8. (S) Describtion:

General: The installation covers an hY g o S

in the western part of Ha Tay Province. Xom Ap Lo, -
. 0.5 NM to the south, is the nearest identifiable village and .
sSon Tay, the administrative center for Ha Tay Province, is 9.5
NM due east. Prominent landmarks in the vicinity of the camp
are:Mt. Ba Vi (alt. 4,300 £t.) 6.0 NM to the south, the Black
River, 2.5 M to the west and a large, unidentified dam, 2.0 'NM.
. to the east. The camp consists of two walled compounds and a .
number of support facilities; the information listed below is
keyed to the annotations on the briefing board:

_a. Area "A": This area contains a walled cowmpound, about
R 1 with a guard tower at its southeast and north- .
‘west corners. Inner walls divide the compound into 9 squares
.giving it the appearance of a "tick-tack-toe" board. Each = .
square contains a single building. Outside the: southeast corner _
~of the . .conmpound, there is a small walled &area containing-a .-.~ .
single bullding. .Aismall thatched roof building surrounded by & -.
fence: is Just off the center of the east wall. o

A

~ b. Area "B": This walled compound is about - parR
o ~ wlith a guard tower at its southeast and northwest
corners. JInside the compound, two areas have been segregated
by inner walls - on ﬁaegthe northeast corner, and the second,
§!he :
e —‘f,i.

-

along the north wal h contains one building.
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. d. Area "C'": This area contains support and quarters-
type buildings which apparently are used by the camp cadre.

" ‘Additional evidence of incredsed activity at this facility is
“the new cdnstruction. -noted since 29 August 1967 (BB No._ R

1-68-23): | ;

, (1) Buildings annotated MY were first noted on
m{q.ﬁ., ~ of 20-October 1968 (Miss:_on GS. S63).

o (2) Buxldings annotated "2" were first noted on
R 'm'fu..n of 27 Janua.ry 1969 (Mission GS S103).

- (3) Buildings annotated "3" and the dam "4" were first
;_noted or TS By S used for this briefing board.

.
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“’pond’in the .southern part of the .installation have been
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Datey 7 February 1972

. NORTH VIETNAM
~ BRIEFING NOTES A

ON
BRIEFING BOARD NO. 8-71-857

1. - } iN:STgLLATION:' X0M AP LO :Pw Camp, N-51

2. . o aam I

3.' - LOCATION ~ : 21 09 08N 105 20 318 L
4, '.I‘hls briefing board updates and supplements previ ously

issued Briefing ‘Boards No. 3-70-3, 1-68-23, and 3-67—7.

-, I January 1967 5. this installation was initially
1dentiﬁed as a possible PW- canp from METRE informetion.
that a detention facility for captured U.,S. personnel was .
located approximately 65 kilometers from HANOI. -Highly rela.able -
“reports received in 1967 confirmed that this installation was .
v be.‘..ug6 utilized as an active U.S. PW Camp ‘as early as the fall

5. .

Y The installation appears to have reacted to the SON TAY
. SAR effort of 21 Nov 70. A few days after. the SON TAY SAR
reffort, ek . revealed newly constructed- perimeten
defenses, i. e.,. fight:mg trenches and Autodmatic Weapons - -
positions, arcundé 3om £ Io. while no such COﬂstructlon vas
noted around other mllltary facilities It is reasoneld iz
RA!LOI uas taking steps to thwart other possible SAR effcn ts to
.rescue U, S, PWs. -

. T. . The elght “fence-enclosed areas located a.round the sma.ll
constructéd since ‘September 1970. This and the construc tion in
. progress in Area B, in addition to the trails snd grounds . -

_ around ‘the buildihgs which are cleared of vegetation revaal
that the installation is still operational.
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* 21 Decsuber’ 1972

| "hone kilometer east of” Lao Cai City._.

e single entrance-centéred in the wvestern wa.ll._
- '.surveillanc:e of the detention e.reas.. '
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e : L

" 'INSTALLATION: LA CAT. FOSSTBLE PW.CNF, N-B0. 1 % -

ERe .’:ECOORDINATES 5% 29 san 103 “5g hgn'*’”""'""‘?'i__ o ‘}_":it "?Z j;,'

'h:. ’ This 1nsta.llat10n 1s located .5 }::llometers from the Chinese 'bo {

: '5. ‘I‘he compound is approximately l&OO x 300 feet, surrounded ‘by »é? wal‘.l. th

L 6.' | The mstallat:.on is operat:.ona.l with two posaible PW qua.rters and seven

o .support/storage buildings located within-the ‘compéund vells. " In-. a.ddition,

-+ cadre billets. and. support type’ buildings. are located in the immediaté: area
" outside the southern and western. wa.lls. The . facility- :|.s in an. isolated

location and is surrounded by rice fields ‘and scattered v1llages. The camp
'ha.s an, approx:.mate ca.paclty for 60 pnsoners. S . i el

L Te Several hearsay reports have sta.ted that .8 U’.Sw pnisoner of wa.r

' ..camp was 1ocated in the Lao Cei area. - The phys:.ca.l security barriers,“the
isolated location and the :mtenor containment walls’ segrega.ting the - possible

- PW quarters 1nd:.cate this is- a max:.mum securxty detention compound.

.....

Adetermned L ‘ T T

8. , Querles and/or comments on this product should 'be dlrected to DIA,
Attention: DI—6C . . .
. VL _ - '-f BELE
[¢ - - oo
-
. ‘.l N
. 000099 . . cmmtimn. |

00001 9
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Stenographic Transcript of
HEARINGS .
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DEPOSITION OF WILLIAM SULLMN
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1 TESTIMONY OF MAJOR GENERAL RICHARD SECORD, LAOS CHIEF OF
2 AIR, CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE AGENCY, 1966-1968; LAOS DESK

3 OFFICER, DEFENSE DEPARTMENT, 1972-1975

4 General Secord: Yes, sir. Well first let me just say

5 for the record that I had a lot of years of experience with

6 Laotian matters, as I think most of the committee knows. I

7. served in Central Intelligence Agency in the field in Laos for
8 1966, ‘67, and '68. And I was back there again, briefly, in

9 ‘69. And then I was the Laos desk officer in the Office of

10 the Secretary of Defense, International Security Affairs, for

11 . a while in ’72. And then by the time you’re talking about

12 here, I guess I was the head of the Southeast Asia Branch,

13 having been promoted to Colonel. |

14 So I served as a middle level officer during the time

15 that you are focusing on here. And I wish I could take credit
16 for that memorandum, because I think it’s a .good one, but it
17 only represented -- it was the input of a number of officers
18 who were working on this matter. And a memorandum of this

19 ‘nature to the Secretary of Defense himself would have had to
20 have been coordinated, as a minimum, with the Chairman of the

21 Joint Chiefs, and probably all the Chiefs. Roger Shields

22 undoubtedly chopped on this message, or coordinated I should
23 say. And probably a number of other DIA and others.

24 So I was an action officer and it was my job -- I'm sure

25 I was told by probably Assistant Secretary Eagleburger, after

* REPORTING COMPANY, INC.

17 OURTEENTH STREET, N.W.
s SUITE 400

f@_ﬁ/"‘ 4INGTON, D.C. 20005
000174 (202) 289-2260
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1§0
a SECDEF staff meeting would be my guess. When this was first
showed to me by your staff I didn’t remember it. You know,
there was a blizzard of memoranda.

And then when I read it I did remember it, but it was
unusual for us in my section to draft POW-type correspondence;
because we had an office for POW affairs. I believe that my
office was assigned the primary drafting responsibility in
this case because this memorandum was kind of operational in
nature rather than just an accounting kind of report.

Because, after all, it recommended a diplomatic track and
a military track. Which we knew, of course -- we could read
the papers too, those.of us who drafted it -- that the force
option would be one that would be hard for the decisionmakers
to take given the environment that existed iﬁ the country at
that time. Nonetheless, we thought it was feasible. So I
guess I part company with some who have testified who said
that they did not think that the force option was even
remotely available. We obviously felt it was.

But what was going on with respect to the POW’s is we
were tracking as carefully as we could all the intelligence
information available on POW’s, especially after it became
clear that there was going to be a Paris Accord. Because we
knew this would -- knowing the Vietnamese as we knew them, we
knew this was going to be a really tough -- a tough matter.

We also knew that the notion that there was a Pathet Lao,

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.
1111 FOURTEENTH STREET, N.W.
SUITE 400
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005
(202)289-2260
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1 as Ambassador Godley said -- you know they existed but they

2 didn’t have any power. The North Vietnamese army had them

3 completely in their control.

4 Vice Chairman Smith: Can I just interrupt.

5 General Secord: Yes. -

6 Vice Chairman Smith: I do not want to interrupt your

7 story at all, I just want to ask you a point right there. So
8 based on your tracking, then,.there were confirmed U.S. POW’'s
9 in Laos during the war.

10 General Secord: Indeed. You've mentioned some of their
11 names earlier this morning.

12 Vice Chairman Smith: Do you have any idea how many?

13 General Secord: No, sir, I can’t remember. But there
14 were a number of names that we knew with -- what do you know
15 for sure. I mean with reasonable certitude we knew.
16 For instance, the famous case of Hrdlicka and two others.
17 I had personal knowledge of that because I was involved in an
18 abortive attempt to rescue those guys back in late 66 or ‘67,
18 I think it was. You would have to go to CIA to get all those
20 cables, but there’s a raft of cables on that. We knew that
21 they existed alive because we had an agent inside. We knew
22 their names, we knew where they were.

23 Vice Chairman Smith: And I just want -- again for the
24 record, and again I apologize for interrupting your flow

25 there. When you say POW’s in Laos, a number, you are

ALDERSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.
1111 FOURTEENTH STREET, N.W.
SUITE 400
WASHINGTON, D.C. 2000S
000176 ((32 0002)) 21?80912. 21)25261?0
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General Secord: I’'m not so sure it conflicts with Roger -
Shields. I haven’t seen Dr. Shields in 20 years and haven’t
had the chance to discuss it with him.

With respect to the statements aﬁtributed -- that I have
heard here attributed to President Nixon, it does conflict
with it, yes.

Senator Grassley: Who was the dominant intelligence
collector for Laos, the CIA or the DOD?

General Secord: CIA, clearly, because of the resources
they had on the ground.

Senator Grassley: Who reported most of the information

on prisoners and missing, CIA or DOD?

General Secord: That’s a good question. I don’‘t know.
Maybe 50-50. '

Senator Grassley: Well, that probably makes it more
difficult for you to answer my next question. Who bears
responsibility for the lack of hard intelligence, then?

General Secord: The Director of Central Intelligence is
in charge of all the intelligence community.

Senator Grassley: Who should have the best information,
DIA or CIA?

General Secord: Well, Laos was a real weird war, you
know. The CIA was in charge of the war in Laos, not the
military. The military helped out a little bit on the side,

particularly through the provision of air assets, but the
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19!
military had very few people on the ground except for forward
air controllers, which were very good, and some air attaches.
Whereas the Central Intelligence Agency Qad several hundred
people on the ground in Laos.

Senator Grassley: So, then, you just can’t say that it
should be CIA or DIA that had the best information?

General Secord: The reason why I waffled on that is
because allot of the intelligence data came from the air, and
was reported by airmen who were in combat operations. And
that goes into the defense channel. But there was no -- I
mean, this wasn’t a turf battle that was going on out there b:
any means. We shared information constantly and as quickly a:
possible.

Senator Grassley: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

-Chairman Kerry: Thank you very much. General, if you
would also be available to us for any followup gquestions, we
would appreciate it.

Vice Chairman Smith: Let me ask one question while
Senator Dole is coming up?

General Secord: Does somebody want your paper back here
sir?

Vice Chairman Smith: General Secord, while Senator Dole
is coming up let me just ask you a question. Do you know of
any individuals who were lost in intelligence operétions in

Laos who did not turn up on anybody’s MIA or POW list, or
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1 experience and what it entailed?

2 A. I was experienced in the review of intelligence

3 reports beginning in 1962, in my first tour in Vietnam, with
4 what came to be known as U.S. Air Force Special Operations

5 Forces; and during assignments elsewhere with U.S. Special

6 Operations forces in the 1960’s:

7

8 Q. What types of intelligence reports were you

9 reviewing? I mean, on what subjects?

10 A. Virtually all that I could think of were related
11 to the war in Southeast Asia or the various conflicts we

12 were dealing with elsewhere in the world, insurgencies.

13 Q. Before the time that you joined the Pentagon in

14 1972, did you have.any experience or training in the subject
15 of casualty accounting or accounting for lost personnel?

16 A. No.

17 Q- None of the intelligence reports that you had ever
18 reviewed, either as a detailee at the CIA or in any other

19 position, referred to prisoners of war or mea who were
20 missing in action?
21 A. Oh, many, constantly.
22 You’re earlier guestion was did I have any
23 training in the subject of insurgency.
24 Q. Oh, I'm sofry. I thought I‘'d asked you whether
25 you had any training or experience.
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a bunch of experts. God save me from experts when they send
them from Headquarters in time of war.

We spent quite a bit of time, some wéeks,
analyzing this, that, and the other area. They even built a
big model, plastic model, back at Headquarters, of the so-
called, the POW site.

Then it was decided that we ought to try and have
a hi-op first, METHe

AMUETVOD

There was great fear that there would be -- you know, I may
sound critical, but‘these are always delicate, difficult,
judgment calls, tactical calls that you had to make. You
might decide to do it one way and I might decide to do it a
different way. It .was decided by higher authority to
attempt MWD ' Udorn opposed that.
But there was great fear that. one or more of the prisoners
would be killed in our raid. That’s always a concern.
Something went awry and the camp went dead on us.
Photography showed very quickly e
rMgTeD that it was no longer active. We sent
some people there and it was gone.
These three were never repatriated.
Q. They did not come back at Homecoming?
A. They did not. I remember checking that one out.

Q. Were they under Pathet Lao control, do you

000036
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1 that troubles me as an analyst, and that is the issue of
2 correlation. At some point in this problem,.&3 I’ve
3 described it to you, this becomes a long-term problem, and a
4 white man in a jungle is an anomaly who has no face and no
5 name for any practical purposes, or he may have a Lao name,
6 or a Vietnamese name.
7 (Discussion off the record.])
8 BY MR. McCREARY (Resuming):
9 Q. Have you followed what I was driving at so far?
10 A. Sure.
11 Q. Were any operations ever conducted to try to --
12 let me rephrase that.
13 Was it always necessary to have identified the

A 14 : loss before an operation, to have identified the person in a
15 karst or in a cave to begin planning an operation for a
16 rescue?
17 A. We did not have any dedicated rescue teans. .i'm
18 referfing only to CIA now.
19 Q. I understand that. Let me rephrésx.
20 If you had had what you consider reliable
21 reporting of Americans kept in Mahaxay, in Laos --
22 A. We did, as a matter of fact.
23 . Q. -- but you didn’t know their names, but you were
24 90 percent sure they were American pilots, would you
25 consider a raid to rescue them, based on that information?

.
o
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A. Not only would we, we did launch a raid.

o Would you amplify, please, and give me the year?

A. I think it was late 1967. It could have been
early 1968. They all run together. It’s a long time ago.

Qe I understand, and I'm not holding you to any
precision. But the details interest me.

A. We thought we knew for a long time —-.and'you’re

an intelligence person, so you know, you think you know
certain things. Sometimes you find out what you thought you
knew was not gquite as factual as you thought it was. Like
they say, you never know what you don’t know. But we
thought we knew with fair degree of, high degree of
probakility, that there was a significant POW camp or
holding point near the Ho Chi Minh Trail in the vicinity of
Mahaxay, as I recall, but to be more barticular, it was
north of Route 912 and east of 96, near, not to far from,
you know, between Mugia Pass and Bankaral Pass. It was
logical there would be such a facility, since a lot of
pilots were shot down over the Ho Chi Minh Tr.%in, more than
over North Vietnam, I believe, or at least as many.

We had all kinds of reports, but we could never
identify it in photography. We couldn’t pin it down with
other means. But we had a big, you know, we didn’t need a
map. Everybody had it in their minds. This was a

cautionary area that we needed to not forget.
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by M. 1 would say the most important position was the

e M e e

2 chie{ of staff{ of minister of defense, and after then first ,

secretary, because the chief of staff of minister of defense,

[\

4 as I saicd bhefore, everything would go to minister Efqm-ﬁoreign

wn

countries, especially Soviet Union, would go through my hand:

-"a

6 FEverything what goes through government, pdlitburo, defense ’
7 council, 1 prepare. ' L
E i had special office which was Secretariat of the ;
) éefense council, which has all the documentation in their .
10 hands. And, of course, I had those section which taXe care

about guests of minister, visitors, mostly Soviets, but any

-
o

12 visitors from any country. So I cthink there I had most

3z information which anybody could have.

14 Q. Ané your resume indicates you were chief of sctaff to
15 the minister of defense --

ig » Pight

7 o -- in 195s.

i€ n. ®might.

15 Q. #ow long did you serve in that position?

20 A Unti) 1964 -- 8 years. And after then I was the

21 First Secretary of che Comunist Parcy.

22 And from there -- I want to finish this -- from that:
2z position, chief of staff of minister of defense, I was .
z4 secreétary of the defense council, which again I have to

z< repeat, ot hecause I was secretary but because the power of”

T
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_ 1 the committee, the collegium of ministry, had meeting every
) 2 week, the defensec council approximately every 2 weeks.
3 : The members of{ the defense council were seven
4 members: First secretary and president of Czechoslbyakia was
5 chairman; prime minister was member; minister of'defenéc,
G minister of Interior, which is like Soviet KGB; the chief f -
7 state planning cosrnission was member; and deputy to first
8 secretary, sccond secrectary of the party.
9 Are they seven already or I forgot somebody? Bu:
i0 they were seven of the most important members in the’
11 hierarchy. .
12 Q. In the hierarchy of the Communist Party, where ic
13 first secretary?
) 14 A Well, the {irsc secretary is the most powerful mun,
' 15 or was, in the country, because without him nobody can do
1€ anything, especially military. Heé was also chairman of thwe
17 defense council, of course, and without him you cannot do
1€ anything, you know? Minister was in his office every Mouday.
16 1 report that was going on, he give me order what to do. 39
20 he was the most imporcant person.
21 Q. Did you have access to sensitive information in «ll
22 of these positions that you've detailed?
23 -h. Absolutely. The highest secrecy.
24 Q. Did you have access to infommation on
25 Czechoslovakian military activicies outside of Czechoslow:kia?
Fe .-":-.- 2 T .:.s ~ -
»
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! AL Yes, because most of these things must go through {
Y :
’ 2 the- defense council. It was not just some individual activity
a n! somn~ agent. But if it means every important activity, :
4 Yike, lmi’'s say in Korea or other places in whole world, .

2 Lrained couriers and all these things, of course it goes to *

T ey

' é¢eflonse council.

7 C. And your access to this material was by reviewing
£ messages and papers and discussions? ;
< AL Sure. Plus I was sitting there, and when they ;
10 discuss it I make notes. After then I must type it. It must
13 co back to the minister, he sign it, §o with that to'~
12 presicdent, like chairman of the council. He signed it, and I
13 cdelivered it to members of the defense council or anybody who
\ 14 cor orcder from defense council to do something -- foreign
18 minister, anybody who was involved.
pys . Oray. You said your highest rank was major general?
) . ®ight.
i E . Is that a two-star general?
e - One
20 o One
21 A One.
2z 0. So the U.S. equivalent would be a brigadierpgenera}?:_
z3 A I think correct.
25 0. Next, I want to ask you some questions about your
zs woswtion as the de s& gsecreLary. How did you become the -~
Loy,

4 Mnran

i Uit
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1 secretary of the deiense céuncil?
: 2 A. Because -- I have to explain it. Officially, who
3 was secretary was minister of defense. I was the -- I don't
4 know how to say that in English -- I was the guy who did
S everything, who prepared everything, sitting in dcténse
6 coﬁncil, make notes, and they changed someéhing because to
7 defense council goes the -- everybody must, £or anything,
8 mobilization or whatever, for an activity, present it to
S defense council some documents.
10 So when thev go through, usually we have like 12,
11 maybe 15 documents which defense council must approv'e-, and the
12 session was always afternoon. And if they changed anything, I
13 make notes. After then, I had a special staff for defense
14  council which was in the secretaria: of ministry of defense,
“) 15 special guard. And when it was done, I must go through again
16  and sign it and deliver it to everyone who was concerned.
17 That is why 1 say I think it was many times Russians were
18 present and they delivered some. orders.
19 Q. hnd you were in this position from 1956 to 19647
20 A. Right.
21 Q. For 8 years.
22 A. Right.
23 Q. Okay. Was membership in the Communist Party
24 recuired for this position?
25 Al Oh, absolutely. Absolutely. )
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1 Q. Is this a government position or a party position?

2 A It was the party government, because if you camn go

K] to Czechoslovakia, you see the documents which the defense

4 council passed, the defense council said to ministefxof. ..
5 health, to minister of foreign affairs. They givZ them ordéf.
6 Same like politburo is party, but they givé ordér‘to e
7 averybody. You know, nobody can move without them.

£ Later on, when I was already here, they changed the -
& namne and make it the highest council of the -- of_thg defense
10 of the country, or something like that. They tried to make it
13 lecal, because people complained it was actually illegal under
12 parily. It was not under constitution, it was -- but who:.can
13 compleain at that time?
14 G. i‘d like to focus on when you were there. In the
1S relationship between the Government and the party, which was
1L the most imporcanc?
17 A To me? The party. The parcty was power.
lg 0. The party, in essence, controlled the Government?
x¢ . Absolutely. Absolutely.
20 G- During these 8 years that you were in this position,
21 would you describe the main individuals or the main
22 cepartments that you worked with, be they the Communist Party ~ _
) or the military? Who did you have the most contact with

24 dering these - -

z% A. well, the.‘%:\'?%g ‘11’\?’2‘1’."[‘::&:15 was, as they call ic, -
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. 1 administrative department. But they changed name many times
.
’ 2 because it was cover name. They were department A, after then
3 department 11, aflter then department 14, and finally the namn
4 was Administrative Organs Department. So if you hear‘ig You .
5 would think they take care of some administration”or work.
’ 6 But it was the department which controlled military forces,
7 everything that was related to defense, intelligence, and
8 contracting. Generally, they controlled ministry of defense
9 and ministry of the interior. oo
10 And 1 forgot to say before, last 4 years, I was also
11 member of that department. I was firét secretary of.the party
12 at the ministry of defense, and member of the department.
13 Q. So this would have been from 1960 to 19642
14 h No, from ‘64 to '68.
15 0. Oh, okay.
16 Al I mean, from ‘84 -- ‘64 to '68. Sorry. ‘B4, i was
- 17 already here. It was the most important because these peocple
18 are so powerful they even discuss if minister should be firad
19 or not. What can I tell you?
20 Q. You indicated that you attended meetings. Who did
21 you write reports for, or who did you report to?
22 A Well, when I was chief of staff of minister to .
23 minister or defense council or this department. Those were.
24 the three major.
-  q s : L . -
25 Q. ~IE you f§a¥£%%£?¥i%?x%§e ﬁff?, xnsider? Would you
y
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classifly yourself as an insider in the Government and in the
party during this time in Czechoslovakia?

M. Yes, I do. It means you are in.

MR. STIEN: Off the record. . -

(Discussion off the record.)

THE WITNESS: Yes.

BY MR. ERICKSON:

0. Next, I‘'m going to go to information on POW’s. 1In
your interview with our investigators, you scated.tpac you had
knowledge about POW treatment during the Korean and ?iecnam
Wars, is that correct? '

A Right. :
Q. And you met with two investigators from our

committes approximately a month ago?

pd
<

2s.

0. Would you describe -- did you contact them, or did

P They contact me through DIA.

Q. In the interview, and in your book Red Cocaine, you

cescribe Czechoslovakian medical support to the North Koreans.

)v
-u
Q
-
(‘r

Q. I apologize for having you repeat a lot of |
information that vou‘ve written about and given, but that’s.
the nature of a deposition, so would you describe for the

record what type ’¢egacal support Czechoslovakia gave to the
N S TS
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AFTERNOON SESSION
(1:00 p.m.}
Whereupos,
JAN SEJMA, . e

the witness on the stand at the time of recess, having been

previously duly sworn, was further examined and testified a§‘2

{0llows:
EXJUZINATION BY COUNSEL FOR THE SELECT COMMITTEE (RESUMED)

2Y MR, ERICKSON:

- -

Q. General, once again is there any tescimony'chac you

have civen previously that you would like to change or modify

i any way?

3
AR

G.

investica

cl 23 each

ané Then on ro the Soviet Union.

HLatenenty

h.
Lecause 3

<.

.

({4
o

cors,

2 orher oo

No.

I'm going to shift to the Vietnam War POW issue now.
In your interview with two of our committee

vou stated that you recall two to three groups
n, U.&. POW's taken from Vietnam to Czechoslovakia,

Do you recall making such a

D
rd

Yes. I thinx I said 20 to 25. Not exactly 25,
‘m npot sure if it was 25 or 24.
what years did these trips take place? - -

i think first one was end of ‘65, or beginning ‘66.°

‘£¢. nnd the last one which I saw was the

INC.
O\JPTZEI'T“ STREET, h L
SUITE <00
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005
(202)289-2260
(8060} FOR DEPO

PR
L

RN, X ) “mhv"—w‘

.

R I

« V. et
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1 Q. And each one of these groups would have been roughly

20 to 25 American POW’s?

A Yes.
4 Q. Did you see the American POW's yourself? . °
5 A.  Yes. ‘f"
(3 Q. What was your duty at the time? .And did it changé"

from 65 to ‘67, or were you in the same position?

8 A. I was in the same position.

0. Which was?

10 A. Pirst secretary of the Communist Party to minister

of defense.
And how were these American POW’s transported from

12 Q.

Vietnam to Prague?
Soviet airplanes, they escorted them, Soviets and

14 A.

Counterintelligence took them to the

Czechs together.

And three quys, or four guys I‘m not

facility, and that‘s it.

sure, they wait in Pragque. They were the gquys who were

18 actually the interrogators, because they already worked with

them when they stay in Prague.

20 Q. Approximately how many days or how many hours did.

they stay in Prague?

- v o=

22 A. $ to 7 days, no more.

23 0. And what was the reason or rationale to bring them

24 from Vietnam to Prague, rather than straight to the Soviet

4 M, T T8

3"‘::."?'.' o e ';.' r

CH * * 3

LR P ° .
) <) IR

) ALDERSON REPORTING , INC.
V. 1111 POURTEENTH STREET, N.W.

? SUITE 400

: HASHINGTON, D.C. 20005
(202)289-2260
{800) FOR DEPO

25 Union?
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] arec wrong or right, never.

2 0. Werce you able to speak English at this time, or did

-t

vou have an interpreter?

4 AL Interpreter. e e
S 0. Were you given a polygraph at this timé?
8 H Yes. -
? 0. was there ever any correspondence written to
k discredit you as a source of information?
g M. I don’'t know. ’ oo
10 0. Then I trust you don’t have any copy of ani
11 correspondence that you're aware of?
1z A Xo, no.
13 C. I believe you indicated that DIA hired you in 1981.
i4 is that correct?
'J 18 A I think on April 7.
14 0. 0f 19817
X7 . ves .
tE . #gw did you com2 to work for DIAR?
19 N I was recruiced.
20 0. Do you know who was responsible for hiring you and
z1 why?
22 A No. - -
23 0 Do you believe that DIA trusted your information?
re P wel), they say ves, if ic is true.
*< 0. Di¢ any DIA officer ever ctalk to you about your )

SUITE 400
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20009
{202)289-2260
{300) FOR DEPO

o
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RPTS STEIN
DCMN MAYER

HEARING ON POW/MIA ISSUES

Tuesday, October 1, 1936

House of Representatives,
Subcommittee on

Military Personnel,

Committee on National Security,

washington, D.C.

The subcommittee met, pursuant to call, at 11:25 a.m. -in

Room H-405, The Capitol, Hon. Robert K. Dornan [chairman of

thg subcommittee] presiding.
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ask them to make troubles to anybody

The congress has got nothing to do with this now the
important thing is that at this point you are profqerlnq
some information that need to be investigated and if the
congress was here or the congress wasn’t here I‘d still
be asking -you the same guestions.

i : ital was
Source: I cannot belilieve Dot s not know the hospi
there in Korea for example I can‘not believe that you
know it is not outdoors but you it was there the
hospital functioned you know for twenty years

Bob: There is one other critical area that we need to get

into this morning and that is At THE meeting you had a

- week or so ago people from the senate i wan;t there but
it is my understanding that you also spoke to .
information that you had on the movement of american
prisoners from vietnam to czechoslovakia and russia.
I’d like you to tell - without me prodding with a lot of
guestions give me your summary of what you know and then
we can talk about it

Source: Well then first of all when I was again‘you ask me if it
was twenty or twenty-two in one group i can not tell
them but in 19 in ah when I was =>

i was in charge about all the military
buildings, barracks and others through very good hall
friends from Marshal Gritckos was superior to the
counter intelligence bureau for general in Prague very
good simple soldier . Generally the soviets I don‘t
know if it is also true through other Eastern bloc
countries I think maybe also through East Germany
because from this point of view the Soviet know there
was really good security for Romania and Bulgaria you
never know but ah then czech of course so what they did
always they tried to cut the way to soviet union with
this important operations and stop into Prague maybe
also somewhere else I don‘t know ah I understand they
also used North Korea, I don‘t know, so I was in charge
about this this building nobody can put anything
through the villa or barracks if I don‘t know because
I must given key and immediate access so I remember a

few times when the military intelligence and contractors
they were in charge

bob: Czech

Source: Yea for the security when they were in Prague they ask
for for ah this house building I just assumed from how

many rooms they need how many people there are so it is
what I assume

000055

000118
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Bob;
Source:
Bob:
Source:
Bob:

Source:

BOB:
Source.

Bob-
Source:

BOB:
Source:
BOB:'
Source:
Bob:
Source:

BOB:

Source:

Bob:
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So it‘s a room count that you remember

Yea

The counter intell

I never go to the soldiers

Did you ever see them

Yes because I was supplied I never meet personally but
because I had special department that supplied them with
uh food and cook/ chef to cook there themselves you this
maybe good for these people who did it are still alive
you I thlnk I call last week my my stepson which is

of the receipts cause he signed for them cause if
anything to do and he will do that He is a good country
boy if these people for example who supplied the uh
vietnamese with everybody else with the food and
everything they care about uh means all take them to
2?2?27 central military hospital ,and gru, and counter
intelligent and after gru they continue to Soviet Union

How many days would they have been in Prague normally
Just approximately one week five days only

So they would have been in contact with the counter
intell guys, plus medical personnel

Or gru specidl medical personnel people who were
attached

Attached to which facility
Special clearance

What what medical facility do
The - Pl _ 2
Okay

There the people who had the drugs also

You you do you remember actually seeing these American
prisoners yourself

SEORETAGFON

Sure

Everytime

000056
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Bob:

Source:
Bob:
Source:
Bob:

- Source:

Bob:
Source:
Gary:
Source:
gary:
Source:
Gary:
Source:
Gary:

Source:

Gary:

Source:
Gary:

Source:
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Uh I can t say everytime

How many times do you remember, not that you saw them
How how many times do you have information about where
American prisoners were moved through Prague uh to
Russia

Uh I would say three four times

In groups of how many

20-22

And they stayed for about a week each time

Yes

Anything else besides medical checks done at the central
military hospital - -

No the soviets did everything like interrogating or
something we didn’‘t do

How often did that happen how , when one group came how
long before another group came

Uh I would say one time I think it was like three months
period but I would say six months period

How long before you came out of sp was the most
recent time Ehat you saw a bunch of American pws
Uh you mean the last

The last time you saw them

Last time I would say 67

Okay

The spring

Would you say the three or four groups then went through
there 65-67

yes

Is that reasonable

Yea

26
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30 December 1980

RADM J. O. Tuttle, Assistant Deputy Director for Defense Inteiligenc;
(DI) Phonecon 24 Dec 80; same subject, mecting 1300 hours, 30 Dec 80,

RADM Tuttle's meeting was held as scheduled, 1300-1500, 30 Dec 80.

: chrcscnt;tives from DIA (4), CIA (2) and NSA (4) attended.
‘for attendces.

57

on American ‘PW facilities and sitings in Laes.

;that American POW's remain in Laos.
"NSA representatives do not have to

Early Deccmber 80 case of 20 American POW's reported in

-

;ub%tantlate the case.

3.

Overhead photography of facility conflivms ptféén like structures and fence.
facility may hold prisoncers, but that it is h:vhly unllkely the

Sce Inclosure

RADM Tuctle reviewed DIA photo and report chronology (Mar 79-Dec 30)

, and not corrohorated is typical.

- prisoners are American.

-

exaninat {on,
.§of Ho Chi Minh Cicty, which contained American POW's.

11191IN 1062010E. Le Ba Oanh has drawn an accurate sketch of the facal;ty (verified

-

RADM Tuttle has a strong suspicion

December

‘SO case is a fraud, and vicw American POW's in Laos- as unlikely.

~ -
.

DIA has a Victnamese source (Le Ba Oanh) who has passcd a polygraph

and claims to have been in a prison facility ncar Tay Ninh, Northwest
The POV camp coordinates are

by overhcad ‘photography) which he claims to have visited as rccently as® August 80,

wvhen he observed American POW's.
approximately 10 days scartxng on 7 Jan 81.

I.e Ra Oanh will be interrogatced bytDIK for
The DIA analyst has detected

discrepancies in the source's story, aud items will be addressed dur:ng the

\xntcrrogatxon period.

%,

s.
is to'be formed. The group composilion will be:
DIA and SEA sub-committce.
DIA and NSA chronology of PW/HIA events, howecver,
.said the request needs further DIA deflinition before NSA inputs are required.

DIA request for NSA time line inputs will be through NCRDEF office.

RAD3 Tuttlc announced that in January 31,

a MY/MIA interagency group
State Department, ISA, JCS/J-S,

Egrly,in the meeting, RADM Tuttle stated he wanted a
the DIA action officer (P. MNurc)

The

-~

The DIA analyst handling lLe Ba Oash's interrogation was recquested

6.
:o provide his initial report. Tf the report is releasable,
€ 4 =~ NSA via NCRUFF office.

Esto. 78

the document will

EXHIBIT

| _omposs
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DEFENSE INTELLIGENCE AGENCY

WASHINGTON OC 20301

T e e g ke

$-9073/p1-7
MEMORANDUM FOR THE CHAIRMAN, JOINT CHIEFS OF STAFF

SUBJECT. urrent U S. Prisoner of War InteI]igence

S . . AEs yeu-are aware,-there -are’ approxfmate1y 2 SDO Amer1cans A, SR

. 7 unaccounted-for- in“Southeast Asid. "Since 1975, DIA has receivéd approxi-
T matelri 000 reports from Indochinese réfugees concerning- alleged si ghtmgs "
.of Americans, crash-locations, grave ‘Tocations, and the handl{ng and
~disposition-of U.S. remdins. . Of these, 1,000 reports, approximately - -
*-300 deal with The alleged first hand sfghting of U.S. PWs. deta1ned in ¢
‘Southeast Asia. ' .

Since April 1979, DIA has been investigating information
§rﬂvided by a refugee who alleged the detention of U.S. PWs in Laos. -
In November 1980, CIA provided information which corroborates the refugee's
report. Overhead imagery has verifted the existence of a detention facility
at the alleged site. At enclosure is a chronological 1isting with tabs,
which support the belief that U.S. PWs may be detained in Laos.

34 On 17 Janvary 1981, DIA requested that CIA attempt to
confirm the presence of U.S. PNs in Laos. The details of CIA intentions
are contained 1n the enclosure. As the possibility exists that CIA could
confirm these reports, I recommend that you.consider preparing a contingency
plan in the event this very important undertaking proves successful. To

- support this effort, I will request that CIA prepare a topographica] model
of the site and surrounding area. -

4. As DIA is also investigating other reports alleging the detention
of U.S. PWs in Southeast Asia, it is necessary that DIA (DI) remain the
focal point for all intelligence activity relating to this matter. We
will continue to obtain imagery of this facility and provide timely
information to you concerning the progress of the CIA m7T = .

1 Enclosure
Chronglogical Listing

qud”lh ’ ';7"£E;___
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CHRONOLOGICAL LISTING

SUBJECT: Nhommarath Detention Facility

% T , an. 1-7,.- Apr.ﬁ 1979,.a Lao .:refuge'g'-m.‘.otg..a letter to Gen .. R
yang Paa. in Montana which contained.U.S.. PW ipformation. He indicated.” . et

. i that I8 U.S. PWs and 25 Lao.prisoners wére detained in a cave neai Muong .

Nhommarath, Xhammouane Province (due east of NKP Thailand). The prisoners
were reportedly moved to this location from northern Laos on 10 March

1979. ™ .

2. During subsequent DoD interviews (Oct 79 and Feb 80), the
- pefugee reported that the above PWs, and a separate group consisting of
two U.S. PNs, one Australian, and one Japanese.were held in caves in the -
.. .~ vicinity of Kham Keut, approximately 70. kms, from Mhommarath,. He:provided . °. .
¢ -5 os. assKetch of “the deteptidn.area...One month- after his initial DoD inter~ 7. v .-~
. viéw,. the refugee reportéd to a Lao.associate the detention of U.S. PWs at -
™" "Muong Nhommarath. - - - - . o

.-, 3. ) ). Imagery. from July 1979 indicated that a tave éentrane-is. - .. -~
located approximatély -500 -meters from the location'at which:'the two U.S. -
PWs, the Japanese and the Australian were reportedly detained. A cave
entrance could not.be located at the location at which the 18 U.S. PWs
were reportedly detained. However, heavy foliage in-that-area offers the
-possibility that the cave entrance could exist but was obs ured.

4, During September/October 1980, the refugee was re-
fnterviewed and polygraphed. The examiner opined that he was reporting
information which he believed to be accurate and that he had not con-
spired with any person to provide false information. The refugee identified
the source of his PW i{nformation to be a Lao resistance fighter. Efforts
to locate the resistance fighter are ongoing.

5. .. . On 18 November 1980, CIA reported (TAB A) that it had
received information concerning the alleged detention of 30 U.S. PWs at
Muong Nhommarath. The information was received from a highly reliable
Thai source who had received it from an untested Lao subsource. On_21
January 1981, CIA reported that the Lao sub-source advised that U.S. PWs
had been moved from Nhommarath to Kontum, Vietnam. Additional informa-
tion 1$ being sought.

6. Imagery (TAB B) from 10 December 1980 indicates the

presence of a detention facility at a location southeast of Muong Nhommarath.
Imagery indicates this facility did not exist in Apri) 1978 (TAB C) and :
was partially completed by September 1979 (TAB D). Further, examination

of imagery from 10 and 30 December 1980, and 2 January 1981 reveals that

the number “52" has been stamped in the dirt in the row crop area located
between the camp inner and outer fencing, in a location not apparently
observable from either of the two guard towers (TAB E). Imagery of.

30 Decesber. 1980 indicates the presence of approximately 25 persons in.

the "{nnér compound “and iagery” of 24 January 1981 fndicates” thé presence
00F1¢fne {9) probable persons; 4 in the inner compound and five {n the

outer compound (TAB F). OOOOGO
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7. On 17 January 1981, DIA requested that CIA conduct an:. .
oper&tﬂma‘lnsfde Laos’ in an attempt to verify the presence’of” ll"S"PHs“ at
... thfs¥factlity: - CIA has_agreed ‘to undertake this. operation, and is: . :

"e
.
PR
.

| o 'm&THOD

o . .. . . .
ce "« . e . . LI P S ‘-
.

TAB~ A CIA Memordndum dated l8 uoyember 1980 K
"B = 10 December 1980 Imagery - .o
- C-= April 1978 Imagery . . . . . L. =
. D'=-September 1979 Imager,y e e e e
E < Varioysly.dated Imagery R L o R

F =24 January- 1981 Imagery

000109 = ~
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| EXHIBIT
TO: Bill g
FROM: Bob T. ? (7
DATE: 5 December 1991
SUBJECT: Post 73/75 Military Operations - Don Gordon
] On 5 December, I spoke by phone with Mr. Don Gordon, former J-2

(Intelligence Officer) for the Joint Special Operations Command
(JSOC) in 1981l. JSOC was then, and still is today, the joint
(inter-service) command authority for special operations units
such as Delta (Army) and Seal Team-Six (Navy). As the J-2 of
JSOC, Mr. Gordon was involved in planning for the 1981 Nhom

- Marrot operation. He recounted the following:

3 In early 1981, around January, JSOC had lzen alerted to a
possible rescue attempt in Laos for American POWs and had formed
a small team to begin planning. It was obvious that the higher
levels in the Pentagon had sensitive intelligence and that they
wanted time to evaluate it. He recalled that at some point they
obtained overhead photography of the suspect camp, showing what
was interpreted to be a "52" stomped into the grass nearby. He
recalled this created speculation that this might be a signal
from POWs, perhaps associated with the POW tap code, a Rivet
Joint collection aircraft that was lost in Laos, or a B-52 crew.
They also had conflicting intelligence that this might be a
Vietnamese Army camp.

‘7 By April, the Pacific Command was actively involved in planning

/ and a 10-15 man PACOM planning team was working with JSOC.
Gordon also recalled a special KH satellite mission being tasked
to collect on the suspect camp. A scale model of the camp was
constructed at the Navy Yard and brought down to Fort Bragg where
a "facsimile” model was made. He specifically recalled that
overhead photography could make out what was written on a large
sign over the entrance of the camp. He thought it said something
in Laotion like "Through your labors, you will be free."

L& Gordon remembered that an interagency meeting was held in April

JSOC, JCS, CIA, and NSA attended.

&4 r 1o . commander of JSOC, told his CIA

— : he "wanted round eyes to look at
000110 _ was mounted. Gordon could not

remember the CIA Off';(‘.'i;1 . hnut e33A hAa ceam v L .. .000062
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CE) In fact, General Scholts had first argued that Delta should
perform the recon. However, when CIA insisted it_had :
jurisdiction over the recon, and that it be done with non-U.S.
personnel, Scholts demanded that the team have at least one
American. CIA agreed they would have an American accompany the
team. Gordon recalled it was a Marine Corp officer working for
the Agency, although he did not have his name. As far as he
knows, he led the team but cannot confirm it. CIA left the
meeting saying it would take 6-8 weeks to prepare for the

mission.

& Gordon described the CIA run miss:on as ineptly organized and

ill-equipped. He recalls that they were equipped with a World-
War II era radio. He stated they had no Direction Finding (DF)
equipment.

He thought the mission was over by June, but received little
feed-back on the results. He learned they had observed the camp
for two hours, or two days, depending on “who you talk to" and
took photographs, which reportedly contained no indication of
Americans. When he asked to see the pictures, he said he was
refused. He said the operation essentially ended there, and
remembered being surprised at how fast interest dropped.

x Gordon also provided a number of names of individuals
involved in various aspects of the 1981 operation. We will
pursue those leads, especially General Scholts and other

participants of the April interagency meeting.

000111
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To: Bob Taylor
Subject: MFR on Interview of Lar s
-—=- Message Contents —-—-cceccec—--

MFR: On 20 July 1992, I conducted a taped interview of Larry
Waters, former CIA case officer in Bangkok, 1978 - 82. I
had arranged to have him come in regardlng his involvement
with the Nhom Marrot operation of 1981. Waters was the-
officer in charge of renning the CIA recon team and was
involved in the team debrief, when it returned.

- - -

To summarize, Mr. Waters said he did not recall the team
bringing back evidence to support the presence of POWs at
the camp. He could "not recall" when asked, the cable sent
from Bangkok station to HQs, saying that two members of the
team said they saw one, repeat one possible caucasian, &
thought they had photographed him, but could not £i.d the
photo after it was developed. He could not recall nor
explain the cables existence at CIA HQs. -

His interview tape is on file at Senate Security.

R. Taylor 21/7/92

EXHIBIT
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SUBJECT: Chronology of [JAnalytic Bfforts Related to the POR/MIA Issue

Aug 77-Dec 78 - All previous[_ ]
. " (reflactions of U.S. prisoners of war) was tcviewad.
Over 900 itexs sanitized, edited and passed to DIA
for rolease to POH/!IIA, families.

Mid-late Jul 79 [T requested we search our [ | f11es bsck to
. : 1 Jaguary 1977 for references to POWs.

Aug-Sep ' mrogﬁ.ate[]analyts searched[ [files! !
. for | .

ssoe period with negative results. ERoutinme inclusion
of POW/MIA-associated terms in machine SCAN process
inftiated during thic period.

23 Nov 79 - |
——

} = negative results.

12 Dec 79 ]
] proposed that NSA and DIA

work together on a forwal continuing basis on POW/MIA
issne. ~

10 Jan 80 |
I briefin on POR's

in SEA. |

Esh_ g0
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| E—— l ] requested any data [J bolds cn

Cubans reportedly serving as m.ﬂ_t_g_':ﬁnm_dm_l
Vietusm war. | ] furnished ldet

possible refs to Cubans in Vietnaa. |____[no data
on this.

- 1 Dec 80 Jtop prierity

{ j4 Dec 1980 in hopes of
information on collaterally reported movexeat
of U.S. POW's from Udousal Provinee to Vientiare.

Negative Regults.

4 Dec 80 |
. . | serfous reservations about
its sccuracy quickly developed.

30 Dec 80 CIA, NSA, DIA- representatives wmeet
aod he” presents photos of Lao and Viet sites reportedly
containing U.S. POWs. CIA representatives express doubts
about validity of reports and state that the earlier
report of U.S. POV being moved to Vientisne is a fraud.
DIA urges'~mwnivo operation-against Nhoasarath, laos
site to confirm or disprove presence of U.S. personnel.

Jan 81 Series of exchanges among CIA, DIA, NSA,
seeking to agsure tha L possible
wmeasures to collect any of POWs in
£ + Sode ad justments
with negative results regarding

—— T s !

16 Mar 81 | a tean will go . el
inte Laos to investigate Fhoumarath site in about - ' T >

three weeks vhen another team comes cut of Laos and
is debriefed.
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% May 81 . E:_:]ten had exited Laos on 13 May.
18 May 81 [ lteam reports mo caucasian prisoners.
(Photos confirm tesm's debrief subsequently).

22 Jun 81 advises :izat no_further specia) effort re 1
1 [ ]
to discuss™non proposai~!for reestablishment of an
interagency POW/MIA working group. First meeting
tentatively scheduled for late Jul-early Aug.
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Troubling Evidence on Vietnam POWs

Are the numbers higher than we were told?
By Peter Cary and Fred Coleman
11/2293

Late on a crisp Washington aftemoon, exactly one waek bafore Veterans Day, an
unlikely trio stepped into the carpeted White House office of Anthony Lake, President
Clinton's national security adviser. One was Carol Hrdlicka, just in from Kansas, the
wife of an Air Force pilot who was shot down over Laos in 1965. Next was Barry Toll, a
highly decorated Vietnam veteran and former Army intelligence officer. Last was
George Carver. A quintessential Washington insider, the 83-year-old Carver had
served three directors of the Central Intelligence Agency from 1966 to 1973 as special —
assistant for Vietnamese affairs.

—

The group handed Lake a packet of intelligence documents, then sat down fo talk.
They had a plan endorsed by several veterans groups, the three told Lake, a plan to
heal the 20-year-old wounds of the Vietnam War, The evidence they had was from
U.S. intelligence files and Soviet archives. It showed, they said, that Vietnam never
retumed a large number of American prisoners of war-a fact, they insisted, that both
countries knew at the time. In the packet given to Lake was everything he neededto ——
vel the evidence for himself: The U.S. files were identified not just by agency butby ——
room number, file-cabinet serial numbers and drawer numbers. Lake was joined by +—=
Kent Wiedemann, the National Security Council officer for Asian affairs. The two made

no promises, but they asked good questions. The trio pressed on: The prasident

should appoint a commission to study the evidence from the U.S. and Soviet files and

get the Vietnamesa to admit to their deeds without recriminations. Only then could

there be a final accounting of the prisoners and the missing from the Vietnam confiict.
Only then could there be normal relations between the two countries.

Unanswered questions. If Vietham did hold large numbers of unretumed prisoners, it
would be a stunning revelation. The Vietnamese retumed 591 American prisoners in
Operation Homecoming in the spring of 1973. Since then, U.S. officials have pretty
much agreed with the Nixon administration's contention that all the boys had come
home. "The U.S. govemment is confident that the 591 POWs and 30-something
bodies of men who died in captivity were all the prisoners held in North Vieinam," says
Edward Ross, chief of the Defense Department's office for POW/MIA affairs. Vietnam
says the same thing. Separately, the Senate Select Committee on POW/MIA Affairs
concluded that there is “no compsliing evidence" of live American POWs in Indochina.
The panel suggested that if men had been left behind, the numbers were small.
Washington has presented Vieinam with a list of 135 cases of missing American
servicamen whose fate the Vietnamese should know. With Vietnam's help, that list has
now been reduced to only 80 unresolved cases.

In the past few months, however, an extraordinary body of evidence has emerged to
throw into question all previous estimates of unresolved POW cases from the Vietnam
War. The evidence is purely circumstantial, but it has created a buming new argument
for families of the missing, while stoking their opposition to Clinton's plan for
rapprochement with Vietnam. The developments include the following:

11213]4 Nexte EXHIBIT
Print | Email Article | Respond | Newsletter 3 ,
8 |
Eah 22
000226

news/articles/931122/archive 016140 htm %5266)86 9



Case 1:04-cv-00814-RCL Document 260-1 Filed 10/22/16 Pageag of 169
USNews.cenx Ippbling BrgencepViessenfOW95-31  Filed 06/04/08 Page 2 0

: ZWOR: QRIPOR! : :
: WOR: 9 Ff P Subscribe AboutUs Contact Us - el
: E ; Advanced

Home | Nation & World
Troubling Evidence on Vietnam POWSs

Page 2 of 4

A top-secret document discovered in January in Soviet mifitary archives by Harvard
researcher Stephen Morris. The document appears to be a report from a Soviet agent
about a 1972 speech before the North Vietnamese Politburo in which a general
reveals that North Vietnam is holding 1,205 American prisoners. Since the Vietnamese
retumed 581 American POWs in 1973—and 108 of them came from South Vietnamese
prisons—the document suggests that North Vietnam never retumed some 700
American prisoners.

A top-secret report from the Soviet military intelligence agency GRU that was released
in September in Russia. In this document, a central committee secretary tells the
Vietnam Workers' Party in late 1870 or early 1871 that while “we have published the
names of 368" POWS [this was correc], the “total number of American aviator

POWSs ... is 735."

A U.S. intelligence report from a high-ranking North Vietnamese official named Tranh
Minh Duc, who was a spy for the United States. In his report, Tranh says that shortly
after the alleged "1,205 POWSs" speech in 1972, the North Vietnamese Politburo
decided to delain a number of prisoners {o use later as bargaining chips with
Washington. Recently, a cable surfaced from old State Department files that tends to
support the "1,205" document. The cable refers to a British Labor Party leader named
Clive Jenkins, who retumed from a visit to Hanoi in October 1970. Vietnamese officials
gave Jenkins the "impression” that there were about 800 American POWSs in
Vietnamese prisons, the State Department cable says.

U.S. News has leamed that intelligence files contain references to four other cases in
which sources in Indochina reported as many as 800 U.S. prisoners not accounted for
in other estimates. One of these sources was a Japanese Buddhist monk who said he
had shared a cell with three American servicemen in the mid-1880s. "I called them
'America,’ they called me 'Jap,' " the monk said. He added that a Vietnamese security
official told him there were 700 to 800 more Americans incarcerated.

Still more evidence tends to suggest that the number of American prisoners was
higher than has been acknowiedged. Two Vietnamese defectors well known to the
U.S Intelligence community spoke of large numbers of POWs. One of the defectors, a
North Vietnamese army doctor named Dang Tan, was trotted out by the CIA in 1871 to
talk of torture of American prisoners. In passing, he mentioned that he believed there
were about 800 prisoners held by North Vietnam as long ago as 1867. In 1879, a
second defector, a man named Le Dinh, told the U.S. govemment officials in Paris that
while he worked for Vietnamese intelligence he heard at staff meetings that 700
Americans remained incarcerated in Vietnam afier the war. Last week, a former North
Vietnamese intelligence officer confirmed that number in an interview with U.S. News.
He said the prisoners were separated into four groups. There was a large group of
disabled prisoners and others approved for release, 11 U.S. intelligence operatives
who were {o be held for eventual trades for Soviet spies, an undetermined number of
men who were to be ransomed for money or used to exert political influence and 33
"progressives,” some of whom were given training to operate in the United States as
double agents. Six actually undertook such missions, the former intelligence officer
says.
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Numbers game. Could such stories be true? The answer may lie partly in the

_ Pentagon's counting of the missing. After Vietnam retumed the 591 American
servicemen in Operation Homecoming, the Pentagon continued to list 2,421 men
missing in Indochina. Of those, 1,118 had been declared killed in action during the
war. That left 1,303 unaccounted for. About these men, the Pentagon said, it "had no
information to show conclusively they are alive or dead.” Some believe the survival
rate of those 1,303 could have been as high as 50 percent. If the estimate is roughly
accurate, it could mean that as many as 850 American servicemen survived the war
but remain unaccounted for. The Pentagon's Ed Ross contands that every single case
of the missing has baen re-examined. That there were large numbers of POWSs, ha ‘
says, is impossible.

Air Force Lt. Gen. Eugene Tighe, who ran the Defense Intelligence Agency after the
Vietnam War, is not sodismissive, The DIA is the lead government agency on the
POW issue. In an interview, Tighe said that many servicemen were listed as killed in
action on the fiimsiest of evidence. If the evidence was wrong, Tighe said, “you can go
through the total number of missing through the whole war and come up with some
fairly large numbers" of survivors.

Why might the Vietnamese have detained so many more Americans? Le Quang Khai
is an 11-year veteran of Vietnam's foreign ministry who defected to the United States
last year. During the Paris peace talks in 1873, Khai says, political opinion was split in
Vietnam on what to do with American prisoners of war. Hard-liners wanted to hold
them all until their demands for war reparations were satisfied; liberals wanted to
release them to improve Vietnam's image. A compromise was reached to release
some POWs—591 tumed out to be the number, Khai says. The rest were detained,
Khai says, because Vietnam believed that the Paris peaces talks marked the
beginning-not the end—of negotiations with Washington.

The negotiations went nowhere. President Nixon resigned in 1974, his administration
stating that it had "no indication at this moment that there are any Americans alive in
Indochina.” Concludes Khai: "With no negotiations, there was no framework to return
the POWs." Some, Khai says, were given to Hanoi's allies: "It is a fact that some
[Americans] were sent to Russia, China and other countries." Some intelligence
analysts question Khai's bona fides, but they say his story could be accurate. Says
General Tighe: "The Vietnamese, the Russians and Chinese ... ware intensely
interested in getting hold of American prisoners.”

The evidence that would support such a theory remains elusive. Barry Toll says that
from 1873 to 1875 he had access to top-secret messages conceming POWs, Toll
says he saw cables conceming the transfer by diplomatic aircraft of 10 to 20 American
POWs to the Soviet Union from Hanoi. He says another message that was "seared in
his memory" reported on 280 fo 340 American servicemen the Pentagon had identifiad
as prisoners in Laos. This cable, Toll says, concluded that the men had to be
abandoned: Washington could not admit to their existence because the Nixon
administration had conducted a secret and illegal war there. Toll says he resigned
from his Pentagon post in 1875 to protest this abandonment. Investigators on the
Senate Select Committee on POW/MIA Affairs say they confirmed Barry Toll's military
record and duties as an intelligence officer but were unable to corroborate the specific
message traffic.
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Proving the case. Others insist the evidence exists. George Carver, who accompanied
Toll to the White House meeting with Anthony Lake earlier this month, says that while
he was at the CIA, he saw evidence that led him to believe the Vietnamese and
Laotians were holding more U.S. prisoners than they admitied. Carver believes the
document obtained from the Soviet archives mentioning 1,205 prisoners is authentic.
Based on other intelligence Carver has seen, however, he believes there were only
about 300 unreturned American prisoners. "| think the case for 300," Carver says, "is
almost presentable to a jury.”

To prove that case, however, solid evidencs is needed to show that the unretumed
POWSs were held separately from the 591 who were retumed. Critics of this "theory of
a separate prison system” argue that no one has fumished such proof. John McCain is
one skeptic. Now a Republican senator from Arizona, he was a prisoner in Vietnam for
5 1/2 years and heard nothing about separate prison systems. Former Rep. William
"Billy" Hendon disagrees. A POW activist, Hendon has maps and satellite photos that
he says prove several Vietnamese prison camps held large numbers of Americans. No
men came back from those camps. Sen. Bob Smith, a New Hampshire Republican
who has visited Vietnamese prisons where intelligence reports say Americans were
held, agrees with Hendon. "l don't know if anyone is alive today,but | do know that we
don't have all the facts." Concludes George Carver: "| want to hope and pray that there
are some lefi alive, that's what my heart tells me. But my head tells meto be cautious.
For [the Vietnamese],it might be far better to dispose ofthe evidence.”
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l. A PRELIMINARY DEBRIEFING POINT-FOR U.S. PILOTS SHOT
DOV OVER VINI. PHU PROVINCE, WORTH VIETHAM /WVN/, VAS LOCATED
AT THE LAM THAC SUPERPHOSPHATE PLANT /VJSDISBS/ MEAR THAGH SOW
VILLAGE, LA THAG DISTRICT, VINK PHU PROVINCE. _T¥0 U.5, PILOTS
-/ VERE TAXED To THE DEBMIEFING POINT oM ouE occw
UGKI’ IN 19665 AND AM “UKHWN NUHBER IN 1967, THE PRISD"EHIS
'VERE ESCORTED 10 THE BITE BY PERSONNEL OF THE ARMED PUBLIC °
SECURITY FORCES /APSF/, AWD STUDENTS YROM A WEARBY SCHOOL
SERVED AS PERIMEIER SEIRRD$¢. EACR TINE PRISONERS WERE BROUGHT TD
THE SITE THEY RODE IN AN OPEN CAR OF CHINESE ORIGIN RESEMBLING
" AN AMERICAN JEEP, 'SONE OF THE ESCORT GUARDS RODE' I¥ A LEAD CAR
AKD OTHERS RODE IN TVO CARS FOLLOJING THE PRISORERS. UPON THEIR
ARRIVAL AT THE PLANY, THE GUARDS LIXED UP, FIRRISG § GORRIDOR
TYSOUGH WRSCK THE PILOTS ENTERED THE BOILDINO, AT THIS POINT
£ @A SWIKT, & CHIMSE" 'AND A VICIKANESZ GREETED THE PNLOTS AWD -
" MED TMEN 2870 TNE SUILDING. -THE PILOTS USUALLY REMAINED N
~ THE BUILDING FOR SEVERAL NOURS.isSMEN THEY BNERGED TMRY.MAD.CHAN® |
Em UNIFORAS IATO CIVILIAN CLOUTHING,. ".:::i_;;';_'; (e
R s [ R T . - .
SRR o Top KM THT FOREIGNERS VERE SOVIET AND CONMUNIST

_CHINESE. SOVIET PERSONNEL WAD BZEM STATIONED AT THE FLANT SIKCE
JYS CONSTRUCTION IN 1963, BUT 1IN 1963 THE NUMBER OF BOVIETS VAS
REDUCED TO THREE GR FOUR, AND IT RENAINED AT THAT LEVEL AS OF
JUNE 1967, ABOUT 28 CONKUNIST CHIVESE PERSONNEL ARRIVED AT THE
- .. TUANT 1N 1966 AMD THERE VERE STILL ABOUT 28 THERE AS OF SUNE 1967

AS FaR n-,xm, THE swm AKD GONNUNIET GHIRESE PEASOMNEL
¥ 80T AL, ONO vr:u.. FIEI 't-. (OM) T
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Summary of 1981 :fier T.scussion as remembered by Source:

Casey came into the Roosevelt Room from the Oval office with
President Reagan and Vice President Bush. National Security
Advisor Allen joined them, as they stopped for a moment to talk.

They were headed towdrd another larger meeting,'and Chief of
Staff Baker and Deaver stood a few feet away, at the doorway,
waiting for the group to enter the meeting.

Casey said to the President: "what do you want to do about the
message?”

President: “What message?"

Casey: "The message from the Vietnamese, through the Canadians
and China."

President: (To Group) "What do you think?"
Casey: "I think its just China running interference at Vietnam."

VP Bush: “I agree."®

Casey: "We can‘t give $4.5 billion to the Vietnamese, it would
ke paying blackmail.*®

VP Bush: "Yeah, I agree."

Allen: "If these are live POWs, we should do something about it."
Baker and Deaver come up.

Baker: "Its time for the meeting."

President: “OK....(to Casey) do something about it."

Group departs room for meeting.

15341154 / //"/42
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4 WL CODVORA, CENLAS, CTNVIL, SELECT COMMITTEE ON POW/MIA APFAIRS
WASHINGTON, DC 20510-6500

November 4, 1992

Mr. John F. Syphrit
14314 Mansion Haights Drive

Harvard, Illinois 60033
Degar Mr. Syphrit:

As Members of the United States Senate Select Committee on
POW/MIA Affairs, we are writing to request that you voluntarily
appear befora the Select Committee at the earliest possible date.

We would like you to describe under cath your reported
knowledge of a 1981 offer discussed at the White House involving
the return of American POWs by Vietnam in exchange foxr §4.5
billion by the United States. We understand you acquired this
reported knowledge in your capacity as an individual serving a
limitaed function on a Secret Service detail inside the White
House in 1981. -

As you are aware, the Select Committee chose not to enforce
the subpoena we served on you in July following a requast by the
Executive Branch for discuesions on this mattar. B8Since July, ths
Select Committee has hald discussions with the National Security
Advisor to the President, the Secretary of the Treasury, and the
Director of the Secret Service. During these discussions, no one
has challengad the authority of tha Select Committse to issue the
subpoena that was served on you. However, the Executive Branch
has urged that we not enforce the subpoena bocause it may set a
precedent which would adversely affect the unigque, protective
xelationship between the President and the Se¢cret Service.

We want to underscore the importance we place on determining
the accuracy of your information. It is the view Oof thas Select
Committee.that any American that may have information on American
Prisoners of war being held after 1973 has a moral cobligation to
our missing men and their families to bring this information to
our attention. We have no doubt that you are a patriotic
Amsrican whe loves his country, as demonstrated by your
distinguished military and civilian service record scanning 24

years.
We hope you will therefore comply with our request that you

provide your sworn testimony on a voluntary basis. not
complying with this request, the Salect Committee will be faced

W " . ,,7 % iﬁbm.,
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Mr. John P. Syphrit
November 4, 1992
page 2

with having to balance the concerns of preserving the integrity
of the Secret Service in its role of protecting the President
with the Committee’s determination to obtain all relevant
testimony where necessary by subpoena. With your cooperation,
the Select Committeas will not be forced into this difficult

position.

We also want to allay any concerns you may have about
possible intimidation, harassmant, or retaliation against u as
a rasult of any statements you make before the Select tteeo.
Both the Department of the Treasury and the Sscret Service have
assured us that they will not assume a posture of retaliation
against you for voluntarily testifying before the Select
Committee. We ask you ta accept our word as United States
Senators that we will take strong action to respond tc any
retaliation or intimidation against you as a result of being
asked to testify before our Committee.

You may know that thes laws of thse United States make
obstruction of a congressional investigation a criminal offense.
In 1982, Congress enacted the Victim and Witnaess Protection Act
to strengthen these criminal provisions. It is a criminal
offense to attempt to intimidate, threaten, or corruptly persuade
an individual in order to induce the individual not to testify
baefore a congressional coxmittee, or to withhold information, or
to change his or her testimony. !

Harasspent of an individual to hinder oxr dissuade tho
individual’ from testifying is also criminal conduct. The
criminal penalties for obstructing an investigation ox mpo:ing
with a witness extsnd up to ten years’ imprisonment and $250,00
fines in the most serious cases. These laws are complezented by
civil statutes prohibiting interforence with or retaliation
against government employees, military or civilian, for providing
information to Congress. '

As the Chajirman of our Committee stated on the floor of the
Saenate this past spring, “Even a hint that any witness is being
harrassed, intimidated, or threatened in any way will be the
basis for an immediate referral of the incideant to the
appropriate authcorities for iavastigation and, where juatified,
criminal prosecution.*®

We hope this letter has convinced you of the importaance we
Place on hearing your sworn testimony. The Senate has given us
an i.:;g:gtant mission, which the American pecple expect us to
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Your decision to assist the Select Committee will be greatly
appreciated. We ask that you immediately contact us to arrange
for your testimony at the earliest possible date. Should you
have any guestions on'this matter, please contact any one of us

directly.
Sincerely,
BOB SMITH

Vice~-Chairman
Unitad States Senator

JOHN MCCAIN
United States Senator

HANK BROWN
United States Senator

CHUCK GRASSLEY
United _Sta.tes Senatdr

NANCY LANDON KASSEBAUM
United States Senator

JBSSE HELMS
United States Sanaroyr

cct J. Thomas Burch, Attorney at Law
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JOHN F. KERRY, USS
Chairman
United States Senator

TGM DASCHLE
United States Senator

HARRY REID
United States Senator

CHARLES ROBB
United States Senator

BOB KERREY
United States Senator

HERB XOHL
United States Senatos
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To those who remembered

We salute, ag well, the veterans and responsible activist grou

who have never stoggled |puuhtntl:g for :nsweu. 'l‘hei-;‘e al:: the peop

e forgetting; who persisted in their question-
ing: and whose concerns led directly to the creation of the Select
Committee. The Committee’s investigation has validated their ef-
forts, for they had good reason to argue that the full story was not
being told, to that there was more to learn and to inaist
that a renewed focus on the issue would produce greater pressure
and yield new results.

It is to these Americans, therefore, to the POWa who returned
and to all those who did not, to the families and veterans who ke
the memory alive, that we pay tribute, and to whom we have dedi-
cated the work of this Committee, including this final report.

THE COMMITTER'S PFURPOGE

The most basic principle of personal honor in America’s armed
forces is never wi y to leave a fellow serviceman behind. The
black granite wall on the Mall in Washington is filled with the
names of those who died in the effort to save their comrades in
arms. That bond of loyalty and obli which spurred 8o many
soldiers to eacrifice themselves is mirrored by the obligation owed
to %:ety soldier by our nation, in whose name those sacrifices were
made.

Amidst the uncertainties of war, every soldier is entitled to one
certainty—that he will not be forgotten. As former POW Eugene
“Red” McDaniel put it, as an American asked to serve:

I was prepared to fight, to be wounded, to be captured,
ail:ngve:dpmpamdtggdle.butlwasnotprepa to be
a oned.

The Senate Select Committee on POW/MIA Affairs was created
to ensure that our nation meets its obligation to the missing and to
the families of those atill listed as unaccounted for from the war in
Southeast Asia or prior conflicts. As past years have shown, that
obligation cannot fully be paid with sympathy, monuments,
medals, benefits or flags. It is an obligation—a solemn duty—that
can be met only with the best and most complete answers that are
within our power to provide.

Tragically, and for reasons found both at home and abroad, those
answers have been slow in coming. Our nation has been haunted
&yathe poseibility that some of the missing may have survived and

t, somewhere in Southeast Asia, brave men remain in captivity.

Although we know that the circumstances of war make it impos-
gible for us to learn what hapm;d to all the missing, we have
been haunted, as well, by our ledge that there are some an-
swers dm Southeast Asia we could have had long ago, but have

Because our wartime adversaries in Vietnam and Laos have been
80 slow to provide the answers, the American people turned to the
U.S. Government for help, but events over the past 20 years have
undermined the public’s trust. The Indochina war, itself, was
partly a secret war and records were falsified at the time to main-
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tain that secrecy. The Paris Peace Accords promised answers to
POW/MIA families, but the war ‘between North and South Viet-
nam did not stop, and for the families of many, the answers did not
come. Ever-cha Defense De ent poficieo confused fami-
lies and others about the official status of the missing and obscured
even the number of men who might pessibly have remained alive.

official penchant for secrecy left many families, activists and
even Members of Congress unable to share fully in their own gov-
ernment’s knowledge about the fate of fellow citizens and loved
ones and this, more than anything, contributed to the atmosphere
of smicion and doubt,

Underpinning all this, the POW/MIA issue is alive today be-
cause of a fundamental copflict between the laws of probability and
the dictates of human nature. On a subject as personal and emo-
tional as the survival of a family member, there is nothing more
g}iwfﬁcult ibmnﬂi u;f bﬁfasked mt thgp};mbabﬂ ility of death wl:;:

possibility ife rem ce ration ameeomlng,

US. Government has sought to aveid raising the hopes of POW/
MIA families; it has talked about the need to maintain perspective
and about the lack of convincing evidence that Americans remain
alive. But US. officials cannot uce evidence that all of the
missing are dead; and because they have been so careful not to
raise false hopes, they have left themselves open to the charge that
they have given up hope. This, too, has contributed to public and
family mistrust.

Many of the factors that led to controversy surrounding the fates
of Vietnam-era POW/MIAs are present, as well, with respect to the
missing from World War II, Korea and the Cold War. Here, too,
there have been barriers to geining information from foreign gov-
erx(tlmenm; etnieemive onnal thedpartfof our owntgo\lrlex;nm_exﬁ
an pwvocaveregrb—o cial and unofficial—about what mig
have happened to those left behind.

The Select Committee was created because of the need to rees-
tablish trust between our government and ou;rop!e on this most
painful and emotional of issues. It was created to investigate and
tell publicly the complete story about what our government knows
and known, and what it is doing and has done on behalf of our
POW/MIAs. It was created to examine the possibility that unac-
counted for Americans might have survived in captivity after POW
repatriations at Odessa in World War II, after ration Big
Switch in Korea in 1958, after Cold War incidents, and particularly
after Operation Homecoming in Vietnam in 1973. It was created to
ensure that accounting for missing Americans will be a matter of
highest national priority, not only in word but in practice. It was
created to encourage real cooperation from foreign governments. It
was created, in short, to pursue the truth, at home and overseas.

Whether the Committee has succeeded in its assigned tasks will
be a matter for the public and for history to judge. Clearly, we
cannot claim, nor could we have hoped, to have learned everything.
We had neither the authority nor the resources to make case by
case determinations with respect to the status of the missing. The
job of negot,i;gng. ”'Z‘;’;‘a"f{‘,’,‘g ;:;:teryii\:is. visiting pria:rlns,v efuc::‘::

crash sites, inves ve-sig reioru and evaluati
:::glﬁVal materials can only be eompletedniy e Executive branch.
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claims that prisoners were being held, and on the large number of
American pilots who were listed as missing in action in Laos com-
pared to number being proposed for return. Top military and
intelligence officiala ressed the hope, at the time the peace
agreementwagnﬁrnd.t as many as 4] servicemen lost in Laos
would be returned. However, only ten men (7 U.S. military, 2 U.S.
civilian and a Canadian) were on_the list of prisoners captured in
Laos that was turned over by the DRV,

During the first 60 days, while the American t withdrawal
was underway, the Nixon Administration con North Viet-
namese officials repeatedly to express concern about the incom-
glete nature of the prisoner lists that had been received. In early

‘ebruary, President Nixon sent a message to the DRV Prime Min-
tha:. saying, with respect to the list of only ten POWs from Laos,

U.S. records show there are 317 American military men
unaccounted for in Laos and it is inconceivable that only
ten of these men would be held prisoner in Laos.}¢

Soon thereafter, Dr. Kissinger presented DRV officials with 19
case folders of Americans who should have been accounted for, but
who were not. The US. protests continued !5 and in mid-March,
the U.S. threatened briefly to halt the withdrawal of American
trovs if information about the nine American prisoners on the

RV/Laos list and about ‘griaoners actually held by the Pathet Lao
were not provided.1® By the end of the month, top Defense Depart-
ment officials were recommending a series of diplomatic and mili-
tary options aimed at achieving an accounting for U.S. prisoners
thought to be held in Laos.

Ultimately, the Nixon Administration proceeded with the with-
drawal of troope in return for the releage of prisoners on the lists
provided by the North Vietnamese and Viet Cong.

Pogt-homecomning

The lg.\;l:-lir: statements made by President Nixon and by hiﬁh De-
fense tment officials following the end of ration Home-
coming did not fully reflect the Administration's prior concern that
live U.S. prisoners may have been kept behind. Administration offi-
cials did, ever, continue to stress publidy the need for Vietnam
to meet its obligations under the peace agreement, and U.S. diplo-
mats pressed both the North Vietnamese and the Pathet Lao for
information concerning missing Americans. Unfortunately, due to
thgﬁintransigenee of our adversaries, those efforts were largely una-
vailing.

During the Committee's hearings, it was contended by Dr. Kis-
singer and somc Members of the Committee that Congressional at-

*¢ Cable (rom Prosident Nixon to Pham Van February 2, 1973

'S For example, Dr. Kissinger sent a cable to Le Tho on March 29, 1973 saying, in part:
“The U.B. side has become iuwﬂm about the question of American prisoners held
or missing in Lacs . . . the U.S, side has made clear on many octasions that the [ist of only nine

Arnerienn:lm presented belated] the Pathet Loo is clearly incomplete.’

18 Some mﬁammw&?&ummnﬂusJmu’mumwnunw-

abnﬁndwlyhthgrhwnmthbwnmlm,mdlnvedtdhuhnmybymc

&anmAhinmbnmwm Y press t support that
W,
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titudes would have precluded any Administration effort to respond
forcefully to the DRV’s failure to provide an accounting for mmaing
American servicemen. These Members of the Committee conten
that their view is supported by the Senate’s rejection on May 31,
1973 of an amendment offered by U.S. Sen. Robert Dole that would
ha;?nrermitted the continued bombing of Laos and Cambodia if the
President certified that North Vietnam “is not making an account-
ing, to the best of its ability, of all missing in action personnel in
Southeast Asia.” 17

CONCLUSIONS

The Committee believes that its investigation contributed signifi-
cantly to the public record of the negotiating history of the POW/
MIA provisions of the Paris Peace rds, and of the complica-
tions that arcse during efforts to implement those provisions both
before and after the completion of Operation Homecoming. That
record indicates that there existed a higher degree of concern
within the Administration about the possibility that prisoners were
being left behind in Lacs than had been known previously, and
that various o?tions for responding to that concern were discussed

at the highest levels of government.
The Committee notes that some Administration statements at
the time the nt was signed expressed greater certainty

ex

about the completeness of the ;&V return than they should have
and that other statements may have understated the problems that
would arise during implementation and that--taken together,
thepe statements may have raised public and family expectations
too high. The Committee further notes that statements made after
the agreement was signed may have understated U.S. concerns
about the possibility that live prisoners remained, thereby contrib-
uting in subsequent years to public suspicion and di Howev-
er, the Committee concludes that the phrasing of these statements
was designed to avoid raising what were believed to be false hopes
among POW/MIA families, rather than to mislead the American
people.
Investigation of the accounting process

The Committee investigation included a comprehensive review of
the procedures used by the U.S. Government to account for Ameri-
can prisoners and missing from the beginning of the war in South-
east Asia until the present day. The purposes were:

To determine accurately the number of Americans who
served in Southeast Asia during the war who did not return,
either alive or dead;

To evaluate the accuracy of the U.S. Government’s own past
and current process for determining the likely status and fate
of missing Americans; ) .

To learn what the casualty data and intelligence information
have to tell us about the number of Americans whose fates are
truly “unaccounted for” from the war in Vietnam; and

' Other Committee Members beligve that this d degree dment to an d
offered by Sen. Mark Hatlield was siroed far more st authorixing Presideat Nixon to continue
prosecuting the war in Southeast Axia than to gein an sccounting for missing Americazs.
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To consider whether efforts to cbtain the fullest poesible ac-
counting of our POW/MIAs was treated, as claimed, as a
matter of 'hghast national pnonty" by the Executive branch;

To assess the extent to which Defense artment and DIA
aceounhng pohcwu and mctwea contributed to the confusion,
distrust t has characterized the POW/MIA

issue for the past 20 yean'

To determine wha clmneed to be made to policies and

proeedum in order to public conﬂdence in the govern-

- ment's POW/MIA accounting process with respeet to past and
future conflicts.

Although 2,264 Americans cur:ently are listed as “unaccounted
for” from the war in Indochina, the number of Ameneans whose
fate is truly unknown is far smaller. Even during the war, the U.S,
Govemment knew and the families involved knew that, in many of
these cases was certainty that the soldier or airman was
killed at the thne of the incident. These are generally cases involv-
ing individuals who were killed when their airplanes crashed into
the sea and no parachutes were sighted, or where others witnessed
:‘l:e death of a serviceman in combat but were unable to recover

e body.

Of the 2,264 Amenennn now listed as unaccounted for, 1,095 fall
mto thm category. These individuals were listed as “killed

not recovered” (KIA/BNR) and were not mcluded on
the l POW/MIAs that were released publicly by the Defense
and State Departments during the war or for several years thereaf.
ter. It was not untll the late 970's that KIA/BNRs were added to
the official lists of “misaing” Americans.

The next largest p of Americans now on the list of 2,264
ongmally was lwtedwu the military serv:ceo or by DJA as “missing
in action.” These are individuals who became missing either in
combat or in non<combat circumstances, but who were not known
for certain either to have been killed or to have been taken into
captivity. In most, but not all, of these cases, the circumstances of
disa rance coupled with the lack of evidence of survival make it

robable that the individual died at the time the incident

Appmlmatcly 1,172 of the still unaccounted for Americans were
ly listed either as MIA or as POW. Of these, 333 were lost

in 348 in North Vxetnam. 450 in South Vxetnam, 37 in Cam-
bodia and 4 in China. Since before the war ended, the POW/MIA
accounting effort has focused, for good reason, on a relatively small
number of these 1,172 Amern:ans. that mh;hose who were either
known to have been taken captive, or who were loet in circum-
stances under which survival was deemed likely or at least reason-
ably possible. These cases, in addition to others in which intelli-
gﬁgce indicates a Southeast Asian Government may have known
fate of the missing men, are currently referred to as “discrep-
ancy

ln 1987, Gen. John W. Vessey, Jr. (USA-Ret.) was appointed Pres-
xdentml Emmry to Vietnam on POW/MIA matters. Gen. Vessey
bsequently uaded Vietnam to allow in-country mvestlgatmns

g the U.S. 8:': rnment of high-priority discrepancy cases. The
IA and DOD's Joint Task Force-Full Aecounting ( F-FA) have
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identified a total of 305 discrepancy cases, of which 196 are in Viet-
nam, 90 are in Laos, and 19 are in Cambodia.!®

In 61 of the cases in Vietnam, the fate of the individual has been
determined through investigation, and the Committee finds that
Gen. Vessey correctly states that the evidence JTF-FA has gath-
ered in each of these cases indicates that the individuals had died
prior to Operation Homecoming. The first round of investigation of
the 135 remaining cases in Vietnam is expected to be completed by
January 18, 1933, A second round of investigation, which will pro-
ﬁ Ml‘ligghgcally on a district by district basis, will commence in

ruary, ,

None of the discrepancy cases in Laos and Cambodia has been
resolved. Because many of the Americans lost in those countries
disappeared in areas that were under the control of North Viet-
namese forces at the time, resolution of the majority of Laos/Cam-
bodia cases will depend on a process of trigrhte cooperation that
has barely begun. Committee further finds that, in addition to
the. past reluctance of the Vietnamese and Lag to agree to a series
of tripartite talks with the United States, both the Department of
State and the Izo&pnn.ment of Defense have been slow to push such
a process forward.

As mentioned above, the Committee will nd a case-by-case
description of the circumstances of loss of each unresolved discrep-
an;y case to this report. Those descriptions demonstrate that the
US. Government has knowledge in only a small number of cases
that the individuals involved were held captive and strong indica-
tions in only a small number more.

However, that is not to say that the Governments of Vietnam
and Laos do not have knowl pertaining to these or other MIA
cagses which may indicate survival. Answers to these troublesome
questions will best be obtained through an accounting process that
enjoys full cooperation from those governments.

e e findings of this phase of the Committee's investigation in-
ude:

By far the greatest obstacle to a successful accounting effort
over the past twenty years has been the refusal of the foreign
governments involved, until recently, to allow the U.S. access
to key files or to carry out in-country, on-site investigations.

The U.S. Government's process for accounting for Americans
missing in Southeast Asia has been flawed by a lack of re-
sources, o izational clarity, ccordination and consistency.
These problems had their roots during the war and worsened
after war as frustration about the ability to gain access
and answers from Southeast Asian Governments in X
Through the mid-1980's, accounting for our POW/MIAs was
viewed officially more as a bureaucratic exercise than as a
matter of "highest national priority.”

The accounting process has improved dramatically in recent
years as a result of .the high priority attached to it by Presi-
dents Reagan and Bush; because of the success of Gen. Vessey

19 Gon. Vessoy's ibilitice are limited to Vietnam. The lnvutg:“mn of discrepancy
cases in Laoe and Cam is the responsibility of the Juint Task Forcs-Full Accounting, estab-
lished January 23, 1992, es 2 to the Jaint Casuslty Resolution Center.
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and the JTF-FA in gaining permission for the U.S. to conduct

investigations on the ground in Southeast Asia; because of an

increase in resources; and because of the Committee's own ef-

forts, in essociation with the Executive branch, to gain greater

gt:gemtxon from the Governments of Vietnam, Laos and Cam-
a

After an exhaustive review of official and unofficial lists of
captive and missing Americans from wartime years to the
present, the Committee uncovered numerous errors in data
entry and numerous discrepancies between DIA records and
those of other military offices. The errors that have been iden-
tified, however, have since been corrected. As a result, the
Committee finds no grounds to question the accuracy of the
current, official list of those unaccounted for from the war in
Southeast Asia. This list includes 2,222 missing servicemen
except deserters and 42 missing civilians who were lost while
g:orming gervices for the United States Government. The

mittee has found no evidence to support the existence of
rumored “secret lists” of additional missing Americans.

The decision by the U.S. Government to falsify “location of
loss” data for erican casualties in Cambodia and Laos
during much of the war contributed significantly both to public
distrust and to the difficulties experienced by the DIA and
othefa ;’n trying to establish what happened to the individuals
involved.

The failure of the Executive branch to establish and main-
tain a consistent, sustainable set of categories and criteria gov-
erning the status of missing Americans during and after the
war in Southeast Asia contributed substantially to public con-
fusion and mistrust. During the war, a number of individuals
listed as “prisoner” by DIA were listed as “missing in action"
by the military services. After the war, the legal process for
settlintiesmtus determinations was plagued by _interference
from Secretary of Defense, undermined by financial and
other considerations affecting some POW/MIA families and
challenged in court. Later, the question of how many Ameri-
cans remain truly “unaccounted for” was muddied by the De-
fense Department’s decision to include “KIA/BNR's"—those
known to have been killed, but with bodies not recovered—in
their listings. This created the anomalous situation of having
more Americans considered unaccounted for today than we
had immediately after the war. - .

The Committee’s recommendations for this phase of its investiga-

tion include:

Accounting for missing Americans from the war in South-
east Asia should continue to be treated as a “matter of highest
national priority” by our dinomam, by those participating in
the accounting {yroeess, by all elements of our intelligence com-
munity and by the nation, as a whole. . .

Continued, Keet efforts should be made to investigate the re-
&a'i;g:ﬁ.&unmolved discrepancy cases in Vietnam, Laos and

The United States should make a continuing effort, at a high
level, to arrange regular tripartite meetings with the Govern-
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ments of Laos and Vietnam to seek information on the possible
control and movement of unaccounted for U.S. personnel by
Pathet Lao and North Vietnamese forces in Laos during the
Southeast Asia war.

The President and Secretary of Defense should order regu-
lar, inc[l)egendent reviews of the efficiency and professionalism
of the DOD's POW/MIA accounting process for Americans still
listed as missing from the war in Southeast Asia.

A clear hierarchy of responsibility for handling POW/MIA
related issues that may regretably arise as a result of future
conflicts must be established. This requires full and rtgﬁd co-
ordination between and among the intelligence agencies in-
volved and the military services. It requires the integration of
missing civilians and suspected deserters into the overall ac-
counting process. It requires a clear liaison between those re-

nsible for the accounting (and related intelligence) and
ose responsible for negotiating with our adversaries about
the terms for dpeace It requires procedures for the full, honest
and prompt disclosure of information to next of kin, at the
time of incident and as other information becomes available.
And it realuires, above al], the designation within the Execu-
tive branch of an individual who is clearly responsible and
iftlllg a(l:gountable for making certain that the process works as
should.

In the future, clear categories should be established and con-
gistently maintained in accounting for Americans missing
during time of war. At one end of the listings should be Ameri-
cans known with certainty to have been taken prisoner; at the
other should be Americans known dead with bodies not recov-
ered. The categories should be carefully separated in official
summaries and discussions of the accounting process and
should be applied consistently and uniformly.

Present law needs to be reviewed to minimize distortions in
the status determination that result from the fi-
nancial considerations of the families involved.

Wartime search and rescue (SAR) missions have an urgent
operational value, but they are also crucial for the purposes of
acoountir%for POW/MIAs. The records concerning many Viet-
nam era SAR missions have been lost or destroyed. In the
future, all information obtained during any unsuccessful or
ﬁr&iail_y successful military search and rescue mission should

shared with the agency responsible for accounting for
POW/MIAs from that conflict and should be retained by that
agency.
Investigation of POW/MIA-related intelligence activities

The Committee undertook an investigation of U.S. intelhﬁ::’tce
agency activities in relation to POW/ issues. This included a
review of the DIA’s primary role in investigating and evaluating
reports that Americans missing from the Vietnam war were or are
being held against their will since the end of the war in Southeast
Asia, The investigation also included a review of signals intelli-
gence (SIGINT) obtained by the National Security Agency (NSA), a
review of imagery intelligence (IMINT) obtained by aerial photog-
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The Committee also believes that a central coordinating mecha-
nism for pooling and acting upon POW/MIA-related intelligence
information should be created as one of the Intelligence Communi-
ty’s Interagency Coordination Centers.

The Committee notes that the focus of the POW/MIA accounting

process is in Southeast Asia. As a result, DIA analysts are spending
more and more of their time traveling back and forth between
Washington and the region or to Hawali. The Committee believes
that this would be an opportune time to move the DIA's POW/MIA
office to Hawaii where it could be closer to JTF-FA and CINCPAC,
which it supports. A number of tasks now sometimes g‘erl'ormed by
the office involving public and family relations can be handled, and
handled more capably and x&:ropriatel;bb the office of the
Dei:iuty Assistant tary of Defense for /MIA Affairs.
. Live-sighting rts. For the past 20 years, there has been noth-
ing more tantalizing for POW/MIA families than reports that
Americans have been geen alive in Southeast Asia and nothing
more frustrating than the failure of these reports to become mam-
fest in the form of a returning American—with the single excep-
tion of Marine Private Robert Garwood in 1979,

A live-sighting report is just that—a report that an American
has been seen alive in Southeast Asia in circumstances which are
not readily explained The report could come from a refugee, boat
person, traveler or anyone else in a position to make such an obser-
vation. The information could be first-hand or hearsay; it could in-
volve one American or many; it could be detailed or vague; it could
be recent or as far back as the end of the war.

The sheer number of first-hand live sighting reports, almost 1600
since the end of the war, has convinced many Americans that U.S.
POWs must have been kept behind and may still be alive. Other
Americans have concluded sadly that our failure, after repeated ef-
forts, to locate any of these alleged POWs means the reports are
probably not true. It is the Committee’s view that every livesight-
ing report is important as a potential source of information about
the fate of our POW/MIAs. )

Accordingly, the review and analysis of live-sighting reports con-
sumed more time and staff resources than any other single issue.
The Committee investigation used a method of analysis that was
based on the content of a carefully screened set of reports that
dealt only with men allegedly seen in captivity after Operation
Homecoming. The Committee took into account past criticisms and
assessed current procedures while examining and testing DIA’s
methodology for evaluating live-sighting reports. In so doing, Com-
mittee investigators examined more than 2000 hearsay and first-
hand live-sighting files while compiling a list of 928 reports for
“content” analysis. These reports were plotted on a map and
Erouped into geographic “clusters”. During briefings and public

earings, the sommmee reviewed the most significant “clusters’
for the purpose of determining whether they would, taken togeth-
er, constitute evidence of the presence of U.S. POWs in certain lo-
cations after Operation Homecoming.

DIA Assessment. It is DIA's position that the livesighting re-
ports evaluated to date do not constitute evidence that currently
unaccounted for U.S. POWs remained behind in Southeast Asia

62-704 0 - 93 - 2
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_The Committee also believes that a central coordinating mecha-
nism for pooling and acting upon POW/MIA-related intelligence
information should be created as one of the Intelligence Communi-
ty's Interagency Coordination Centers.

The Committee notes that the focus of the POW/MIA accounting
process is in Southeast Asia. As a result, DIA analysts are spending
more and more of their time traveling back and forth between
Washington and the region or to Hawaii. The Committee believes
that this would be an opportune time to move the DIA’s POW/MIA
office to Hawaii where it could be closer to JTF-FA and CINCPAC,
which it supports. A number of tasks now sometimes performed bg
the office involving public and family relations can beﬁndled, an
handled more capably and appropriately, 1‘56' the office of the
Defiuty Assistant tary of Defense for POW/MIA Affairs.

ve-sighting Reports. For the ?ast 20 fyem's, there has been noth-
ing more tantalizing for POW/MIA families than reports that
Americans have been seen alive in Southeast Asia and nothing
more frustrating than the failure of these reports to become mani-
fest in the form of a returning American—with the single excep-
tion of Marine Private Robert Garwood in 1979.

A live-sighting report is just that—a report that an American
has been seen alive in Sou t Asia in circumstances which are
not readily explained The report could come from a refugee, boat
person, traveler or anyone else in a position to make such an obser-
vation. The information could be first-hand or hearsay; it could in-
volve one American or many; it could be detailed or vague; it could
be recent or as far back as the end of the war.

The sheer number of first-hand live sighting reports, almost 1600
since the end of the war, has convinced many Americans that U.S.
POWs must have been kept behind and ma?' still be alive. Other
Americans have concluded sadl{ that our failure, after repeated ef-
forts, to locate any of these alleged POWs means the reports are

obably not true. It is the Committee’s view that every livesight-
ng report is important as a potential source of information about
the fate of our P‘(’)OWIMIA&

Accordingly, the review and analysis of live-sighting reports con-
sumed more time and staff resources than any other single issue.
‘The Committee investigation used a method of analysis that was
based on the content of a carefully screened set of reports that
dealt only with men allegedly seen in captivity after Operation
Homecoming. The Committee took into account past criticisms and

current procedures while examining and testing DIA's
methodology for evaluating live-sighting reports. In so doing, Com-
mittee investigators examined more than 2000 hearsay and first-
hand livesighting files while compiling a list of 928 reports for
“content” analysis. These reports were plotted on a map and
ouped into aphic “clusters”. During briefings and public
earings, the Committee reviewed the most significant “clusters
for the purpose of determining whether they would, taken togeth-
er, constitute evidence of the presence of U.S. POWs in certain lo-
cations after Operation Homecoming. .

DIA Assessment. It is DIA's position that the live-sighting re-
ports evaluated to date do not constitute evidence that currently
unaccounted for U.S. POWs remained behind in Southeast Asia

62-704 0 - 93 - 2
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after the end of the war. Of the 1638 first-hand reports received
since 1975, DIA considers 1,553 to be resolved.2

Committee View. The Committee notes that 40 first-hand live-
sighting regorts remain under active investigation and that the
nature of the analytical process precludes certainty that all past
DIA evaluations are correct. Accordingly, the Committee recom-
mends a strong emphasis on the rapid and thorough follow-up and
evaluation of current unresolved and future live-sighting reports.
The DIA is urged to make a continued and conscious effort to
maintain an attitude among analysts that Kresumes the possible
survival of U.S. POWs. The Executive branch is also urged to con-
tinue working with the governments of Southeast Asia to expand
our ability to conduct on the ground, on-gite investigation and in-
spections throughout the region.

The role of the National Security Agency (signals intelligence)

The responsibility for monitoring and eollectinls signals (includ-
ing communications) intelligence rests with the National Security
Agency (NSA). During the Vietnam War, the NSA monitored all
available sources of signals intelligence bearing on the loss, capture
or condition of American personnel. Such information would some-
times provide a basis for concluding whether or not a missing
American had survived his incident and, if so, possibly been taken
prisoner.

During its investigation, the Committee was disturbed to learn
that the NSA and its Vietnam branch were never asked to provide
an overall assessment of the status of POW/MIA personnel prior to
Operation Homecoming. The Committee believes that this informa-
tion would have been useful both for the U.S. negotiating team and
for those preparing for the repatriation of American POWs. The
Committee also found that neither DIA nor any other agency
within the Intelligence Community placed a formal requirement
for collection with NSA concerning POW/MIA related information.
In fact, the Committee found that NSA end product reports were
not used regularly to evaluate the POW/MIA situation until 1977.
It was not until 1984 that the collection of information on POW/
gdlgtl;‘ ¥as formally established as a matter of highest priority for

After the fall of Saigon, the National Security Aﬁen and the
military service components that support it largely dismantled
their collection efforts in Southeast Asia. The elaborate collection
capabilities that sugrorted the war essentially ceased or were relo-
cated to other trouble spots around the world. The analytical orga-
nizations that monitored signals intelligence in the region were
also dishanded or sharply reduced as personnel were transferred to
other assignments.

U.S. collection capabilities were further diminished during this
period as Vietnam and Laocs developed secure landline communica-

20 According to DIA, 1111 (68%) first-hand live-sighting eeports correlate to Americans who
are sccounted (or (returned POWs, misticnaries, civilians Jailod for reasons unrelated to the war
ete); 45 (3%) of the reports were correlated to wartime sightings of military permonnel or pro-
1975 sightings of clvilians who remain unaccounted for; and 397 (24%) of the reports were found
to be febrications. Of the 85 reports that remain under investigation, 54 pertain to Americans
sllegedly soen in a captive environment.
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citizen representing POW/MIA families would be in a position to
try to deny Senate investigators the same right to review sensitive
materials that she herself has been granted.

The Committee believes that an interagency coordinating body
for POW/MIA policies is needed and that the IAG ably fulfills this
role. However, the Committee is disturbed by the lack of formality
in JAG record-keeping and believes that, at a minimum, that the
minutes of discussions at such meetings should be maintained.

Second, although the IAG should comsult regularly with the
League and other POW/MIA family organizations, the Committee
believes that the role of the IAG and issues of membership on it
should be reviewed by the new Administration.

Government-to-government offers

The Committee investigated the possibility that Vietnam or Laos
had approached U.S, officials at any time since the end of the war
in Southeast Asia with a proposal that live U.S. POWs be returned
in exchange for money or some other consideration. The Commit-
tee found no convincing evidence of any such offer being made.
’tli'here were, however, two incidents which require further explana-

on.

The Committee received information that the Reagan Adminis-
tration may have received an offer from Vietnam in 1981, trans-
mitted through a third country, to exchange live POWs for $4.5 bil-
lion. The source of the information was a Secret Service agent who
reported that he had overheard a discussion in the White House
concerning this subject. The Committee deposed one of the individ-
uals, former National Security Adviser Richard Allen, said to have
been involved in the discussion, and several individuals who were
said to have been in the area of the discussion. The Secret Service
agent was not willing to provide testimony to the Committee volun-
tarily, and the Committee voted 7-4 not to subpoena that testimo-
ny. A complete description of the investigation and the subpoena
issue is contained in Chapter 6 of this report.

The Committee also received a report concerning a possible ap-
proach by Vietnam in 1984, through officials in an ASEAN nation,
concerning the exchange of American remains and possibly live
POWs. According to the report, the Vietnamese had indicated that
they would welcome an offer from the U.S. on the subject. U.S. offi-
cials traveled to Vietnam late in 1984, but were reportedly told by
Vietnamese officials that there were no live POWs and that the
only issue that could be discussed involved remains. Select Commit-
tee investigators traveled to the ASEAN nation to interview offi-
cials in an effort to determine whether an approach from Vietnam
concerning live U.S. POWs had, in fact, been made. The resuits
were inconclusive. Two secondary sources disagreed about whether
an exchange involving live POWs had been discussed. The individ-
ual who had initially discussed the subject with Vietnamese offi-
cials later told the State Department that the issue of live Ameri-
can POWs had not been raised. This investigation is also described
in greater detail in chapter 6.

000092



Case 1:04-cv-00814-RCL Document 260-1 Filed 10/22/16 Page 90 of 169

Case 1:04-cv-00814-HHK Document 95-30 Filed 06/04/08 Page 14 of 31

000208

48

uments, such as depositions. The goal from the outset has been to
create a comprehensive and unbiased public record that would be
available for families, journalists, historians and citizens to review
and make their own best judgments about the facts. This report is
an important part of that record.

The investigation

The Committee investigation began by tracing the history of the
issue back to its war-time beginnings. Clearly, the chance that
American POWs are alive in Southeast Asia today depends on
whether some were left behind after Orration Homecoming. The
chapters in this report entitled “The Paris Peace Accords” and
"*Accountability” focus in detail on this poasibility.

The largest share of Committee efforts was devoted to examining
information concerning the possible survival of Americans during
the post-war period and up to the present day. This reguimd the
review of vast quantities of first, second and third-hand 'Iivesight-
ing” reports; the analysis of a wide range of intelligence; examina-
tion of the methods that DIA uses to evaluate information; and the
consideration of indications that POWs may have been transferred
to the former Soviet Union or to China during or after the Korean
or Vietnamese, conflicts. Chapters 4 and 9 describe this aspect of
the Committee's investigation.

Cooperation of Southeast Asia governments

It will be extremely difficult for our government to obtain addi-
tional solid information concerning the fate of our POW/MIAs
without the cooperation of Vietnam, Laos and Cambodia.

Accordingly, the Committee has sought to use its review of
POW/MIA issues to encourage recent trends toward greater coop-
eration between and among these governments and the United
States. Members of the Committee traveled to Southeast Asia in
April, October, November and December, 1992 for talks with for-
eign officials and U.S. personnel deployed there. In addition, Com-
mittee Members have met from time to time in the United States
with representatives of the foreign governments to exchange infor-
mation and clarify outstanding guestions. . )

Below is a very brief summary of the situation that existed in
each of these three countries at the time the Committee’s work
began. A full description of the issue is contained in the “Vietnam,
Laos and Cambodia” chapter of this report.

Vietnam

When the Committee was formed, 1656 Americans were listed as
unaccounted for in Vietnam. Since the end of U.S. involvement in
hostilities on Janua;y 21, 1973, the remains of 266 Americans have
been returned and identified.

Most of the Americans lost or captured in North Vietnam durin
the war were Air Force or Navy airmen who crashed in populate
areas accessible to Vietnamese authorities. The North Vietnamese
made a systematic effort to investigate crash sites, capture and
process American POWs, bury and preserve remains and maintain
centralized records.

000093



Case 1:04-cv-00814-RCL Document 260-1 Filed 10/22/16 Page 91 of 169

Case 1:04-cv-00814-HHK Document 95-30 Filed 06/04/08 Page 15 of 31

000209

49

About two-thirds of the Americans lost in South Vietnam were
enlisted Army and Marine Corps personnel. U.S. officials have
found that records and information concerning American prisoners
held in the south are less complete than for those held in the

north,

Since the war, Vietnamese officials have steadfastly denied that
any Americans are held captive or that the remains of American
servicemen are being knowingly withheld.

Cooperptlon from Vietnam is essential to the resolution not only
of cases involving Americans lost or captured in Vietnam, but in
Cambodia and Laos, as well. This is because the vast majority of
Americans missing in those countries were believed to have become
missing in areas under the control of North Vietnamese military
forces at the time. Thus, Vietnam'’s military archives and other
records are an important potential source of information concern-
ing the fates of these men.

ince 1978, the of cooperation received from Vietnam has
varied widely depending on the international political situation. A
good working relationship was impossible during the years immedi-
ately after Operation Homecoming because of disputes over viola-
tions of the Paris Peace Accords. After the fall of Saigon in 1975,
some efforts were made on both sides to %ahve the way for more
normal political and diplomatic relations. That progress, came to
an abrupt halt in late 1978, however, following Vietnam's invasion
of Cambodia, which the United States strongly opposed. Significant
bilateral discussions did not resume until the early 1980’s, but have

. since grown steadily in their frequency and depth.

One of the most positive outgrowths of recent talks was the ap-
Rintment. in 1987 of Gen. John W. Vessey, Jr. (USA Ret.), as the

esident’s special envoy to Vietnam. As a result of Gen. Vessey's
discussions with then-Vietnamese Foreign Minister Nguyen Co
Thach, the U.S. established a POW/MIA liaison office in Hanoi in
July, 1991. The purposes of the office are to investigate live-sight-
ing reports, to conduct joint searches for the remains of American
servicemen and to seek access to the relevant Vietnamese records.

The Vessey team has placed a major emphasis on the investiga-
tion and resolution of the “discrepancy” cases. Discrepancy cases
are those where U.S. officials believe there is the highest probabili-
ty that additional information concerning a missing American can,
with the proper degree of cooperation and investigation, be found.
Currently, 185 discrepancy cases involving Americans lost in Viet-
nam are under investigation and a preliminary investigation in
Vietnam of each case is to be completed by January 1993.

Laos

At the time of the Committee's creation, 528 Americans were
listed as unaccounted for in Lacs, of whom 335 were considered
POW/MIA. Only 12 U.S. POWs cagtured in Laos returned duruezg
Operation Homecoming and one, Emmet Kay, who was captur
after the ceasefire returned in September 1974. Since the end of
the \;i’etnam conflict, the remains of 42 servicemen have been repa-
triated.

US. efforts to cbtain information from Laos authorities have
been complicated by the facts that Lacs was not a party to the
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Paris Peace Accords and the United States was not a party to the
1978 Laos cease-fire agreement that pledged all sides to return cap-
tive personnel. In addition, the Defense Department estimates that
at least 75 percent of the Americans missing in Laos were lost in
areas controlled at the time by North Vietnamese armed forces.
These losses were generally in eastern Laos along the border with
Vietnam and near the Ho Chi Minh Trail.

Although the POW/MIA records keit by the Lao have been
judged to be less extensive than thoge kept by Vietnam, there is
credible evidence that at least a few unaccounted for Americans
were actually held by Pathet Lao forces during the war. Therefore,
the Lao can be expected to have knowledge concerning the fate of
these individuals. Additionally, there is strong reason to believe
that North Vietnamese military were instructed to recover and
record all thglyheould about downed U.S. aircraft and killed or cap-
tured pilots. Thus, efforts to account for many Americans will ulti-
mately require tri-lateral ooolperation involving not only the U.S.
and Laos, but Vietnam as well.

In recent years, Lao authorities have been more cooperative with
the U.S. in planning and carrying out investigations at known US.
aircraft crash sites, often in remote and virtually inaccessible loca-
tions, The government has also cooperated in efforts to evaluate
photographs alleged to depict American POWs.

Cambodia

At the time of the Committee’s creation, 83 Americans were
listed as unaccounted for in Cambodia and no prisoners or identi-
fied remains had been repatriated during the gst-war period until
recently.3° Cambodia was not a party to the Paris Peace Accords
and no separate cease-fire agreement on repatriation was reached
in the aftermath of the war. The recovery of American POWs or
remains in Cambodia was made virtually impossible after 1975
when the Khmer Rouge seized power and embarked on a bloody
reign of terror directed at Cambodians and foreigners alike,
Throughout much of the past 20 years, the U.S. has had either dif-
ficult or non-existent diplomatic contacts with the Cambodian Gov-
ernment. The years of struggle and chaos leave little hope that doc-
uments or records have survived that would reveal additional infor-
mation about U.S. personnel.

As in Laos, however, most of the Americans unaccounted for in
Cambodia were lost near the border with Vietnam in areas where
North Vietnamese forces were dominant. Thus, the best potential
sources of documentary information concerning those lost in Cam-
bodia may be in Hanoi, not in Phnom Penh.

Fortunately, the current government in Cambodia has demon-
strated a will to cooperate with the U.S. in joint field inves-
tigations and other efforts to, obtain accurate information concern-
ing American POW/MIAs. Cambodia’s Prime Minister Hun Sen
has been particularly helpful in this effort.

39 The remains of several people that have been returned from Cambodis were being exam-
ined at publication titne,
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Previous wars

The seeds of the Cold War were sown by the Red Army as it pur-
sued the Wehrmacht across Eastern Europe. The Kremlin imposed
Communist regimes on the war-ravaged nations of the region and
war-time alliances were replaced by a deadly rivalry: NATO versus
the Warsaw Pact. The Soviet Union and its client states, from
Euromato the Bering Sea, from the Arctic to the tn;pi became
the theater of operations for the far-flung activities of U.S. intelli-
gence agencies and units of each service.

To no one's surprise, the Soviet Union reacted. It kidnapped in-
telligence tg and “‘attaches.” It shot down U.S. intelligence air-
craft and the air crews disappeared. These were America’s “Cold
War losses.”

Another tragic outcome of the rapid advance of the Red Army
was the “liberation” of American and Allied POWs from German
POW camps by the Red Army. Rather than moving these hapless
soldiers westward toward their own advancing armies, the Soviets
took thousands of them eastward to Odessa. Some boarded ships
and eventually reached their homes safely, Others, and we may
gve;t kn;)w how many, became prisoners—not of war, but of the

viet gulag.

During a'ie Korean War, thousands of American fighting men
were captured by North Korean and Chinese forces. Estimates
vary, but clearly hundreds were not returned after the armistice
and prisoner exchange. Intelligence information, collected during
and after the war, indicated that many POWs were held in China,
and some were sent to the Soviet Union. Therefore, accounting for
the Korean War missing involves not only North Korea, but China
and Russia as well.?!

The problems the United States faces in recovering soldiers who
have fallen into Communist hands predates even World War IJ. We
note that the Bolsheviks captured American soldiers on the Arch-
angel and Siberian fronts during the Intervention of 1918-19. Addi-
tionally, the U.S. is not alone in trying to account fully for missing
and mﬁtured soldiers in the period immediately following past
wars. Many of our allies from the Korean conflict still have unac-
counted for servicemen.

Because the Committee’s focus concerned the posesibility that
American POWs could still be alive, our resources were devoted
R‘rimarily to investigating the relatively recent conflict in Vietnam.

evertheless, the Committee did focus considerable attention on in-
vestigating previous wars, and conflicts, A discussion of this phase
of the Committee’s investigation is contained in Chapter 9 of this
report.

PREVIOUB INVESTIGATIONS

The Select Committee began its work in October, 1991 fully
aware that the POW/MIA issue had been examined and investigat-
ed by Congress and the Department of Defense many times in the
past. One of the challenges facing the Committee was whether it

b Korean Wi
POW‘: J'L"';?" ca! &u:x;:ah oprgiﬁy and intelligence matters pertaining to ar
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singer-Le Duc Tho meeting on August 16, 1971, the DRV proposed
that “the two sides will :rxoduce the complete lists of military per-
sonnel and civilians captured during the war on the day an agree-
ment is signed.” ¢! This formulation was accepted by the U.S. side
and thereafter appeared—in substantially identical form—in pro-
posals by both gides and in the final agreement. Despite the con:
cerns expressed at the time by Secretary Laird and others about
whether the DRV could be trusted on this issue, the U.S. side made
no effort to re-open the matter in later negotiations or proposals.
During his testimony before the Select Committee, Dr. Kissinger
expressed the view that the U.S. lacked the leverage at the time of
the negotiations that would have been necessary to gain DRV
ment to an earlior exchmzie of lists. He also cited the repeat-
and unsuccessful efforts by the U.S. during the public peace ne-
gotiations to obtain a complete list of U.S. prisoners.
Linkage to release of civilian prisoners
One of the most difficult issues facing the negotiators concerned
the ible release of civilians detained by the Thieu Government
in South Vietnam. To the DRV and Viet Cong, these were the
equivalent of prisoners of war. The Government of South Vietnam,
however, m&erd many of these prisoners to be either common
criminals or political criminals who had violated the law through

. subversive activity. In neither case, argued the South Vietnamese,

should these prisoners be treated the same as POWs.

. Kisginger and other U.S. negotiators were determined to
avoid linking the release of US. POWs to the complex questions
involved in negotiating the release of the civilians in the south.
They feared, quite logically, that such linkage would leave U.S.
prisoners hostage to what would certainly be a highly contentious
negotiating betweon competing factions in %outh Vietnam.
This issue of linkage was a frequent topic of discussion durlx;f the
secret talks until October 1972, when the U.S. persuaded the North
Vietnamese to leave the issue for the GVN and PRG to decide. In
mid-December, however, the DRV reversed field by demanding that
the release of the civilians in the south occur at the same time as
the release of the US. POWs. This demand was a contributi
factor to the President’s decision to break off negotiations an

the Christmas bombing. The DRV reverted to its October 5:)-
sition when negotiations resumed in January, however, and the
agreement to leave the issue to be worked out between the GVN
and the PRG was incorporated in the accords as article 8(c).

Application to prisoners captured outside Vietnam

The most difficult task for U.S. negotiators was to attempt to

in an accounting for U.S, prisoners who were captured or held in

08 or Cambodia. Al North Vietnamese troops were active
in both countries, the DRV would not admit this in tiations.
Time and again, North Vietnamese negotiators insisted that it was
beyond their sovereign power to ensure the return of prisoners
from Laos or Cambodia.

um of Conversatlion, with Xuan Thuy. Vo Van Sung, Phan Hien, and Heary Kis-

41 Memorand
singer, Peris, August 16, 1971,
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men in captivity had appeared in Pathet Lao publications. Pathet
Lao spokesman Soth Petrasy had acknowl in May, 1966 that
:‘l;:ltlﬁl’.l'.‘ were holding Mr. DeBruin and that he was in good

Pathet Lao Statements. Although the statements were later to be
recanted, other LPF statcments made prior to Operation Home-
coming heightened U.S. expectations eoncemgé% the release of pris-
oners, as well, For example, in SBeptember, 1968, Soth Petrasy told
a US. official that “pilots are generally kept near the area in
which their plane is downed and therefore may be found through-
out Laos from the south to the north.” ¢3

In April 1971, Prince Souphanouvong, Chairman of the LPF Cen-
tral Committee, made the following statement concerning prison-
ers:

The LPF has made public a concrete policy toward
enemy soldiers or agents captured or giving themselves up,
including Gls. All the American pilots engaged in bom
ings or toxic chemical sprays on Lao territory are consid-
ered criminals and enemies of the Lao people. But once
captured, they have been treated in accordance with the
humane poli.gy of the LPF. The question of enemy captives;
including U.S. pilots, will be settled immediately after the
U.S. stops its intervention and aggression in Laos first,
and foremost, end the bombing of Laoe territory.®®

?mording to a September 30, 1971 report in the Wall Street Jour-
nal-

The Pathet Lao, a Hanoi ally not represented at the
Paris Peace Talks, indicate only that they will ‘discuss
risoners when the U.S. pulls out of Laos.” (Mrs. Stephen
:lanson. whose husband a Marine captain, was seen alive
on the ground after his helicopter was shot down over
Laos, says a high-ranking U.S. diplomat confided to her
that there were “70 or 80" U.S. prisoners in Laos. State
Department officials, however, say intelligence sources in-
;lica{e :‘llx& potil'qibili il‘ol‘ “around ?%;nen. and tha:;:dlw-
evel stuff—things like reports of Caucasians spo on
the Ho Chi Minh trail.” 7

In February, 1972, Scth Petrasy told an interviewer that “some
tena of prisoners are resentlgehehzs held” by the Pathet Lao.%®

In April, 1972, told ti ress that U.S. airmen were being
detained in various caves in northern Laocs.®®

These types of statements continued until as late as February 19,
1973, more than three weeks after the PPA was signed, when Soth
said that the Pathet Leo had a detailed accounting of priscners and
where they were being held.”®

+2 DIA Memorsodum, April 17, 1974.

(1]

o7 Wall Street Journal article cited sbove, Septamber 30, 1971,
:: DIA Memorandum, April 17, 1992.

bid.
79 UPY report, Soth Petresy statement, Februsry 19, 1979,
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tention camps for former South Vietnamese military personnel
(AgoVN) iy estigal dentified 19 ted sigh! f
mmittee inv tors iden! reported sightings of Amer-
icans in captivity in and around the Son La area. Of these reports,
9 were first-hand and 10 hearsay. Thirteen of the sightings were in
the mid to late 1970’s. Most inwolve brief, apparently accidental,
sightings of a group of alleged prisoners held separate from the
rest of the lfu'iaon population. For example, in separate reports in
1976, ane U.S. £mn was reportedly seen cutting bamboo, a group
of 60-70 US. POWs were allegedly seen on a soccer field, and six
POWs were apparently seen working. In 1977, there was a hearsay
report that American prisoners were about to be moved, a report
that 24 foreigners were seen under guard and a reported sighting
o{ h:o-?o Americanatin z;' :nmp&gn }39;118 ?m} 1979(,3&;54)3 were an}
other four reports of sightings of relatively large groups o
POWs in the area. Towards the end of 1979, China invaded this
part of Vietnam ard the reported sightings of large numbers of
Americans stopped. Subsequent reports, all hearsay, involve the al-
leﬁd ighting only of individual or small numbers of Americans.
r. Sheetz of DIA testified that the U.S. Government had re-
ceived a total of 30 reports about the possible presence of U.S.
POWs from individuals who had been under detention in the Son
La area during the late 1970's, aside from the many reports corre-
lated to Robert Garwood. Of the 30 reports, 18 were thought to be
fabrications and 12 had been correlated to other types of individ-
uals—such as Swedish development workers or Soviet advisers.

Mr. Gary Sydow, Chief of the Analysis Branch of the DIA's
POW/MIA Oflice, testified that DIA does not believe there is any
evidence that American POWs were ever held in the ARVN deten-
tion camp system in the Son La area. According to Mr. Sydow,
“We've learned a lot about this system. But to hunt for PW's, this
is not a place I would look.” DIA officials also testified that they
had interviewed more than 3700 former inmates of the prison
system and been told by only a very small number about the possi-
:ie reaxéo& ‘:g Americans other Robert Garwood. According

r. :

There was a tremendous flow of information there. None
of these camps existed in isolation, and while . . . there
was a small number of people who said that there was a
number of PW’'s, of Americans other than Robert Gar-
wood, I would point out that a tremendous number—a tre-
mendo larger number of gﬁoph were in that same

m who were exposed to

hey say no.

The DIA officials did testify, however, that a 1979 reported sight-
ing of 40-50 Caucasians, while under guard, bathing in a stream
alcg}gaide a road in Son La province remains under active investi-
gauon.

Oudomsai (Laos)

The Oudomsai region is a very remote area of northern Laos in
which few, if any, American operations occurred during the war.
Committee staff investigators identified 30 reported sightings of

same information flow.
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questing orders concerning what to do with them.” According to
DIA, soon after the enemy report was received, a second, more
careful translation was made, and it stated, “Group has four pi-
rates, They are going from 44 to 93. They are having difficulties
moving along the road.” According to information provided to the
Committee, this report with its two translations were the only
sources of enemy information that led Mooney to issue an informal
message on May 2, 1973, His message states:

1. Have reviewed all available information concerning
the four fliers mentioned in the 5 Feb. message and no ad-
ditional reflections or amplifying information concerning
the dispasition of the fliers were revealed. For your infor-
mation and consideration the following is a recap of the
intercept and some other observations concerning this sub-
ject.

2. Four fliers, whose nationality was not disclosed, were
located on 5 Feb. in the general area north of Moung
Nong. The fliers were to be transferred from “44,” a proba-
ble reference to kilometer marker 44 on route 914 (XD
495254 16-30N 106-25E) to “98," a probable reference to
kilometer marker 93 on route 1032 (XD 549505, 16-43N
106-27E), and were apparently en route to west of the
DMZ in Lacs. Two persons were to be contacted concern-
ing movement of the POWs and if lems were encoun-
tered, high HQS was to be notified to supply “ways and
means” (references to trucks) to move the fliers. Sufficient
water wasg to be given to the fliers.

There had been some difficulties in transporting the
fliers and asked to see if these 'Hoblems had been resolved
so movement could continue. The person also asked that
?e I:g notified of their time of departure as he was waiting

or them.

Although the initial location given, is some 65 km from
the crash site it is possible that at Jeast Sart of the crew
were able to bail out prior to the crash and therefore could
have been closer to this point than the crash site when
they were Z?tured. Further, since vehicle transportation
was indicated, rapid movement is reasonable. It is possible
that these four fliers were part of the crew of the EC-47.

Since Mooney's May 1973 message refers to a single enemy Feb-
ruaréo5. 1973 report and the translations of the report available to
the Committee appear complete, the Committee finds it difficult to
arrive at the same conclusions reached bJ‘ Mocney in his May 1973
m e. For example, it appears that the enemy report contains
no information concerning the pilots being located near Moung
Nong. It does not mention water being given to the fliers. It does
not refer to the supply of “ways and means,” making Mooney's
conclusion concerning trucks pure conjecture.

Nor does the Committee agree with the DIA belief that it was
unlikely that the enemy unit would have used kilometer markers
as reference points in this type of report because using them violat-

basic operational security (OPSEC) practices. Other, similar
types of reports have been furnished to the Committee, and enemy
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tacts with the Lao Army Headquarters and Military Region 5. By
1972, this was expanded to include all other military regions in
Laoe, and was done with close coordination and cooperation with
CIA station staff.

Beginning in 1971, the Team ensured all North Vietnamese
Army and Pathet Lao prisoners and defectors were inte: ted in
detail on a wide variety of in-country, theater, and national intelli-
gence requirements. Declassified documents confirm that informa-
tion on U.S. POWs and MIAs was the first subject covered with all
these sources. This small Exploitation Team produced all military
HUMINT originated reports from Lacs during 1871-75 and aver-
aged one report per day.

_Every North Vietnamese Army and significant Pathet Lao sol-
dier arri at Vientiane was interrogated in detail; however,
with the ority of U.S. POWs who survived into captivity being
taken to North Vietnam within a matter of days or weeks, there
were no known prison camps for U.S. POWs available for exploita-
gon ?y the Joint Personnel Recovery Center or U.S. led paramili-

orces.

. The team’s archival records confirm that the problem with war-
time HUMINT rx:ﬁort' in Lace was the lack of prisoners and de-
fectors (called iers the North Vietnamese). For example,
during 1964-74, there were sl%’ntly more than 150 North Vietnam-
ese Army POWs who reached Vientiane. The precise number of de-
fectors may have been a similar amount. This was a drop in the
bucket from the tens of thousands of North Vietnamese Army
forces from Military Region IV and the 559th Group operating the
Ho Chi Minh Trail.

However, these prisoners and defectors were primarily from
frontline tactical units, had recently been rotated into Laos, and
were ‘not from the rear-area logistical groups where most U.S.
airmen were lost. Thus, the prisoners and defectors often had more
ﬂformation about aircraft losses over North Vietnam than over

08.

The Pathet Lao saw little sustained combat after the mid-1960s,
being almost entirely a North Vietnamese by-controlled effort, and
their force structure in Laos was negligible, It shrank to almost
nothing in southern Lacs in 1972, when nearly the entire South
Laos Regional Command Headquarters, and all major subordinate
units, defected to the Royal Lao Government. A key infredient in
Laos was its severe underpopulation—less than four million people.
I.aoslwt?s half the geograp size of Vietnam, with onetenth its
ulation,

e Team did not operate in isolation to the remainder of the U.
S. inwtl‘laifence organization in the region. The team regularly co-
ordinated with the Order of Battle Center in Udorn, Thailand; in-
telligence exploitation centers in South Vietnam; and with both
Lao and Thai military intelligence officials. The Team was with-
drawn from Laos in the Spring of 1975, after local staff came under
increasing pressure from the Pathet Lao in Vientiane. The project
was terminated at the end of 1975.

Archival records of this Tea confirm that the Team conducted its
first behind-the-lines agent operation in 1972. Other operations fol-

ter, and declassified documents confirm that DIA was op-
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The Nixon Archives refused to allow access by the Commit-
tee to any of the Watergate tapes that had been requested.
Former President Nixon's refusal to allow even the most limit-
ed access in the face of repeated re'i:esta. letters and en-
treaties at the highest levels caused the Committee to draw
sound unfavorable inferences about the actions of the former
President on this issue.

It is unfortunate that the former President had the power to
limit the access and frustrate the wishes of a constitutionally
created Committee of Congress to what was clearly the best
evidence available.

The Committee believes that it has had access to the main mate-
rials on POW/MIA issues within the control of the U.S. Govern-
ment. However, it should be noted that the Committee relied on
the good faith compliance of the agencies and departments to its
subpoenas and requests. The Committee had neither the ability nor
glgm to storm into a department or agency and “seize” its files for

review.

In a Government of laws, the Committee relied upon the lawful
compliance of the agencies and d:mments and found its reliance
well-founded. The areas listed illustrate this: where the
agency or department would not comply on a good-faith basis, the
issue was joined and the department or agency and the Committee
resolved it in a manner acceptable to the %ommittee.

The only ificant area of non-compliance occurred with re-
spect to the Watergate tapes, where former President Nixon' s at-
torneys were able to frustrate the desire of the Committee to
review the tapes for POW/MIA discussions.

Summary

The declassification effort has opened a substantial body of evi-
dence to public scrutiny, but declassification cannot provide all of
the answers. For the US. Government and its citizens, the facts
contained in these documents rﬂuine a judgment. The answers are
not in the blacked-out portions of some U.8. document; if there are
answers, they are in Vietnam, Lacs and Cambadia.

PUBLIC AWARENESS CAMPAIGN

The problem of Americans in enemy hands was a visible and
painful reminder of the Vietnam War's cost. Uncertainties about
the prisoners and missing combined with the numbers who came
home in body bags to erode public support for the war.

Vietnam had signed the Geneva Convention governing treatment
of prisoners of war. In an apparent attempt to circumvent the
Geneva Convention, Americans captured by the Vietnamese were
regarded as “international bandits” or “air pirates;” within the
prison system, they were referred to as “criminals,” the American
public learned after Operation Homecoming.

Given Vietnamese rejection of any limit on their treatment of
American prisoners, families were ﬂepared to believe stories about
abusive treatment of their kin. When the Vietnamese broadcast
antiwar statements made by, or attributed to, American prisoners,
their cynical manipulation intensified the anger of Americans at
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We continue to urge the immediate release of sick and
wounded prisoners, the neutral inspection of prisoner of
war fa.cgilities. and the prompt release of all American pris-
oners.

The same month, the Viet Cong put forward a 10-point peace
plan stating that prisoner releases would have to be negotiated by
the parties to the conflict as a part of the total settlement of the
war. Similarly, North Vietnam argued that repatriation of prison-
ers must wait until the end of hostilities. The U.S. position was
consistent with the provisions of the Geneva Accords, although not
heavily supported by precedent.

Search for allies

That year, the U.S. Government sought to bring the issue to
international attention, includinw ing for United Nations
resolutions and action by the et and Chinese Government,

allies of—and potential conduits to—the Hanoi Government.
Similarly, the State Department stressed the Geneva Convention
on Prisoners of War, generating a debate over North Vietnam'’s
reservations about that Convention. In general, North Vietnam
AT ot applyran argument 1ot witoly Scoeptod by the. Ieorna.
apply—an ent o el ma-
tional eon;'gmnit . Hanoi also argued the prisoners were war
g’mina!& and tiu.s not entitled to the protection of the Geneva

nvention.
rgahizations, inctudieg the fledgling Nationel Longite of Families,
o ns, inc i ation of Families.
B tlAne er;‘q t;‘f the ﬁr:ltl year, ?ﬁdﬁ ;l;l ;‘nfoonfn:; parm.eml‘}iip with
, which originally su soﬂed a policy ctory in Vietnam
that had evolved into Z P(f /MIA awareness promotion. In 1970,
DeD also dealt with the Committee of Liaison with Families of
Prisoners and Missing (COLIAFAM), which opposed the war but
was able to provide for exchange of mail with POWs. By 1972, sev-
eral nal organization also became devoted to supporting
POW as anticipations of their seemingly imminent return
grew.
H. Ross Perot

In the Fall of 1969, Secretary of the Navy John Warner a
proached H. Ross Perot to discuss the POW/&A issue. Perot wﬁ
Comniittee investigators that at that time Warner, Perot’s friend,
and Warner's aide (Col. William Leftwich) visited at length about
the POW issue. Warner arranged for Perot to talk with Col. Chap-
pie James of the DoD, which in turn led to a meeting with Assist-
ant Secretary of Defense Capen. Eventually, Perot said he talked
with Kissinger, who asked him to mount a private effort to asaist
American prisoners. The objective was to embarrass the North Vi-
etnamese into improving treatment of American prisoners to im-
rmve their chance of surviving. Col. Alexander Haig was Perot’s
jaison with the NSC, he said.

9% Pent, PTves confe May 19, 1969.
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Suspicions have surrounded the debriefing of returned POWs fi .
nearly 20 years, primarily because access has been restricted based
on debriefing agreements with the returnees.3°® Did the govern-
ment leave men behind? Did key officials know it? Were the re-
turnees told to not report certain information? Was the prison
system a closed circle of knowledge; could there have been separate
prison systems not known to the returning POWs? Was the Ameri-
can public told the truth?

Debriefing results
Life in captivity

Post-Homecoming debriefings and a DIA Intelligence Appraisal
of them, now unclassified, provide a summary of the prisoners of
war's experience in Southeast Asia 309

Captivity ranged from several hours in South Vietnam to more
than eight years in the North. Most servicemen were captured
during the height of the bombing of the North between 1 and
1968. POWSs captured prior to December 1971 were known as the
“0Old Guys.” The majority of POWs were Air Force and Navy pilots
shot down over North Vietnam and virtually all were captured
within minutes because they descended directly into populated
areas. Many suffered ejection injuries and shock which made eva-
sion impossible; while others evaded successfully for up to 12 days.
Evasion in Lacs was somewhat easier and many more downed
airmen were recovered in the sparsely populated and otherwise
more permissive environment. POWs captured in Laos and taken
to North Vietnam had spent less than three weeks in Laos itself.

The PRG returned 122 US. POWs; 28 were released in South
Vietnam. All but one had been captured by the Viet Cong and de-
tained near the Cambodian border and the last POW was held in
the Delta region. The remaining 94 POWs were captured north of
Da Lat City after 1968 and moved to North Vietnam for detention.

Living conditions in the South were primitive and life was hard.
POWs often were chained or bound for long periods, primarily as a
security precaution. Movement was frequent and involved walking
several weeks between camp sites, and the daily survival routine
varied little through the years. There was no overall policy or sys-
tematic torture of POWSs in South Vietnam, but treatment varied
by individual camp commanders and guards. It was more difficult
to survive captivity in the South, but escape was easier, and 26
POWSs (about 12 percent) captured in the South escaped.

Treatment in North Vietnam varied over three eras. Until late
1965, there was little use of torture. From late 1965 until late 1969,
torture and mistreatment was common. Beginning in late 1969, tor-
ture and mistreatment declined. “Camp rules” were the basis for

punishment, and they specified that '%ll_i\_qeegfc_a_n_m_s_ym*
criminals. This was consistent with North Vietnamese protests

398 Letter, Asistant Secretary of Deferse, Co d, Control, Co ications and Intelli-
R LA Inbeilicense Apoeaissl, DIAIAPPR 35-75, datod 8 : A Summary of
Prisoner of War Experience .o Southesst Asis, A Briefings ma e A Intelligence
Group Brief on ity in South East Asia.
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Under item ¢3, it is noted that MNC evidence cancerning the
;;rvl:n of 964 u‘l 1c¢n: “is :ud on ::tu:s vu::m hﬂi.!

prisoners, prieoner of war interrogations stioning o
returnees, communist radio broadcasts, and che actual
exrmmlwo. of their disappearance from UM Command
control.

Pebruary 5, 1954 -- A prelisble friendly foreiga intelligence

sexvice nntu to the U.8. information had geceived
fzom a Turi ohmr.nvolbgincnmx ia. The
source, who had besn intarrogated in Taurkey, states that
while at Mukden, Manchuria, he “saw several coachss full of
m-u-n&umumm. They were not

speaking at all. (Source: Charity Interrogation
1;85‘619 referenced in declassified cables dated 23 Maxch
)

Pedbruary 6, 1954 -- Secvetary of the Army Robert T. Btevens sends

a sasorandus o the Secretary of Defense. GBtevens
recommends that mestings occur with the State Department to
formulate plans °“for the initiation of diplomatic
nmulum through the offered assistance o! the United
Kingdom.® Stevens also recommends releas. jol.ut. sueo-
Defense public announcement, “now held in
Operaticns Coordinating Board, to resssure the tcuuu
concernad and the American people that our Governasnt is
taking all feasible action in seeking an accounting for ths
'“:ﬁ’ servicemen listed as prisonexs of wer in the Xorsan
con ct.”

Pollowing the sendin o! this sssorandun, an informel
conference is held with representatives of the thres
Services, Defense, and State. °It was egrosd that by
semorandun the State Departasnt would describe in some
detail what diplomatic sctions would be initiated the
United ¢ and would seak Defense CCRCUIIENCE such
an approach.”

Fabyuary 23. 1954 -~ Seventy vives and mothexrs of U.5. POW/MIAs
frxom the Xorean

Conflict travel to the Uaited Xations in New
Genexal

by the Gensral Becretary’s assistant, "The UN bas no
authority over the foreign affairs of membexr statss.®

Narch 5, 1954 == In a letter to the Assistant Secxetary of

Defense, Prunk Nash, the Assistant Secretary of Stats Valter
Robertson states thit they bave no cbjection to the Decamber
18, 1953 British offer to make an approach to the Chinase
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capture of one crsmman from this crew.

m mmxuu ware initially m u%en end vere
to dead/bodies not recovered. 1!70. v.68.

untu:r intelligence received inforpetion that Najor Hastle ;x!::

two other U.S. POV wers alive at s POW camp Dser Vinh,
belieaved this report was not true but wae the product of a y
publicised wisit by three PON wives to Vietaam early in 1970.

Returning U.S. POWs reportad haarsay informstion that Eajor Hestle
was ssen alive on a styetcher in a prison iz Eanol. He was not
reportad alive as of 197).

U.8. & rs in Vietnam 1989 located a possible
crash Msnhud with thuJﬁEmm: and m&vd’ohntuy
information one puot e In:ld at that site. Captain Morgan'’s

remains were 1989. Vietnsa turned over the
identity card Buthh 1962, but his xemains have
not been m.

South Vietnam Bohext L. Mabola

D
(0439)

On August 28, 1966, the four JICs were mssbers of the lst Xarine
Division and were with g fixe tess at an ambush site ten kilometers
scuthwest of Da Neng City, Quang Nam Frovioce. Mnnnu

return from their mission and vare declared missing ﬁ“
4, 1968, Bodenschatw’ tags end a partisl ur.llt -
located. Looal residents oot provids any information about the

fate of the four wen.

Return, U.8. POWs were unible to ido information ebout
their ::go. m“x“ﬂdmm“’wm”a
presusptive of death in Bovember 1974.
South Vietnam Lawzreoce B. Tatum
(0453)
Oa T 10, 1966, Tatum was the puo: of an A-1B which
t by hostile antiaircraft fire and crasbed eight kilomsters

noxth of the Rao Thanh Rivexr curreantly in Trung Luong Dutrl.ct,
Quang Tri Province. A forward air controller did not observe Ta
mxmuzmmrnmmmwmy
aingte. bhmm.m.bhw.hckmm
trees on a hillside. lomumm-nhlyonm . Be
cbeazved hostile forces approach the parachute and evideatly pull

AFPENDIX 2 - Votsey 135 - Pago 13
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Rorth Vietnam Jokn 8. Bamilton
(0644)

On Artu. 19, 1967, xajor Esmilton was the pilot of an A-18, one in
1ight of two sircraft searching for two pilots downed over Borth
vlo:n- ¥hile over BEoa Binh Province, Bamilton was attacked b¥
four hostile MIG~17 aircraft, and his pleces o
his aircraft’'s outer wing !ly off after it was hit by caunon fire.
His aixcrsft crashed 24 kilomstars soutksast of Hoa dinh City.
Major Ramilton was not seen ejecting from his aircratt snd there
was no electronic beeper heard. He was declared missing in action.

on lprn 19th, that same day, Hanoi radio rcyou:tod the shoot down
of American rescue aircraft over Province. This
:opon, while not msentioning the fate of t.ho puat, was believed to
correlats to Kajor Hamilton’s incident of loss.

In September 1970, a Pooplo'l Axay Of Vietnam soldiar reported t

caucasian pilots captured in Lac Thuy District in April 1968 atm
being shot down in nuul combat with NIG jet airerxaft. The
soldier identified a photognph of Najor Bamilton as similar to one
of those captured, and the npun wvas placed in Major Eamilton‘s
file as possibly relating to his capture. After ation
Homscoming, a resvaluation of this reporxt led to a revarsal of the
wvartiss evaluation. It was detsrmined that this incident cctuuy
correlated to Xajor Thomas Madison and Major Thosas Sterling who
hed bean lost as descrided and who returned alive during Operation

Returning U.8. PORs had no informaticn on Haxilton's precise fate.
In March 1979, he was declared killed m action/body not recovered
based on a presunptive finding of death

In Januvary 1991, a t wos vod ab a grave with the
rexaing of a U, 8. puot in the area vhare Major Hamilton was lost.
Then, in May 1991, a source provided the rubbing of a dog-tag
associated with Major Hamilton and & bone fragmant and cleimed that
remains were recovered from an ared near Vinh City, mho Tinh
Prowvince. This is & considerable distance sway from

crash site. In October 1991, another sourcs visited the Joint Task
rorce office in Manoli and turnod over 3 bone fragment and
identifying information about Major Hamilton. The source claimed
his friend found Major Esmilton’'s nau.ns at another location, this
time in Quang Biph Province.

APPEEDIX 2 ~ Vessay 135 - Page 16
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After ucc.uluuy cv-l.l.:g. related that be had

bank of n-u People’s Army of
m—wm;«:nm mt. Be absexrved South
Vietnansese E wuly 00 msters away raise their
bands but 0o perscopal knowledge of the fats of Colonal
Browalees.
South Vietnamese 1 ted duy.
b e e byl ey
the Defense Attache Offioce, 3aigon, el Brownlea’'s

fate. These socounts, all aettnuud to d.l.!tomt louth Vietnanese
mymmm, stated that Colonel Rrownles bad committed
.uuu“:d prior to cspture. Nooe of these accounts coald be
ver. .

One returning 0.5 , Captain Reedsar, knew Colonel Rrownlee had
m.:mnxxmmmuhmmuomum-u

htmuhwldpo!uotm Captain Resdar bad also beard an
count traced to doctor that Colooel Brownlee ws
M, uewmmm!mmmuhmxo.

Teturning U.5. POW was able to provide any information on
Oolml Jrownlee’s precise fate. In Novemder 1978 he was declared
dead/body not recovered, based on a presumptive finding of death.

In Nay 1995, the Joint Casualty Besolution Cantexr received a m
that a workexr in the Dak To axrea had found human resains there
This report was replaced in Colonel BAroxmles’s file.

North Vietnam Joseph W.

A U.8. muvamxmmmmmm
mmu.u.u.m:muqa. 1972 in which the "air

APPANDIX 2 - SMXTX 324 - Pege 107
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Dx. William R. Maples, Curator of Physical Juthromp
Florida State Nuseum, University of Plorida, told the ttee
that a three member tean which included Dr. Bllis Kerley, Dr.
Lowell Levine and himself was asked by the Aray to to the
Cantral Identification ILaboratory in Bawaii and evaluate its
procedure and staff. He discussed the Pakse crash and the
reaains, stating that it wvas quite different in its oversll
nature from everything else that sesas to go to the Laboxatory.
In this case the Laboratory did a poor job, but on the whole,
they do a good job. One of the advantages is the total lack of
training in Vietnam. They do not know what we do in terms of
identification, so they can not play games with us.’’ In the
Pakse case, they were wrong in reaching a conclusion when the
remains were unidentifiable.

The comittee met again an July 16, 1986, to hear testinony
from Major Mark Saith Sergeant First Class Mslvin Mclntire.
The two had appeared before the comaittees cn January 28, 1986,
and indicated their willingness to share information and the
evidence they had which would prove American servicemsn had bsen
held in captivity in Southeast Asia in 1984. They said they had
rhotographs, maps, documents, etc. that would prove live
prisoners of war in Southeast Asia. They also testified about
the alleged existence of a videotape which depicts Caucasians in
captivity in October 1985. Mr. Saith claimed to have viewed the
248 mninutes of the tape while Nr. MclIntirxe did not.!*

Major Smith provided copies of photos which contain a total
of three Americans. The photographs wero ded to him by a
source in Thailand who he considers reliablé, showing Americans
vho were left in Southeast Asia at the conclusion of the vietnam
war.

As to the film in guestion, a letter was written to the
White House and hand carriod by Congressman Bill Hendon. Najor
Smith and Mr, Waple ware to show up in Singapore with §4.2
nillion in cash for Nr. Obassy to obtain the f£ilm.}*

Mr. James P. Coyne, a writer appeared before the cosmittee
and said that he had been investigating the possibility of live
Azerican prisoners of war capt! during the war in Vietnam
still being alive. He was in Thailand for over threc years as a
foreign correspondent for Soldier of Portune magasine. Ho foels
that thexre are those who would trade on the POW/MIA issue for
nothing more than financial gain. Some have appeared before the

Bgearing, Vol. II, p. 69.
“Hearing, Vol. II, p. 106.
%gearing, Vol. II, p. 135.
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Mcounting - Shields At the termnination of Homscoming we
Shields 06/235/92 had no current hard evidence that
Statement Americans were still held prisomer in

Southeast Asia... None of those who
returned had any indication that
anyone had been left behind. We knew
that there was a possibility that
dafectors were alive in enemy-
controlled areas, but had no firm
evidence to confirm this either.

Robert Garwood was an axazple of an
Amsrican whom we felt might be alive
and in an enemy-controlled area, But
according to the returneas who saw
him last, he was not being held as a
prisoner.

© APPENDIX 6 -

000225

000110



Case 1:04-cv-00814-RCL Document 260-1 Filed 10/22/16 Page 108 of 169
CBE PHALCEOTB14-HHK  Document 95-3  Filed 087081683 Page 2 of-10

i Stenographic Transerint of
I_]EA- + REPRODUCED AT THE NATIONAL ARCKIVES
$ VT3 [TV

« Before the

SELECT COMMITTEE ON POV/MIA AFFAIRS

'UNITED STATES SENATE -

ca—— -

DEPOSITION OF o5, VIENTIANE (I‘?70"'737

Tuesday, June 9, 1992
Exhibits 1-5 attached

' ades 2

Gopy___L_ol_;L., o

Washington, D.C. . "’

ALDERSON REPORTING- COMPANY
. 1111 14TH STREET, NW. .
> WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005-5650
: T (202) 289-2260

EXHIBIT

000026




Case 1:04-cv-00814-RCL Document 260-1 Filed 10/22/16 Page 109 of 169
ABFEEAR0A: t9-09814-HHK  Document 95-3  Filed 0B/54708*Page 3 610

REPRODUCED AT THE RATIONAL ARCHIVES 27

1 A. G. McMurtrie Godley. N

2 Q. Godley, as stated in the Poreign Service List

3 of June, 1972.

4 A. Right. Okay.

S Q. Who I might add is one of the great American

6 proconsuls in my book, a superb leader and an excellent .

7 person. It was a sheer pleasure to work with him. And

8 let me add, too, this is pertinent to our general roll-

9 .- out, that this 1nérdin;te CIA presence, we worﬁﬁ@_ﬁor the
10 Ambassador. He was the boss. Whereas I was in charge of
1) the ground operations, in effect, the Ambassador was
12 involved 15 everything we did, and if the Ambassador said
13 "no," it was no. If the Ambassador said "yes," it was
14 yes. There was no situation where CIA was running a
15 clandestine war. This was the United States mission in
16 operation there; under the direction and command of the
17 Ambassador.

18 Q. Did you have direct contact with washington?

19, A. I had direct cable contact.

20 . Q. Bypassing the Ambassador ever, or always with

21 | his consent? <

22 ' A. No. I mean, I had my own communications

23 channel. That's the way it was set up. CIA communicateg:;

24 directly.
25 The Ambassador had access to everything I did,

000027
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l | said, wrote, or whatever. If he came into my office and
2 said “"What have you got here, .* I mean, I showed it
3 to him. I didn't check every message I wrote before I
4 sent it. I didn't have to. My guidelines with him were
5 very, very clear, He was privy to everything I was doing,
6 and everything I said or did I did under his authority. .
7 I did not see his communications. He generally
8 showed me his communications. ) '
9 ) You know how it works in en embassi?‘_?here's
10 an awful lot of traffic being passed back and forth among
1 the units of the embassy, the political section, the
12 economic éection, the CIA section, and so on. They're in
13 a constant interchange of information.
14 Now, there are privacy channels, privacy
15 messages that are sent back that are not shown to
16 everybody. If I sent a privacy back, you want to call it
17 éhat, on a sensitive matter, it was something I either
18 showed to the Ambassador or discussed with the Ambassador.
© 19 There were no end-run, end-around operations there at all.
20 I say that with great confidence. '
21 I feel very confident, too, that whatever the
22 Ambassador did that was important to my operations I knew
23 about. T
24 : I think we had as thorough and as intimate an
25 " exchange of information and ideas as I could ever expect
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to see or hope to see. N

On the routine distribution of traffic, the

intelligence reporting, that is, you're familiar with the

designation, the "FOB® designation of the intelligence

from

that

Vientiane --

Q. Yes.

A, -- went routinely to everybody in the mission,
is, to all the chiefs of section. The operational

w traffic did not get the same kind of distributiBh. So our

routine operational traffic, I didn't bother the

Ambassador with that. I mean, he didn't see that. He

could see it if he wanted to. If he came in and he asked

me, I would show him anything. I had no hesitation to do

SO,

I didn't show it to everybody in the Political

Section. Dick ﬁowland, for example, we worked very

ciosely together. But he didn't need to see some of the

personnel traffic, for example. They were not privy to

it.
didn'

The Ambassador could see if it he wanted to, but he

t, as a rule.

Q. How closely did the Director of Certral

'Intelligencé monitor the Laos operation?

A. well, my impression is he rode it very, very - -

carefully. It was a hot subject in Washington at the

“time.

There were various interdepartmental, interagency
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. 1 groups that governed our operation -~ the WSAG, the
2 Washington Special Action Group, for example. I don't
3 recall whether the Director himself was a member of thpt,
4 but certainly the Deputy Director was. He was involved
5 with the white House on an almost daily basis on vietnam,
6 on Laos, and so on. So to my understanding, he was on our .
7 operation like a leech, you might say. I mean, he was
8 there. He was privy to it all. I frequently heard frem
9 ..w— him in the cable traffic. S~
10 . You know, we had varlous ways of writz;g
1l messages where we can senq a routine operational message
12 back and it goes from desk to desk. But if I want
13 somebody in particular to see it, I can send it from me to
14 him, from me to the Deputy Director, and put his neme on
15 it. So I assume he saw most of the press, but there's a
16 screening procéss and he can't read every cable that ccmes
17 back.
19 Whenever I was in contact with him, he_knew
19 everything I was up to. He was privy and conversant on
20 the whole shebang.
21 Q. Was there ever any tension betweed Helms and
22 his guidance and Ambassador Godley's guidance?
23 A, Never. No. o
24 Q. Was there sver any tension between Helms and
25 his sense of what was good for Laos versus what was coming

—— TN YT

000030

000115



Case 1:04-cv-00814-RCL Document 260-1 Filed 10/22/16 Page 113 of 169

wEaseh:@010vr@0814-HHK Document 95-3  Filed T6TI4708°° Page 76t 10

000031

w N -

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

w w ~N & (i} [
’

REPRODUCED AT THE RATIONAL ARCHIVES
= 62

a

Q. I'd like you to refresh your memory with a
document. 1I'd like you to take a few minutes to look at

this.

I have tabbed i;, and I have tabbed on the side
in the back areas that mention U.S. prisoners seen in
Laos. I'd like you to describe, again, if you are
familiar with it, if you had a hand in drafting it or
approving it.

I'd also like you, as you read the source line,
to say what gave rise to this 20 page report in 1971,
please.

Take a few 'minutes, as you need.

[{Discussion off the record.] K]

'MR. MCCREARY: Let's go back on the record.

THE WITNESS: Well, I had to have seen this

report. This could not have gone out without my intimate

.involvement with it. No question about that. I don't

remember it, but then, my memory is -- I mean, I don't
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- 63
remember specifically reading this.

Now, what gave rise to it? It sounds to me
like we must have been asked by Headquarters to do it. 1In
other words, give us your best compilation of all you've
got, whatever you think, whatever you can add on the
subject of prisoners of war. e

I would say it's in response to a Héidquarters
request. But there, again, I could be wrong. =3I don't
know, -

Q. You do not recall, then, a specific tasking? I
mean, that's a monumental éésk for any embassy, it strikes
me.

A. well, this is not an embassy. This is a
station.

Q. Correction, station. Yes.

A. Oh, yes. Well, I suspect this was done in

at my request undoubtedly, and done by them on the
basis of reporting from : ) That's where
they would have had, they would have had a continuing
overview of all that was happening, all that was being
reported by the units.

In vientiane, the station itself, I don't think

we would have done it.
Q. would:your station have briefed Ambassador

Godley --

- ————
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A. ©Oh, absolutely.

64

Q. -- on the contents of the report?

A. oOh, he would have seen the report. Oh, no ',
doubt about that. I mean, this report would never have
gone in without him seeing it, without the Political
Section, and the attaches, and, likewise, Army and Air. '
They would have seen it. This would have been,- I feei

confident, a well coordinated presentation, because it's

aSon

-“of interest to so many different components of the

mission, and of the government; for that matter.
MR. McCREARY: I‘d like to have a copy of that
made and we'll mark it as an exhibit.
THE WITNESS: Let's see, I just can't think.
September, Godley wasn't away at that time.
MR. McCREARY: For the record, Exhibit 4 will
be the resume of
(The document referred to
was marked Exhibit
No. 4, for identificaticn.]
MR. McCREARY: Exhibit 5 will be

.
-

{The document referred to

was marked Exhibit T

; No. 5, for identification.])
THE WITNESS: I'm trying to think of what was

- .
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happening in September of 1971.

65

I guess what I just said,

the Ambassador had to have seen this. It's conceivable

that the Ambassador was on leave and might not have seen

the report. I don't know. But the mission would have

seen this, the chief of mission, the charge or the DcM,’

Monte Stearns. This would have been a well staffed

presentation.

BY MR. MCCREARY (Resuming):

S~

Q. _Does that represent an authoritative pusitien,

as authoritative as it gets in

the field, more or less?

A. Not quite as authoritative, no, as a source

description. If you see something which is a situation

appraisal, if you see something on Laos with that on it,

that comes from me. I mean, I wrote it.

This- is something that a reliable source, this

is a compilation done by our staff of all information

available to us at the time from a variety of sources.

other words, I don't consider it as authoritative, even

though I'd written it.myself.
authoritative.
Q. I understand. That'

I mean, it's perfectly

s clear.

In

A. As for my not remembering it as well, there are

a lot of things I don't remember.

o romn

In September of 1971, we were in the build-up

pericd of the Plaine des Jars,

the period of

-
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A I provided him an outline of activities that
resulted in the ultimate disappearance of a large quantity of
POW-MIA people.

Q Can you be more specific, please?

A Sure. In 1970; I was stationed at a unit called
Task Force Alpha in Nekhon Phnom, Thailand, and I was cleared
for top-secret material. And we ran a very extremely
classified project at the time that was called, "“The
Projecti®

Q The Project?

A The Project. And the Project was a code name for
Tagsk Force Alpha, which was:a personal project of Defense
Secretary McNamarai And its area of involvement was to
coordinate the war effort throughout Laos.

And in doing so, I was a targeter. My job was to
supervise people and direct. targeting strikes.through --
target-reguests- throughout primarily an area known as Steel
Tiéer"within<naosé

And in so doing, we became aware -~ “we" meaning
the U.S. Air Force ~-- became aware of patterns of placing
POW!s:- in a.very hostile, threatening environment to be used
in an effort to prevent American targeting efforts in Laos
and North Vietnam.

Q I'm not with you. What is the hostile environment

to which you refer?

Diversified Beporting Services, Inc.
918 16TH STREET, N.W. SUITE 803
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006
(202) 296-2929
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10
A Well, hostile environment I refer to is taking
small POW sites»and building them, constructing them within
the interval confinement of another target complex, i.e., a:
pumping station; POL storage, ammunition storage, truck

park/storage area.

The types of targets that we were trained to gb
after in Laos was exactly the type of targets that they were
shipping prisoners of war to in an attempt to force us to
comply with the Geneva Convention and not bomb such
facilities.

Q What other information did you provide to Mr.
Cummings on this occasion? .

A E:galayed to him a concern that I've had since
19706:. And-that was that a decision was made to allow the
strikes to actually penetrate those target complexes where
the POW's-were held. An overt decision was made to hit those
targets and we did so. And resultedly destroyed a lot of
material along with human life.

Q Dgiyou have an understanding as to when that
decision was:-made?

A Yes, I do. Shortly after the Kent State incident
in 1970, which I believe was in May of 1970, if my memory
serves me correctly.

Q And do 'you have an understanding as to who made

that decision?

Diversified Reporting Services, Inc.
918 16m STREET, N.W. SUITE 803
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006
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A I was an instrument of the decision. I did not
make the decision. I -- my job at the time was to -- the
computerized targeting system that we utilized at Task Force
Alpha -- which at that time was the world's most complex, we
were told. It was an IBM 360 -- 360E system that required
on~-site technicians continuously from IBM to maintain it.

The -- a lot of this I don't wish to go into. I'm
sure it's still classified. But the system itself was a
guidance system using sensors buried in the ground to
coordinate and conduct strikes at night and in very inclimate
weather conditions, primarily during the rainy monsoon season
in Southeast Asia.

And in support of that targeting program, we were
the: target. coordinator to Phon Phen in VNT in Laos for the
CIA to conduct their activities: So we were basically the
liaison or coordinator for all strike authorization within
Steel Tiger and part of what was called Barrel Roll area.

Q Again, do you -- do you know who made the decision
in question? I understand you did not.

A I know who implemented the order. I don't know who
made the decision.

Q Tell me, please, what is Steel Tiger?

A Steel Tiger, if you have a:map: of.Laos is primarily
the area that's slender, skinny, approximately a hundred
nautical miles wide that's below the large round northern

Divessified Reporting Services, Inc.
918 16T STREET, N.W. SUITE 803

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20008
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1 And the safeguard system was very simple. If you
2 entered in a set of coordinates and you referred into a

3 computer code, if you listed a target as a POW—MiA possible

4 complex or if you listed it as a hospital, for example, any

5 other agency trying to target that unit -- that complex, it
6 would be automatically rejected by our computer.

7 So that we would alert the other organization that
8 they couldn't bomb there. And we had to write up a reason

9 why. We had to relay a computerized message to that element

10 to say what we knew that they probably were unaware of
11 through PIREPS, pilot reports, predominantly.

Héi‘safequards were in place when I ar¥ived.

12
13 And throughout my -- I"akrived in Thailand in October of
14 197¢. And throughout that dry period -~ I had arrived just

15 as the monsoon season was over.

REPRODUCED AT THE NATIONAL ARCHIVES

16 : And as the hostile activities increased -- which
17 was primarily a movement of materials in massive guantity to
18 the south in an attempt of what we im-intelligence assumed
19 was goinq‘ﬁo'bé another Tet offensive.

20 As we basically became crippled with our targeting
21 activities throughout the initial onset of the dry season

22 from October up until February or so, we could bomb less and
23 less and hit less and less and get less and less bomb damage

24 assessment.

25 At a unit level, I was informed that as of March,

Diversified Reporting Services, Inc.
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WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006
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that. the safeguards would be removed from the computer

system. In other words, the computer would accept the target
request from the other unit without alerting that unit to the
fact that it was, in fact, a POW -- a potential POW location.

Q What else did you tell Mr. Cummings during that
conversation?

A I told Mr. Cummings I thought this was horrendous
that we did this to our people. And that I would help in any
way whatsoever to ~- within the framework of the law to help
him do research in that area.

Q Did you tell him anything else on that occasion?

A I have outlined the bulk of what we discussed. And
I believe your request -- I believe there's an affidavit or a
document I have seen that discusses a source that Mr.
Cummings has, and I am that source.

Q What did Mr. Cummings say to you during this
conversation?

A Well, he was -- if this proved to be true, he was
appalled too. He couldn't believe that a decision was made
without the public knowledge of. And there's obviously been

an ongoing -- I don't want to use the word "cover-up," but .

lack of initiative to get to the bottom of a lot of the MIA
issue, in my opinion, and he wanted to pursue it. And I
strongly encouraged him to do so.

Q How did you and Mr. Cummings happen to meet?

Diversified Reporting Services, Inc.
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S U.S. Senate i

6 Select COmmittee:gn'Pew/HIA‘
7 Affairs . . -
8 Washington, D. C.

9 Deposition of BOBBY RAY INMAN, the witness

10 herein, called for examination by counsel for the Senate

11 Select Committee on POW/MIA Affairs, convened, pursuant to
12 notice, at 9:47 a.m.. in $-407, The Capitél, the witness

13 having been duly sworn by MICHAL ANN SCHAFER, CVYR, a Notary
14 Public in and for the District of Co%umbia, and the

15 proceedings being taken down by Stenomask by MICHAL ANN

16 SCHAFER, CVR, and transcribed by her.
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organization.

But this is 3 December 1979. Here's what the
original is. This would be the Exhibit, but we';l y?rk out
of this notebook. This is what it actually looks %;xq out
of the files of NSA. Would you just kind of take. a moment.
to look at that? .

Here’'s an orzientation map of where that activity
is going on, far northeastern Laos.

A. And Sam Neua and Viang Sai. Yes. =

(Pause. ]

Q. Would something like that have been Brought to
your attention?

A. The answexr is probably not. iiny if it was
assigned a high degree of validity. What would normally
happen with something like this is that it would flow to
the imagery, to the people who were doing liaison with NPIC
and DIA, though sometimes competition may have gotten in

the way of that.

In this case, it would appear this flowed from
CIA, not from NSA.

Q. It came from CIA to NSA to request -~-

A. Then, if it came in the process what would
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Case 1:04-cv-00814-RCL Document 260-1 Filed 10/22/16 Page 126 of 169
Case 1:04-cv-00814-HHK Document 95-9 Filed 06/04/08 Page 4 of 9

: v ‘. ] ) ) - \\ R o S o .
‘ o -, .
M‘ 03 W ,./ _.l; »..:’. \..~.~ -~ .’
R ol Hol . —SEEREF '
. y

F VN .
. POSSIBLE/SUSPECT PRISONER OF WAR CAMPS
AND BRIEFING BOARDS/NOTES 3
. INTRODUCTION :
e - .- ..
There are 18 possible prisoner of war camps in North :

Vietnam. A possible or Suspect PW camp is one in which there
is some information or evidence that it might be, or coulad -
have been, used for the detention of American prisoners on a

peraanent bagis. The words "possible” and "suspect” are used

interchangeably. N
The official names assigned to the Possible camps are
selected by DIA by the same process used for the confirmed
cc'-pnz.' 1f the installation’s name is known, that name is used;
© _if 1t 1s not known, a placename near the facility is selected.
Ii{'nnnch as no known American prisoners have been held at the

possible PW camps on a permanent basis, there are no nicknames

for these 1& camp:. 7Tio Zoca*iz= ~f the 18 rossible PW camps

'_ 4a::'h shown on page 200.

This Section contains copies of all the briefing- boards s
- and notes issued to date on the possible PW camps. The camps -*‘
are listed in alphabetical order. '

»k z
199 .
SECRET e

tt t 8

000132



L LR ",. R

Case 1:04-cv-00814-RCL Document 260-1 Filed 10/22/16 Page 127 of 169

Case 1:04-cv-00814-HHK Document 95-9 Filed 06/04/08 Page 5 of 9

- - PN . weago.
= - RN
N
y .
Date: 29 October 1969
. NORTH VIETNAM ) ~
BRIEFING NOTES R SRR
ON -
BRIEFING BOARD NO., 10-69-3
1. INSTALLATION: SON TAY Possible PW Camp, N-69 )
2. . M . atene
3. °  LOCATION : 21 08 36N 105 30 O1E
4, . This installation ia located on the east bank of the .
SONG 'CON (River), 9.6 NM northwest of SON TAY (NIS 21 O 25
30E) and 0.7 NM south of the SONG HONG HA (Red River).
5. The compound is P enclosed by a o

masonry wall about 19 feet high. Inside the compound are 3

quarters-type buildings, 1 latrine/shower, 1 shed and 2 guard

towers. One building which appeared in 1967 R has

been renoved and its foundation is still visible on current

© grrion Nine support buildings are located outside the

mll on the east and asocuth sides of the installation. mg+e? 2
reveals the wall now enclosing the compound was o

constructed after 17 September 1967. .
6. The location of this installation is remarkably close
to hev &l & Conpownd iviriells i:rorved durinc the reriod

January to September 1967. Source of this inforwation reporved
‘4geeing approximately 10 U.S. .PWs inside the compound during his ..
period of observation. Lack of collateral information precludes °
verification of this installation as a PW compound. -

--':_ ;.

» W P
":')" co -:.‘;
365 .

% - . (Reverse Blank )
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Date: '3 February 1970
' NO NAM )
= RTH VIB%BIEPING NOTES - - .-
o“ -
BRIEFING BOARD NO. 1-70-6
4
1. INSTALLATION: SON TAY Possible PW Camp, N-69
2. O™ . ‘
3. 7 LOCATION : 21 08 36N 105 30 OlE
4, ° This Briefing Board supplements ‘Brief Board Jjo.

5. . Photography of 12 December 1969 reveals significant new
construction at this facility since 4 July 1969:

a, The masonry wall around the compound has been extended -
50 feet northward so that it now encloses an area .

. Be Guard towers are located at the southwest and northwest
cornets of the compound. A possible guard tower is located at
the center of the east wall, The guard tower located at the
northeast corner of the compound before it was enlarged has »
been removed.

¢. There is a gate in the east wall with a gueld LTuase &l
the scuth end of the gate.

d. Two new quarters-type buildings (Annotations 5D and SE)
havq been constructed in the compound.

" e. Outside the compound a thatched-roof support building
(Annotation 8A) has been partially dismantled. Co

f. Also outside the compound, & quarters-type building
(Annotation 7B) has been newly constructed. ‘

6. . . The new construction strengthens the possibility that
this installation is ’Wor detention purposes, however, no
additional collateral information has been received to

-y
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pate: 9 June 1970

NORTH VTETNAM - ..
BRIEFING NOTES b

ON
BRIEFING BOARD NO, 5-70-1 . —-—

) o INSTALLATION: SON TAY PW Camp, N-69
2. DAn
3. LOCATION : 21 08 36N 195 30 D1E

4, Briefing Board Nos., 10-69-3 and 1-70-6 and accolipgnying
Briefing Notes are superseded.

5. This installation was identified as a possible PW camp
in October 1969 from a reported observation of a detention
facility in this vicinity in September 1967, Source of this
report described the camp as enclosed by a barbed wire fence on
that date. Photo interpretation validated source's description
and the existing walls around the compound were determined to
have been constructed after September 1967.

6. - Between 4 July and 12 December 1969, the compound was
enlarged. The walls were extended 50 feet northward and two -
additional quarters-type buildings (Annotations 5C and 5D) were
constructed inciZe the compound. The building annotated 5A

was reported toc te LwC Cuildings on previcusly terosl Iolioling
Boards on this installation.

7. In April 1970, information was obtained which confirmed
this facility as a currently operational PW camp.

- %
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Incellig:n e Information Report
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THIS 1S AN INFORMATION REPORT, NOT FINALLY EVALUATED NITELLIGENCE

Dmﬁa‘)‘l or
PLAN

« ®oee

cm s w e,

) . : REFORT NO. cseu/onss-as
s B . :'.. ’ WVM
T geest L DATE DISTR. Tu1H6 6~

/'—-\ ‘/ . . - . .
pol =% 25 July 1969 RS ) I L
T CANF

Stimated Enemy Prison Order
of Battle in Laos .

. 1. As of 25 July 1969, there were an estiuated $00
pérsonnel committed to guarding, escorting, and providing
sunport for prisoners of war (POVY in 54 confirmed eneay

@ command and support persoonel for Laos, uentioned
B thé™: suknary ‘of esfinat%d eoeay order of battle for Laos

S 15 July 1969, <
\o

2, living _conditions, Generalls, POWs receive busana’

treatue¢dt by, Asian standards. comnent: Some FOWs
bave stated that they had received unhumane treatment or

were subjected to various indiganities.) Food, although
often reported is minimal, unclean, and unseasoned, is
sufficent for cxistance; however, it often leads to
nalonutrition and discase which clains a large number of

POW casualties, Medical treatment, while not adequate

by Western standards, is noruany.avu'ilahle'!.n pr:ut‘uve""—

fOrn.

caaps in Laos ese personnel are reflected as a porttﬂ

3. Pow cangs. POW are configed to =& cave and/or
stockade type structure during the night, but are premitted

s oz -3 - S : o

4 a .
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camp locations are changed froquently to provido better
security. In soze cases, all’ocr part of ths PO¥s are
allowed boyond the prison coafines iunder-light guard to
forage for jungle foods, Prison guard forces are usually’
made up 62 porscnncl who due to their age or physical
. “ondition are ucfit.for regular military duty., Pathet
Laoc soldiers mormally make up escort and guard forces,
llany POW camps have full or ‘part time North Vietnanese lny
.a"vuou. NVA interZogaters occasionally.qu qmttm-' =

4. Political indoctrination. The enemy makes &
wffort to indoctrinate POWS to the Cozzunist cause -t
.long periodas ©of political trainiang (“brain washiag™),
and when a POY shows favorable fmprovemsat, he is rele: m
* 1o become & soldier, a ‘tn-ur, or often a mpuudut.

8. As o 38 Jply, ouuy m-ou wore con!l.md at tlu
. .- following loclt:l.on.l. X

"7 V. locatton - ¢ Iibl. nat!.on:li _and/or - ,.,‘ i
« o EEE - LB risoners o AR

2.i Tx 0102 ‘. " ¥ 450 to 800 prisoners, couplex. " iFRE™

s vsurrounded by bamboo fencs '
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. . . . . - . ‘ v DK A

2 QD s118 ] _ : S M
. L e ,..:'_..

H . QD4SS . U LT e s e e
. L. s . . - e e NGV G .,
o T . T A A
L T S
¢ 13 4210 S A S

b
-y raa- o .
. -u\..-n.—.mw...-u.—..»--.... N -

T T 7449 - 300 to 800 aoyu m Am (rm oo

PO -l me o

ONA‘

- -

.
S vom 108 wvaie cem s 4
.
-t s o .ae
-

.
-..

-

000139



Case 1:04-cv-00814-RCL Document 260-1 Filed 10/22/16 Page 134 of 169
Case 1:04-cv-00814-HHK Document 95-20 Filed 06/04/08 Page 3 of 18

13
O //// /Cz. / 72‘-2/

Intelligence Information {Cable IN 001754
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". Lt taimd %
THIS IS AN NFOLMATION RiFORT, NOT.- rl\AlLY“E\'AlOAT:D INTELUGINCE

: 0606432 iz Siaiei OTE TDCS -314/00217-70 |
T T T T pist 6 JANUARY 1870
COUNTRY . )LAOS ‘ Y S
po1 |  POSSIBLY LATE 1969 OR EARLY 1572 \///_ L

SYBJECI GENERAL LOCATION OF PRISON CANP COKTAINING AB'JUT
20 UhITED SIAT‘S AIF FORCE PILOIS IN T)-"‘ Bntl NA‘(AY '--_ -

" REGION OF HOUA PHAN wamcs R R

-

acQ | . )'Laos,;ulurrf_a‘fe:z;_umumy 157:‘3‘
CE g

kst TS e

S DUR
A S ‘3:'\ B
TR e : "“:"‘_"

' / ABOUT 2@ UHITED_SIAT.ES AIR FORCE PILOTS WERE ° T
IiPRISONED IN A CONCEALED SECTION OF THE BAN HAKAY /VH 1955,

AREA CF SAX REUA PROVINCE, ACCORDING TO T VILLAGZRS w40

VISITZD THE REGICK IO BUY A RADIO OK AN URSTATED, OATE BUI S
POSSIBLY TN } ATE 1569 OR EARLY 1972, wusn THE noam S .-_.
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e _.A_ . . EXi; Do’

fclexrifcarion ) {d{asem comirols) . Pl

l - ‘—-—-*'-—_
VIENTAMESE ARMY /NVA/ GUARDS NOTICED THAT THE TWO VILLAGERS

SaAW THZ PJLOTS, THE GUARDS SEIZED THEM ANRD SAID THEY TOO

WOULD BE IMPRISONED.

{ 2. THE PATHET LAO FUNCTIONARY, WHO WAS SELLING THE

'~ YILLAGERS THE RADIO, INTERCEDED AND TOLD THE BVA GUARDS HE
HAD TOLD THE VILLAGERS I0 COME WITH HIM TO GET THE RADIO.
"THE ﬂ;'A GUARDS RELEASED THE VILLAGERS, BUT DEMANDED THEY NOT

| - © - TELL ANYONE ELSE ABOUT THE LOCATION OF THE PILOTS PRISON

. cane.

Jic

LAOS WERE TAKER TO NORTH VIETNAM IK LATE DECE%BER 1968,/ THE
27 AMMERICAN PRISOREZRS THAT MAD BEEN IR LAOS AT THAT TIME
A .- -WERE ASSEMBLED J% THE BAN HANG LOWG /VHK 132625/ AREA ABOUT

MID-WAY BETWEEN BAN NAXAY AND SAM NEUA sUM @8957S/. THEY
‘WERE TO BE USED IN A PRISONER EXCHANGE WITH THE SOUTH
VIEIN/MESE GOVERNMERT, :
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LOCA™ TONS -OF PRISON CAMPS IN LA0S

(a) (V¥ 196550) , 6 Jan. 66, 3 US Pis,

(b) (VH 194566) , Aug, 66, at least 1 US prisozer in cava,

(¢) (vH 1957) , prison in cave, 3-5 US, 211 reported dead, Dec. 66,
(a) (vm 156546) , Dec. 66, 4 US.

(e) (WVH 1955) , Dec. 65, Cave withk 3 US and 2 others,

‘/\ L-1 Ban Nakey Teu (V 195559 20 24N 104 133)

1-2 Muong Pnine (XD 090270 16 31N 105 01E)
(a) UVAMES Air Awesica crew, 5 Sept, 63, hsld for 12
hours, taken to I-4.
(b) - ARMES etc,, Dec, 63~ Mar, 64, helé for 100 deys,
wen to 1-12, '
L-3 Nong Hat (UG 946550 19 29N 103 59E)
Nov, 61~ Feb., 62, 4 US Pus,
L-, Een Thakhéng (XD 310460 16 L1N 106 13%)
ELES etc., Sept.- Nov. 63, held for 79 days, taken
to L-11, '
L-5 Xhang Khay (UG 160560 19 2SN 103 14%)

- 10-12 Oct, 63, 1 US, '

16 Muong Phine (XD 160360 16 36N 106 OSE)
Sept, 63, temporary

i-7 1Ia Hierre (IC 600750 16 02N 107 26E)
Apr. 66, 139 Special Forces troops receiving ideological
reform tre;n..u,. - .

1-9 Ban Fanz Kham (VB 422323 17 26% 105 24E)
rIFpiE |, Sept.- Jan, 67, held 5 months, set feee by lao_guer=illa

1-10 Ban The Pha Chon  (WE 875053 17 14N 105 49E)
(a) PIATES ete., Oct, 64, held for 12 daye,
(v) rIANVES ato., Dec. 64, 10 days for L.ter*oga. ion,c
taken to 1-13,
(c¢) A~rrag 3ept. 66, held for 1 month, taken to L-9.
(d) May 65, US pilot held here by North Vietremese.
{e) Jume 67 cave with 1 US, vic WE 876051.

EXH

f 4"" /2 é“ % EL# "’L/ 20PS Control ‘@
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- L2110 ¥an Muoans Anskham (X8 200760 & SEN 105 O7E)

{a) Dayie . cte., Hov.- Dec. 63, held for 17 days, taken

te L-2,

(b) wmme recaptured, Aug. 66, held 3 days, taken to L-16,

L-12 Bun lasg Khang (W2 730420 ° 17 33N 105 LLE)

(a) Arawrme= etc., 21 Mar.- 3 May &4, escaped, recaptured

7 Muy 64.
{(b) 7 May &i- Cot. 84, taiten to L-10

L.)3 Dan ™ Tan {XD 130950 17 08N 106 Q43)
- {a) ANAarn&S , ete., Cct.- Dec. &4, taken to L-20 for
interregaticn. )
(o) AdAawmes  , etc,, Dee, €4~ Dec. 65, Martin arrives 21

i Dec. &5, all taken to i~1L.
{2) ad@mE hug, %6, Z nights, taken to 1~10,

L2, Pha Xan (¥p 312924 17 C6X 106 1iE)
A A MET . 3te,, Dec., 65~ Mar, €6, Dengler
Tek, 66, 2l takern to L-15
i-1% Houwel Ex (XD 3608%0 17 05N 106 13%)
P-mnes ste., Mar,~ June &6, 211
ezcsped.,
1.3 Thong leuang (XD 28044C 1£ 40N 106 CBE)
#/AmmE held overnight, Aug. 66, taken to L-17.
L)% Ban Houei Xang (XD 22084C 17 025 106 GSE)}
aAJAme rug, 66, held 4 deys, taken to 1-13,
1-29 Int Fouang (VC 050445 19 35K 168 11T)
May- Sept. 61, Sgt. Ballenger '
L.2C Hong det (SG 925560 319 308 1C3 58%)
April. Aug. 62, Spgt. Ballenger
L-2) Dane Fhso (VE 366534 20 23N 104 29E)

{a)- Nov, €&, 3 US PWs in cave.
(o) Apr. &7, US PWs in cave.

23 som Neus (V® 3€6533)
/ (a) July 67, 6 TS Fus
(b) Aug. 67, 6 US Pus

L-27 Muong Nga vy 1459)
July 67, & US Pus keld in a 2 story buildirg.
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L{ve o)

Aug. 07, 3 US Pls ir cuve at junction of route 6 and route &3. -

Bar ¥u Yhow (wp 7683) .
Dec, €6, 4 US axd 9 Thai moved to Muong Faire (¥D 0927).

Xieng Mene - (V= 314350)
April 67, cave with 3 US,
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STATE/ING DIA NmCC/MC (SECDEF JC3 ARMY NAVY Alf) CIA/NMCC NIC K34 30O

THIS IS AN INFORMATION REPORT, NOT FINALLY EVALUATED INTELLIGENCE N

: - I 0116512 CiTE TDCS-314/12572-70
i ' .

DIST 1 DECEMBER 1970

. e - s — —— et - — -

~-1 COUNTRY LAOS
" por 25 NOVEMBER 1970 AND AS.STATED
SUBJECT  ENEMY PRISONS IN LAOS

ACR LAOS, VIENTIANE /28 NOVEMBER 1975_

SOURCE

I'd

. . .
g
LY SR
-

08 eman o
[ J-A I

D
B

U

MR Y R AT RIS

?

1. AS OF 25 NOVEMBER 1976 GROUND SOURCES CONFIRMED 45

ENEMY PRISONS AND/OR PRISONER OR VAR ,POV/ CAMPS OR COMPLEXES IN
LAOS. BASED ON ANALYSIS OF AVAILABLE 1%FORMATION, AN E.STIFMTED
. § 1,000 ENEMY PERSONNEL WERE COMMITTED TO GUARDING AND MAINTAINING
§ PRISON FACILITIES THROUGHOUT THE COUNTRY. _SIX NEW PRISONS

1
i HAVE BEEN CONFIRMED SINCE AUGUST, WHILE THE PRISON FACILITY
PREVIOUSLY CONFIRMED AT MUONG PHINE /XD 8927/ WAS DROPPED

-, -

%h' ’2-2__ '-;V e - ROBREE > —— N 'V"“-ﬂ.—-:v_—v-—:-.-—-w
v .o . L.

EXHIBIT
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g

(~lasrificatiom ) (dispcm controls)

Z = - -

FROM THIS LI1STING DUE TO RECENT GOVERNEMENT OPERATIONS IN THAT
SECTOR. PRISONERS PREVIOUSLY HELD IN THE IMMEDIATE MUONG
PHINE AREA PROBABLY WERE TRANSFERRED TO OTHER PRISONS.
JFIELY COMNENT. THIS REPORT UPDATES &s-nyggsdggo) D
IN AUGUST. THE LIMITATIONS OF THE TECHNIQUES USED IN
COMPIL1RG THIS REPORT ARE DISCUSSED IN THE FINAL PARAGRAPH./
2. POW CAMPS IN CONTESTED AREAS FREQUENTLY CHANGE THEIR
LOCATIONS TO INSURE BETTER SECURITY, ESPECIALLY FOLLOWING
SUCCESSFUL PRISONER ESCAPES. THE ENEMY STRESSES POLITICAL
INDGCTRINATION OF INDIGENOUS POWS, AND THOSE PRISONERS WHO
SHOW FAVORABLE PROGRESS OFTEN ARE INTERGRATED INTO REAR SERVICE
LNITS OR OTHER SUPPORT FACILITIES. MANY OF THESE PRISONERS
ARE RELEASED T0 THEIR HOME VILLAGES IF THEY PROMISE NOT TO
SUPPORT THE ROYAL LAO GOVERNMENT /RLG/.

3. AMERICAN POWS. UNTIL RECENTLY THE BAN NAKAY NEUA

1 /v 1956/ PRISON COMPLEX WAS THE ONLY PRISON FACILITY IN

LAOS KNOWN TO CONTAIN AMERICAN POWS. AMNERICANS CAPTURED IN
NORTHERN LAOS WERE ESCORTED TO THIS FACILITY, WHERE THEY . WERE

-] DETAINED ON A SEMI-PERMANENT BASIS. ' RECENT kEPonrlns-innxéé}Es,
HOWEVER, THAT ALL FOREIGN POWS INCLUDING THE AMERICANS HELD IN

- AT ey - b3 gt R

e et
———
1

—————— e, > ™
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IN 21694;

TDCS -314/12572-70

PAGE3 OF]p PAGES

fclaarisication) (dtasam oomtrols)

THIS REGION MAY HAVE BEEN MOVED TO AN UNDISCLOSED LOCATION
NORTH OF BAN NAKAY NEUA. AMERICANS CAPTURED IN THE LAO
PANHANDLE ARE NOT BELIEVED TO BE PERMANENTLY.DEIAINED IN LAOS,
BUT RATHER ARE ESCORTED THROUGH IHEVINFI;IEATION qoéﬂlnon I0
NORTH VIEINAM. AMERICAN POWS ARE BELIEVED -‘ID,RECE‘IVE BETTER
TREATMENT THAN THAT PROVIDED TO THE -INDEGENOUS PRISONERS.
4. AS OF 25 NGUEMBER ENEMY PRISON FACILITIES WERE CONFIRMED

BY GROUND SOURCES AT IHE'LOCATIONS LISTED BELOW. DESCRIPTIONS
OF THESE FACILITIES ARE BASED UPON THE BEST AVAILABLE
INFORMATION. THE MOST RECENT DATE -OF CONFIRMATION IS GIVEN
FOR EACH FACILITY.

A. PHONG SALY /TK B1@2/ A LARGE.PRISON, SURROUNDED BY
A BAMBOO FENCE, APPEARS TO0 BE A PRISON FOR PATHET LAOD /PL/
CRININALS AND POLITICAL PRISONERS. ABOUT 488 RLG PRISONERS
ALLEGEDLY WERE RELEASED IN JULY 1968, /MAY 1978/

3. NMUONG SING /QD 2344/ A DISTRICT PRISON FOR PL
CRIMINALS AND POLITICAL PRISONERS. /APR 1578/

-

3. NAM THa /QD 5815/ . POSSIBLY TWO PRISONS, ONE FOR

PL CRIMINALS AND POLITICAL PRISONERS, AND ONE FOR POWS.
/MAR 197¢/ '
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3 . -

D. BAN NAM THOUNG /@D 5320/ A SMALL PRISON, POSSIBLY A

LOCAL JAIL, CONTAINING 13-20 PRISONERS.

PRISONERS ARE

ESCORTED TO WORK AT BAN THONG OM /QD 5122/ TO HUSK RICE.

/0CT 1978/

E. QD 6455 /CHINA/ A UNIDENTIFIED /U/1/ PRISON. /AUG 1969/
/FIELD COMMENT -~ THIS AREA APPEARS TO BE INHABITED BY LAO

ETHNIC GROUPS.

THERE ALSQO IS A LAOC HOSPITAL AND STORAGE
FACILITY AT THE SAME LOCATION./

F. BOTENE /QD 7744/ A SMALL LOCAL PRISON POSSIBLY

CONTROLLED BY KHAMMOUANE NEUTRALISIS.

TGRCES ALSO HAS BEEN REPORTED HERE. /APR 1578/
G. NAl NOA /TJ 1034/ A U/I PRISON. /MAY 1968/
H. HOUAY CHIK /TJ 6345/ A PRISON REPORTED TO CONTALN

BOUT 76 MILITARY AND CIVIL PR1SDNERS.

1. HOUAY KANG /TJ 745}/ A PRISON COMPLEX.

A PRISON BUILT BY CHINESE

/MAR 1978/

SEVERAL

URDRED RLG TROOPS CAPTURED AT NAM BAC /TH 3583/ IN.JANUARY

)68 WERE INCARCERATED IN THIS COMPLEX.

MOST OF THESE

.RSONNEL HAVE BEEN RELEASED INTO REAR SERVICE URiTs, INTEGRATED :
TO COMMUNIST TACTICAL UNITS, OR HAVE ESCAPED.

Jo VJ 1181 A U/1 PRISON.

S S

/FEB 1965/

-
o

/0CT 1969/

T

000138

000148




Case 1:04-cv-00814-RCL Document 260-1 Filed 10/22/16 Page 143 of 169
Case 1:04-cv-00814-HHK Document 95-20 Filed 06/04/08 Page 12 of 18

. e
T U 2
' « g ) . I 2

1DCS -314/12572-70

PAGE 5 OF1p PAGES

| D eaem—

felaarifcation) {dlzsem econtrols)

i
' H

-t - - - - =2 ~

K. MUONG SAI /RC 1158/ A PRISON FOR CIVILIANS AS WELL
AS POWS AND POLITICAL PRISONERS. /APR 1970/

L. . RC P788 VICINITY /MUONG SAI/ A TWO PRISONS IN THE
IMMEDIATE AREA, ONE FOR POLITICAL PRISONERS AND THE OTHER FOR
POVS, 100-208 PRISONERS GUARDED BY 4@8-68 PL. /JUL 1978/

s '!.u;‘t:.".,,'.-“. o

M. NAM BAC /TH 3886 VICINITY/ A POLITICAL INDOCTRINATION
CENTER FOR POWS AND POLITICAL PRISONERS. /JUN 1578/
M. MUONG NGOI /TH 5891 VICINITY/ A THREE PRISONS IN THE

MUONG NGOI AREA CONTAINING CIVILIANS, POWS AND POLITICAL -

PRISONERS AT THE FOLLOWING LOCATIONS /SEP 1978/ -
/) PHA XKAO CAVE /TH 59558/

s

HS
R e

I

)
4

/2/ PHA PERNg CAVE /TH 6281 VICINITY/
/3/ TH 6581

5. SAM NEUA /VH 2157 VICINITY/ A POLITICAL PRISON FOR

LAB. AS OF DECENBER 1969 ONLY NON-LAQ PRISONER REPORTED WAS
A THAL PO¥. /DEC 1969/ ’ ’

BRRIATTRE P! Wty e
. -__.?. ;.‘"' red

R P+ BAN KAKAY NEUA /VH 1956/ A PRISON COMPLEX. /NOV 1578/
/1/ BAN NAXKAY NEUA - MAJOR ENEMY PRISON, AS HANY
RS 2@ AMERICAN POWS HAVE BEEN REPORTED AT THIS LOCATIOM. {

UNCOKFIRMED REPORTING AS OF 20 OUCTOBER INDICATES ALL POWS,

000139
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ANERICANS, THAIS, LAO AND MEO, MAY HAVE BEEN TRANSFERRED TO
Al UNKGOWN LOCATION NORTH OF BAN NAKAY NEUA. /OCT 1979/

/2/ HANG LONG /vn_xisa/ A PRISON IN CAVE, AMERICAN,
THAI AND LAO PRISONERS. - RECENT UNCONFIRMED REPORTING INDIbATES
ALL POWS MAY HAVE BEEN TRANSFERRED PRIOR TO MID-AUGUST TO AN
UNKNOWA LOCATION NORTH OF BAN KAKAY NEUA. /NOV 1578/

Q. BAN CHAMUN /UG 7949 VICINITY/ - PRISON, POSSIBLY
CONTROLLED BY DEUANIST NEUTRALISTS. /FEB 1978/

R. "NAM KIAN /UG 5851/ A LARGE PRISON FACILITY REPORTED
TO HAVE BEEN ‘BUILT IN SPTEMBER 1969 8Y PRISONERS WHO WERE
MOVED FROM KHANG XHAY /UG 1758/. /JAN 1978/ -

S. NONG HET /UG 9555/ A LARGE PL PRISON AT ONE TIME **-
CONTAIMED OVER 3@ PROSONERS, MANY OF WHOM WERE TRANSFERRED FROM THE
PLAINE DES JARRES DURING SEPTEMBER 1965. MANY OF THE
POWS HELD HERE HAVE BEEN RELEASED I#TC LABORER AND COOLIE
GROUPS. /AUG 1572/ ' |

T. KHAM KEUT /VF 7616 VICINITY/ A PRISON COWPLEX
L OCATED I_N SEVERAL CA.VES IN”KHAM K_EUT AREA. CONTAINS BQIH o _ i

CIVILIAN PRISONERS AND POWS. /JUN 1578/ !
V. BAN THA VENG /VF 3616/ A PRISGN FACILITY, POSSIBLY

S T

T——— - g T P —— T a =
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ASSOCIATED WITH THE BORIKHAM SAI PROVINCIAL HEADQUARTERS.

/JUN 1970/
V. VF 9926 A PRISON FAC]LIT?Q POSSIBLY ASSOCIATED WITH

4 PRISON AT BAN WAPE /WE @823/. /JUL 197G/

W. NAM OM /WF 2429 VICINITY/ A POLITICAL PRISON, 1G-26
PRISONERS. /JUL 1978/

X. BAN NAPE /WF @823/ A A PRISON POSSIBLY CONTAINING
BOTH CIVILIANS AND POWS. /SEP 1978/

Y. MAHAXAY /WE 2224/ A U/1 PRISON. /NOV }969/

Z. WE 2639 A U/1 PRISON GUARDED BY ONE GUERRILLA
CGNMPARY. /JUL 1969/

AA., PHa LABO CAVE /WE 43081/ A U/1 PRISON. /MAY 1969/

BE. BAN NADENE/BAN NATHAN - KHAMMOUANE PROVINCIAL
PRISOK COMNPLEX, CONSISTING OF THREE SEPARATE PRISONS IN KARST
CAVES OVER 188 LAO, BOTH CIVILIAKS AND POWS, ARE BEING
DETRINED 1IN THIS COMPLEX. w0 AﬁERlCﬁNS OR OTHER FOREIGH
NATIOKALS ARE CURRENTLY BEING HELD, HOWEVER, IN MAY 1965 AND
§ MARCH 1988 TwO AMERICAM PILOTS WERE REPORTED PASSING.THROUGH
THE AREA, PROBABLY ON THE WAY TO THE PRISON A} BAN THAPAC i 4

MONE /WE B8E5/. THE THREE PRISONS ARE AT THE FOLLOWVING

000141
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LOCATIONS /AUG 1S78/ A

/ 1/ BAN NADENE /WE 4334/ A PRISON IN A XARST CAVE,

52-82 PRISONERS. AMERICANS RFPOﬁIED ASSING THROUGH: IN MAY 1965

N

AND MARCH 1S6B.

/JUN 1978/, B A
/2/ BAK HAIHAN /VE 4952/ A Pnlson IN CAUE 5%-950
POWS. NO AHERICAHS OR THAIS ‘TN THE ahEA.' /JUN 1578/

/3/ WE 4232 A PRISON FACILITY RAIDED IN 1967 BY RLG

el e

FORCES, REPORTED IN AUGUST 1978 TO BE BACK IN USE.
cc.

/AUG 1978/
BAN -THAPAC MONE /WE 6885/ A POW CAMP IN A KARST

CAVE. AT OWE TIME THKIS PRISON HELD 10 FOREIGN POWS
IKCLUDING AMERICANS, THAIS AND FILIPINOS.
26 JULY

INFORMATION DATED
1965 INDICATED NO AMERICANS WERE THEN BEING HELD AT

THIS LOCATION. A REPORT DATED 25 MAY 1978 INDICATED THE -PRISON

MAY HAVE BEEN ABANDONED FOR THREE-FOUR MONTHS. /MNAY 1970/

DD. WD 7884 A U/I PRISON IN A CAVE. /MAR 1978/
| EE. WD BIS8 A PRISON CONTAINING BOTH POLITICAL PRISONERS
] AKD POUS. NO FOREIGN PRISONERS REPORTED. /AUG 1978/
; FF. WD 8282 VICINITY - PRISON CONTAINING ABOUT 6@ POVS. |
1 /may 1965/ [
1 Ga.

WD 8582 A LOCAL PRISON IN A CAVE. /MAR 1569/

.

(). :

O
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HH. XD ©638 VICINITY - PL PRISON VITH CIVILIAN AND
MILITARY PRISONERS REPORTED. /JUL 1978/

i%. MUONG ARNG KHAM /XD 1975/ A POLITICAL PRISON
POSSIBLY ASSOCIATED WITH THE SOUTH LAOS TAGCTICAL REGION
HEADQUARTERS. /AUG 1978/

Ay @

JJ. XD 2179 VICINITY - PRISON WITH 3-76 POWS. /SEP 1569/

Bets
e o
R
o
63

KK. BAN ANG KHAM /XD 3047/ A POV CAMP. /AUG 1578/
3 LL. XD 3244 A POW CAMP. /JUN 1965/
£ _ MY. XD 3658° A POW CAMP. /FEB 1569/ )
s:'.‘_— - et
*'

NN. XD 3457 A POY CAMP. FOUR AMERICANS ESCORTED THROUGH
THE AREA IN JUNE 1968. /JUN 1965/

iie

ny
F‘"
L)

[} K
X

T
i!

CO. MUONG NONG /XD €810 VICINITY/ A PRISON REPORIED TO

5

COKTAIN EIGHT-TEN AMERICAN%'DURING APRIL AND MAY 197@0. /MAY 1978/

PP. XC 1686 A POW CAMP CONTAINING ONLY LAD PRISONERS.
sJuUL 1979/ '

€R. XC 7788 A SUSPECTED PRISON. /SEP 1978/
FR. XB B4Z5 A POW CAMP. /JUL 1969/

5. XB 8832 VICINITY - PRISON FACILITY CONTAINING ONLY
LAO PRISONERS. /OCT 1978/
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- _ THESE AREAS INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING A

PHONG SALY PROVINCE

A
B NORTHERN LUANG PRABANG PROVINCE

c HOUA PHAN PROVINCE -

D. NORTHEASTERN XIENG KHOUANG PROVINCE

E EASTERN KHAMMOUANE PROVINCE

F EASTERN SAVANNAKHET PROVINCE

G. EASTERN SARAVANE PROVINCE

H. EASTERN ATTOPEU PROVINCE.

; ADDITIONAL ENEMY PRISON FACILITIES-PROBABLY WERE LOCATED IN THESZ
{. ARZAS, BUT AVAILABLE INFORMATION DOES KOT MEET THE CRITERIA. FOR

——

« 1 LISTI&G 1# THIS REPORT.)
6. FIELD DISSEN - 'STATE ARMY AIR USAID usmcu .JPRC

4

T7IKH AIR FORCE TFA/NXP CINCPAC ARPAC PACAF PACFLT /ALSD bENT

SAIGON/

-_ll'

\\ e, R .6

' .
idbean

N — v
. E R I - e Y R - -

TR AW ATides oty
- —y
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ii"i : RK s, Vo
5 Jess
SUBJECTKQZ. : Transmittal of Classified Information

to DIA

. ¥ Proposes to transmit the following informa-
tion to DI-6C, the DIA member of the Interagency Prisoner

of War Intelligence Committee:

TO CLASSIFICATION 1TEM
DIA/DI-6C Memerandum, from CIA member
- IFWIC to DIA member, 5 May
:I 1972, sub.: Dewngrading of
; extracts from CIA Film Z-6065.

Attachments: three masked
extracts from 2-6065, approved
for downgrading; three unmasked
prints, Confidential, from other
sources.

2. Approval to downgrade the three masked extracts from
Z-6065 was obtained on 5 May 1972 from
his approval is indicated by a certificate M
on internal copies of the attached memorandum to DIA member
IPWIC.

3. . It is recommended that-transmit the item described
in paragraph one to DIA/DI-6C as Shouge RN Ty

EXHIBIT
35
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REPRODUCED AT THE NAT1OXAL n.R(.HIVESﬁ,' ; w ‘ |

INFORMATION ON THE INTERAGENCY PRISONER OF WAR

INTELLIGENCE AD HOC COMMITTEE § |
S

1, Name of Committee: Interagency Prisoner of War
Intelligence Ad Hoc Committee (IPWIC)

2, Meetings held since 1 January 1973: 9

!

3. Extent to which the Recommendations of the Committee
have been adopted: Not applicable. See #5 below.

4. Reason why the Committee work cannot be accomplished
within the DoD: CIA is the only non-DoD member to
IPWIC CIA's presence and participation on IPWIC
are required.

§. Justification for continuing the Committee:

IPWIC is the only intelligence committee re-
sponsible for matters relating to missing and
unaccounted for American personnel in Southeast Asia.
It provides a working-level forum for a detailed
discussion and coordination of intelligence matters -
pertaining to unaccounted for American personnel. ‘
The official members of the Committee are the
Services (intelligence and casualty offices), CIA,
and DIA. Observers from the Department of State
and OASD (ISA) do attend IPWIC meetings, although
they are not members. .

With the completion of Operation Homecoming,
the IPWIC members and observers agreed that meetings
could be on an as-needed basis since DIA, as Chairman,
keeps the members and observers abreast of all in-
telligence developments affecting their respectivg,
missing personnel or their areas of interest.

Currently there are about 950 Americans un-
accounted for and about 1500 Americans listed as
killed in .action (bodies not recovered). Until the -
other side provides an accounting of these personnel,
intelligence assets will remain the primary sources .
of information on the fate of these personnel.

At the 15 November 1974 meeting, the members
and State Department observer were asked their -
opinion whether the committee's activities should be
continued. The members and State observer statg
unanimously that IPWIC should be continued, EXHIBIT

Jg%““é" liy—l:— | § E§.£>
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I EXE Do
- ATT)EH.AHBMILARG’IVES
w.ﬁfj’
DECLASSIFIED
. SANITIZED COPY et MW%
SENS]TW[ INFCRIATICH DELETED Vashingon DLC.20505 E; 173, O
) &
4 December 1992 499‘& @‘\9
A ) .'.L . v e LT .'y %
&"6"‘"@-}‘
Mr J Wlll:.am Codinha s & o °
Chief Counsel . « 7 OGO
Select Committee on POW/MIA Affalrs é§' .
United States Senate ’ %
Washlngton{ D.C. 20510
Deér Mr. Codinha: 7 .

Your letter of 18 November requested a copy of a
~counterintelligence paper entitled *"North Viet-Nam: The
Responsibilities of the'Democratic Republic of Vietnam
Intelligence and Security Services in the Exploitation
of American Prisoners of War.* The paper to which you

~refer was written in 1975 by a counterintelligence officer
working on Vietnam operations for the CI Staff. A copy
of the paper is enclosed.

After reviewing the document for release to the

.Committee, the Counterintelligence Center (CIC), the

successor organization to the CI Staff, appended a

memorandum commenting on and correcting some of the

statements made in the paper of 1975; CIC's memorandum

is likewise enclosed. If it would assist the Committee's

work and understanding, Agency officers who are knowledge-
" able on these issues are available to expand on the paper

and the appended memorandum.

Please let me know if I can be of further assistance.

Sincerely,
FWG:EE()F=£!EEHEE?TE SBEN: RITY

JMENT CONTROL NUMBER -__0SS-/22- 5344
Document consists of. g Pages A” £ a’”‘kwﬂ_

= : i - : John L. Breckenridge
Copy - ) of Deputy Director for Senate Affairs EXHIBIT
- Enclosures
~Downgrade to UNCLASSIFIED | CL BY 133763 -
' ngn Separated From Enclosures DECL OADR

B LAE bR

IPPROVEDFORRELEASE <ot
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Case 1:04-cv-00814-HHK Document 95-22 Filed 06/04/08 Page 6 of 9

1513/»1-6
cc-28 26 NOV 1974
DI-6a4/ Nomg T, . ?577?/PW | TLoea '4.'.._’ .._'.r IE

_{m:eragency Cmittees (v)

CC Memorandum u—712/cc-2n, ;!abed 29 OOtober 1974,
subject: as above. e 5. -

l. (U) Aas requested by the tafmncea memorandun,

the two interagency committees "’the Prisonsf of

War. Intelligence Task Force and tmgeg -
?xisone: of War’ntelug qg cmit.ten ha
"been reviewed. " - S PR *v! X I
> " . —%J Sl ,‘ :
2. (U) The Pris r Qf Ba: ﬁ
o 31 bea lﬁ'h.

Force should be

" 3. (U) The Interagency'Ptisona: of -Wax 1ﬂ£$1%£g
extendeds.

Ad Hoc Committee” (IPRIC) shoul@ be

1 Enclosure .
‘Information on

NEMG

IPWIC (C) . COLONEL, USIF .
CHIEF, SOUTIIIAST AGIA mvmov
. ORIG R p
COORD = . 7 ome g
DI-g oo
DI~6A
DI-624 r/f

DI-6a4 stybk

ETURK FOR FILING YO:

la .'

1P eaitarne Blldane Nhonlosal

onl

il

SENDIRIE AT, s AR IS Im o 38
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REPRODUCED AT THEI XATIONAL ARCHIVES . . :

r:f"

e /25191/03b/13 ,MaYi

ed/DI 6D/

PRI -._:,;,:‘g s
TR -
'5;£§Au/- /25191/sz/9 Hay T4 < 30
P

> s e b T E:
J T.;";.& 5-{, e :M‘ \‘,{?“u‘\jqu s ate .-_‘ :
& e7 \55" ‘

“f‘h‘-sfi'&sa —«.»se!a,,y,_iu

m P&’ttnt w mdﬂubhélr mo hme
the Tate ‘of at least soma US perssmmel ¥
capturéd ‘or missing status. DIA @ .
' . soanel a8 priscners and s,ppmximm.x.

o ) Bsius-in-ngtiun in Laos. i

; T DISTRfBUTION: * “COORD:

L Orig & 3 Addressee ' “DI-BA .
_ffﬁf*“”vfh . JS-Cy * “DI-6
".‘-ll.‘- e "DR 1D'IA Cy o e _DI

: DIA+JS cy
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'I'he—followmg-DIA -CD\Jnd.S:: vic

CAPT J. 5. lerh

CDR'J: C. Bruce
Mr J. T. Berbrich’

Capt C. E: Redman
‘LtCol B F. Lands- .
Maj J. L. Harvell 2
Maj D. M, Jackson _ -.
Maj F. E. Sheaffer

Cap: B. R Grehen

Party for the U. S. Senate, and s:veral other recent’ ;
< returned to the United States on 16 September 1970 with-379 etters from U.S.

prisoners. " In the process of clearing customs. at the John F. Kennedy

International Airport. Mr. Scheer reportedly would not conform to custom
" regulations and open all his luggage for inspection. As a result, customs
" authorities impounded that part of hlu lugga.ge that was not lnapected and

this. included the 379 letters.

"*  The Chairman stated that it was his understanding that f:ustomn officials =
were hopelul of releasing the impounded luggage in the very near future,
Apparently, the luggage is just sitting at the Airport for Mr.- Scheer to claim

it and to clear it through appropriate channels.

3. The Chairman stated that several wives have reccived [etfér¥ from
their husbands within the past two days. In the forwarding correspondence
prepared By the Committee of Liaison, the next-ef-kin were told that 143
Jetterswore recently received {rom prisoners in North Vietnam. The

000158

forwarding correspondence was dated 14 September, and the envelope was =
_postmarked ths next day, 15 September. The AFNIN nnd{USN representatives °
confirined that the letters received to date indicate that this batch of 143 =
letters is not a part of the 142/143 letters brought into Canada by Mrs Jerry
Rubin {See 19 June 1970 IPWIC Minutes, par:grap‘h 4), . ;

S-J\]&J[AP-T
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1 COMMITTER CONFIDENTIAL imemem o mmeumal
2 DEPOSITION OF RICHARD V. ALLEN
3
4 Tuesday, June 23, 1992
5
6 U.S. Senate
7 Select Coomittee on POW/MIA
8 Affairs
9 Washington, D.C.
10
11 Deposition of RICHARD V. ALLEN, a witness herxein,
12 called for examipation by counsel for the Senate Select
13 Coomittee on POW/MIA Affairs, was convened at 2:04 p.m., in
14 3-407, The Capitol, on Tuesday, June 23, 1992, the witness
15 being duly sworn by ANNB P. HOROWITZ, a Notary Public in and
16 for the District of Columbia, and the proceedings having been
17 taken down by Stenomask by ANNE P. HOROWITZ and transcribed
18 under her direction.
19
20 Pregent from the Samate Select Cormittee on PON/MIA Affairs:
21 J. WILLIAM CODINHA, BSQ., Chief Counsel
22 ROBERT TAYIOR, Investigator
23
24
28
ALDBRSON REPORTING COMPANY, INC.
1111 POURTERENTH STRBBT, N.W.
SUITE 400
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20005
{202)289-2260
(800) FOR DEPO
o}‘ . . :ﬁ
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1 new intelligence charter that was created in the early months
2 of the Reagan administration, for which I had the
3 responsibility of coordinating and shepherdiung, but I couldn’t
4 obviously attend the working group meetings. So Gregg asd
5 whoever slse -- Gregg and my secretary calls it the geeser
6 gap -- Ken de Graffenreid. De Graffenreid worked under Gregg
7 and de Graffenreid wae a polirical appointee from our sids.
] Q. In terms of intelligence, what written intelligence
9 sunmaries did the President receive on a daily basis? Did he
10 get a daily intelligence briefing by the CIA?
11 A. Well what is called the PDB, the President’s Daily
12 Brief. This is tho instrument that Bill Casey and I shaped to
13 fit the needs. Of course, the President will always get a
14 daily brief of some kind. We called it the PDB and gave it
1S some new architecture for -- to suit the way the President
16 liked to read things.
17 Casey and I, Richard Kerr, Richard Lehzan of the
18 CIA, worked hard onm putting that document into more useable
19 form. Carter had -- President Carter had wanted to consume
20 lots of migutiae and detail; we made it more thematic but
21 still quite ample. So the President would receive that every
22 day.
23 That would be briefed to me early in the morxning,
24 about 6:30, at the White House. And then I would prepare for
2S my 9:00 meeting with the President after having had a senior
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staff meeting. And if anything were relevant at that time, I
would bring it up at the senior staff meeting, then a wider
staff meeting, and then my meeting with the Presidenc.

So others received copies of the PBD as well, Meese
and Baker, because they were members of the National Security
Council as well. And I guess that’'s about it. I took it to
the President, the President would read it, I would uzually
bring it back.

That was the formal structure. During the periods
of time -- the time the President was incapacitated, I think
it was sent over to him or I took it over to him at the
hospital or at the residence. And in my absence, somebody
else would take it to him and brief. 1In addition, he received
whatever else I thought was necessary. There were freguent
DIA contributions that I thought particularly meritorious, and
he would get those.

So the President received a constant flow. Also for
his weekend reading file, which I started, a practice which I
started -- actually, I guess I resumed, because President
Nixon liked to have a weekend reading file. I loaded it up
with lots of reports, some of them specially generated, that I
would have generated from the intelligence community expressly
for his :.'-euding.

Q. Going back for a moment to the PDB, the President’'s

Daily Briefings, how long -- how much written material would
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i be given to him?

2 A. 10 or 12 pages.

3 Q. 10 or 12.

4 A. With photographs and maps. Aand then separate maps

S and illustrations and briefings as necessary. I might say

6 algo that from time to time there were video pregentations

7 that I arranged for the President on a very -- very very

8 sengitive data.

9 Q. With respect to the 10 or 12 page briefing that you
10 ware briefed on at 6:30 in the morning, who would brief you?
11 A. Dick-- Richaxd Kerr, who recently departed DDCI.

12 Q. And how long would that briefing usually last?

13 A. It could be 5 minutes, it could be 15. It was

14 efficient -- an efficient process.

15 Q. Then would you actually review all of the pages that
16 the Presidant wac going to see at 9:007?

17 A. Yes.

18 Q. And then you said the nmext thing that would happen
19 is you’d have a genior staff meeting.

20 A. I’d go to a senior staff meeting, right.

23 Q. And how long did that meeting last?

22 A. About 30 minutes. 30 to 40 minutes, perhaps.

23 Q. Was the PDB diascugssed at the senior staff meeting.
24 A. No, they didn’t have the need to know. It wvas

25 compartmentalized.
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Q. What was the senior staff meeting? What did chat
deal with? '

A. Everything of the day. The entire agenda for the
day, the week, the month, what was coming up. It consisted of
about 12 of the assistants to the President, I think we had 10
or 11 or 12. All of them plus gsome deputies and press pecple.

Q. You said the mnext thing that would happen would be a
wider staff meeting after the senior staff meeting.

A. Generally Meese and Martin Anderson, the domestic
advigor, and I would get togather on policy matters, if I
didn’t hold a staff meeting of my own before going to see the
President.

Q. And did this happen on a daily basis?

A. Yes.

Q. And then you said at 9:00 you would brief the
President.

A. Usually, 9:00, 9:15.

Q. And would that take place at the Oval Office?

A, It would.

Q. And how long did that meeting last?

A. It depended on the nuxmber of jokes that the
President had. It would begin fairly promptly after sows few
introductory remarks, and would generally last 15, somstimes
30, sometinwgs 45 minutes or an hour, depending on the subject
raised.
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Q. Did the President receive any separate operational
daily or weekly intelligence reports from the CIA?

A. I think from time to time Bill Casey wanted and got
private time with the President. I can’t say whather those
were reports or those ware other kinds of discussions.

Q. Would you review the materials that Bill Casey would
show the President?

A. Usually always. We were very close friends and had
been for many many years, and there was -- I think he had no
reason to keep anything from me, but I would not have been
offended had he done so.

Q. You indicated that this was private time. Does that
mean that you were not present at those meetings?

A. Yes. And the Secretary of State also wanted private
time, but was less guccessful in getting it.

Q. After assuming office, did President Reagan ask for
and receive intelligence briefings on the possibility that
live POW’s were still in Southeast Asia?

A. He did.

Q. And when do you recall that happening?

A. Well I‘11 have to get some help from you in terms of
timing, because I can’t exactly recall now. But this
basically came, I think, at my instigation. You recall the
name Bo Gritz. I'm trying to remember when Bo Gritx became an

ipsue for us. I think he had already been active in the years
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1 of the Carter administration, but I'm not sure doing exactly

2 whatc.

3 There wags a great concern about Mr. Bo Gritz,

q probably located in the State Department more than anyplace

s else, this concern. Maybe some concern also in the Departsent
6 of Defense that Mr. Gritz was a lone ranger, a swashbuckler, a
7 daring do-type, who set out on miggions that were -- that

8 could cause trouble for the United States.

9 And I recall having a discussion with the President.
10 I had -- my own view on Mr. Gritz was that -- I guegs he

11 doesn’t mind baeing called Mister. Is he still alive?

12 Q. Oh, Bo Gritz is still alive.

13 A. That Mr, Gritz -- telling the President that Mr.

14 Gritz probably ocught to be left alone, and I wasn’t goirg to
15 do anything to interfere with what Mr. Gritz was doing.

16 Bacause it geemad to me that he was doing as good a job as

17 anyone else in and having a look at the existence of POW’s,
18 And he was in Southeast Asia at that time and I

19 resexber that time being probably the spring, early spring of
20 1981, trying to assemble equipment, and also back iuo this

21 country trying to raise money for future forays into Laos and
22 Vietpam. And while I can’t exactly remsuber who it was that
23 was doing most of the complaining about Gritz, it stxuck oe as
24 being something that was reasonable. If he wanted to go ahesd
2s and do that and it was on his own time, it was all right with
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me and he wasn't disturbing the borders of any friendly

-

2 country.
3 And so I explained that to the President; at least I
4 presented that to the President, shall I say.

5 (Discussion off the record.)

6 MR. CODINHA: Why don‘t we take a 5 minute break.

7 (Recess.)

8 MR. CODINHA: Why don't we resume.

9 BY MR. CODINHA:

10 Q. I believe when we broke I had asked -- the guestion

11 I had asked you was after assuming office, did President

12 Reagan ask for and receive intelligence briefings on the
: 13 possibility of live POW's who were still in Southeast Asia.
; 14 And you said yes he had. And I asked when, and you said you
15 believed it was the spring of 1981 and tied it to Bo Gritz.
16 A. Yes. At any rate, I thought that these events were
17 worth reporting to the President, and we had several
18 discussions about the issue. At about the same time a CIA
19 photo interpreter was brought to my office. No, a photo was
20 brought to my office.
21 And it was explained to me that in this photograph,
22 if I locked carefully, I would find stamped in the ground, in
23 the grass, a quite distinct pattern Of what was called a rap
24 code that the prisoners used in Vietnamese priscns. Aand so

25 the photo interpreter was brought over and looked at this
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photograph, and for the life of me I can’t remembexr what the
numbers were, but it was somecthing like 3162 or 5138 or
whataver.

And sure enmough, with an overhead -- this was an
overhead photograph -- there was what looked like the rap
code. I cdon’t know, I‘ve forgotten what it meant or whatever.
But when explained to me at the time, 11 years ago, it looked
to me to be very significant. And so I took this up co the
President and I showed the President. I said now here‘s --
the theory is that this photograph contains a picture of a
11 prison campound and chat in the exercise yard the prigoners
12 walked the pattern of the rap code. Have you heard this story

W @ NN e ow N e
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13 betore?

14 Q. Not precisely this way.

1S A. Okay, wall anyway, this is the way I remember it.

16 So thio was the rap code. And that, in effect, said help from
17 above or here we are. Now no one was ever 100 percent

18 certain. The question was what do we do about it, and the

19 proposal -- either I stimulated or I accepted and encouraged a
20 proposal to send a team in to have a 1loock. I want to the

21 Prenident and agked him what he thought about it. He didn’t
22 take S seconds but to authorize that such an expedition be

23 launched, and they went about assembling it.

24 It geemed to ma that it took awfully long to get it
25 assenbled, an unbelievably long period of time to get it
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1 asgembled. I beliave they assesbled in Northeast Thailand. I
2 believe they had to go through part of Laos. We were out of
3 contact. I guess those were days before we had adequate
4 communications. They could not be in contact at all times,
H and they proceeded in. The President was asking -- asked
6 virtually every day, what about the progress of this wmission,
7 because he was quite excited about ita potential.
8 My recollection is that the group got into a fire
9 fight, I guess with the North Vietnamegse. Either they had
10 Montagnaxds or Laotians of sowe description, who were taking
11 them in. A couple of them vwere hit and theay had to bring them
12 back. There were wounded and/or killed, I can’t remember
13 which.
14 And when -- they supposedly went back again after
18§ having brought back the wounded casualties, and as I recall
16 resupplied and went back again. It is my recollection -- I
17 don’t think I dreamed this, but it is my recollection that
18 they eventually got to the site, but they didn’t get literally
19 inside. But by the time they got to the site the gite had
20 been abandoned. Whereas it had not been, dafinitely not been
21 uninhabited at the time of the sighting of what was purported
22 to be the rap code walked into the grass,
23 So I thought this was an extraordinary thing, and
24 it’g -- the recollection has never left me. Aund I just
25 wondered if there might have not been another swre efficient
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1 way to go about getting the team in there. It turned out
2 there was not, and I guess nothing else ever came of it.
3 It would be interesting today to go back and to find
4 those photographs -- because the coordinates were very

5 precise, you could find it down to a few meters -- and go in

6 and have a look and see what’s there. With the question --

7 the obvious question is were they moved, were they harmed, if
8 they were there.

9 And ever since -- that strengthened my belief in the
10 presence of POW'9 and MIA's, my personal belief. And also I
11 think there was a strong belief by the Vietnam groups that I
12 was meeting with relatively regularly at the time, or whenever
13 they wanted to meet. And there's the POW/MIA type groups such
14 ags tha League of Families and, as I recall there was also some
15 division -- I never quite understood the politics of the

16 movement, of the POW/MIA movement. There was quite vicious
17 politics, I gather, that eventually developed.

18 And I sort of lost touch with the issue as I went on
19 to other things, but I never forgo the experience.

20 Q. Let me examine some of the things you have said.

21 Does -- what you described to me break out into two separate
22 areas, the Bo Gritz and the CIA analysis. Let's talk first
23 about the CIA analysis. When do you recall that happening?
24 A. I can‘t tell you exactly. But I -- my recollection

25 captures it at some time in the spring of 1981.
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